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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli (Chairman and CEQ)
Ms. ZHANG Alying (Vice President)
Mr. LIU Yi (Vice President)

Mr. YANG Rongbing (Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Director
Mr. HAQ Yilei
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung

Company Secretary

Mr. CHAN Oi Fat

Authorised Representatives

Mr. LI Xiangli
Mr. CHAN Oi Fat

Audit Committee

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong

Remuneration Committee

Mr. ZHAO Hong (Chairman)
Ms. ZHANG Alying
Mr. WANG Zichen

Nomination Committee

Mr. LI Xiangli (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Zichen
Mr. ZHAO Hong
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Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors
35th Floor, One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Windward 3
Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350
Grand Cayman
KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

Headquarters and Principal Place of
Business in the Mainland China

Building No. 78

Zhuyuan Road

No. 12 District

Tianzhu Free Trade Zone
Beijing, China

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

Suite 1015, 10/F

Ocean Centre, Harbour City
Kowloon

(with effect from 29 April 2022)

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17/F Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Principal Share Registrar and Transfer

Office

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
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Website
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4 /) China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ® Annual Report 2021

FERMDBEELRE

QOcorian Trust (Cayman) Limited

Windward 3
Regatta Office Park
PO Box 1350
Grand Cayman
KY1-1108

Cayman Islands

BRADR

1586

#8uh

www.leontest.com



China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (stock code: 1586.HK)
was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2016. The
Company is China’s first international comprehensive inspection
and testing company listed in Hong Kong. Capitalizing on its strong
R&D and innovation capabilities and assured qualifications in various
aspects, the Company provides global industry leaders with a range
of services in testing, inspection as well as technical and consulting
services around the clock, empowering the industry to achieve eco-
friendly and low-carbon transformation. It is the pioneer in the Chinese
TIC listed companies to complete global network which serves major
trading ports and hub cities in the Asia-Pacific region, and comprises
58 branches and professional laboratories globally. Building on
its two key business areas, namely energy and commodity, the
Company fully leveraged its leading advantages in different segments
and economies of scale, and successfully expanded its service
scope to the ESG-related fields, such as new energy, clean energy,
environmental protection and carbon neutrality services, to grow both
in conventional and ESG businesses in an organic manner. Details of
the Company’s services and business scope are as follows:

Energy and commodity: we provide customers with the following
services: (1) quality testing services: in-house laboratory testing
services according to the international, national and regional industry
standards; (2) weight survey services: weighing services for vessels’
water gauge, flowmeter, weighbridge and cabin/shore tank capacity
according to the international, national and regional industry standards
such as SO/API/ASTM/GB/SH; (3) witnessing supervision and joint
inspection services: participate in and witness the inspection process
of other third party inspection agencies on behalf of our clients, or
participate in the customs inspection of imported goods by way of
witnessing/joint-inspection to protect the interests of our clients; (4)
other technical services: supervision of assembly and disassembly,
arbitral inspection, inventory survey, on-site witnessing, cleanliness
inspection, inventory inspection and other services. The scope of
services covers all energy and commaodity categories, including but
not limited to coal, crude oil, petroleum products, petrochemical
products, LPG/LNG, biofuels, raw ores, non-ferrous concentrates,
metals and alloys, industrial minerals, agricultural products, etc.
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Clean energy: we open up new energy sectors based on wind
power and solar power generation as well as other clean energy
testing services. Our services cover quality inspection or re-inspection
of metal materials, components, spare parts, etc. for wind power,
photovoltaic construction and installation as well as manufacturing
and maintenance of wind power equipment; collection, testing as well
as regular operation and maintenance of data during wind power and
photovoltaic operation to improve the stability of power generation.

Environmental protection: this service is categorized into
environmental protection consulting and environmental monitoring.
Environmental protection consulting services include environmental
housekeeping services, environmental impact assessment, soil
pollution investigation and risk assessment, environmental acceptance
upon completion of construction projects as well as management
of and application for sewage discharge permits. Environmental
monitoring services include the monitoring of water, wastewater,
ambient air, exhaust gas, indoor air, soil, groundwater, solid waste,
sediment and noise. Our services include industrial enterprises
in various major industrial parks including rubber, metal casting,
recycling, automobile manufacturing, etc., government-commissioned
inspections on the natural environment, the land resources allocation
department-commissioned soil pollution assessment, and inspection
and acceptance of indoor air upon completion of civil buildings.
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Leak Detection And Repair (LDAR) services: as a major role in
low-carbon emission reduction, LDAR services is an indispensable
part of achieving carbon neutrality by accurately filling in the gaps
in carbon emission reduction data. By detecting organic media and
inert media using technical means such as highly-sensitive FID and
PID equipment as well as OGI infrared thermal imaging equipment,
visualized image filing and gas infrared thermal imaging are combined
with real-time detection data to provide detecting and screening
services for possible media leaks from various pipeline components
during the production process, so as to accurately locate the leaking
points and carry out repairs. In this way, loss on the cost of raw
materials caused by leaks of materials can be effectively controlled
and environmental pollution reduced for the prevention of potential
safety hazards and financial losses. By screening VOCs and methane
emissions, etc., data are acquired for enterprises to support the
reduction of such emissions. LDAR services are provided for a
number of industrial enterprises, such as those engaged in petroleum
and petrochemical, chemical and chemical processing of coal,
resin production, natural gas, pharmaceutical and other production
enterprises.

Climate change: we provide integrated solutions to our clients,
mainly covering technical consulting services for carbon peaking and
carbon neutrality; carbon asset development and trading services;
ESG technical consulting services and low-carbon information-based
integrated solution services. The Company serves all domestic and
international companies involved in climate change and sustainable
development projects, mainly related to various industries, including
but not limited to power generation, petrochemicals, chemicals, iron
and steel, nonferrous metals, building materials, papermaking, etc.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREEAS/[T

The Company considers that its senior management are the executive
directors whose biographies are set out below and on pages 9 to 12

of this Annual Report.

The Board currently consists of eight Directors, comprising
four executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth
information regarding the Directors.

ARRARBESTEREANTEE HEFHR
TXRAFREIE128 ©

EXE2AH/\REFEN  BRENERTES
—HBIFMTERR=RBEIUIFNTES - TRES
BREZNEH -

Date of
Appointment as
Name Age Position Director
A Fie Bz EZEESWEN
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. LI Xiangli 59 Chairman, CEO and executive Director 18 January 2016
FREMEE TR TBERFENTES 201641 A13H
Ms. ZHANG Alying 59 Vice president and executive Director 18 January 2016
REHZ LT BIBERATES 201651 H13H
Mr. LIU Yi 57 Vice president and executive Director 18 January 2016
G bte s BlARFENTES 201641 A13H
Mr. YANG Rongbing 41 Vice chairman and executive Director 18 June 2016
HRESE BlFEHRIITES 201656 A18H
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Mr. HAQ Yilei 49 Non-executive Director 23 December 2021
MaZ kL FEMITES 2021412 523H

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited e Annual Report 2021
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EERSREEAERBNT

Date of
Appointment as
Name Age Position Director
HE Fie B EZEESWEN
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. WANG Zichen 55 Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2016
THELSE BIUFMITES 201646 418H
Mr. ZHAO Hong 61 Independent non-executive Director 18 June 2016
HHAT S A BIFRITES 201656 H18H
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung 57 Independent non-executive Director 23 July 2018
BR®EE BIFRITER 201847 A23H

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli, aged 59, is the chairman, CEO and an executive
Director. He is the spouse of Ms. ZHANG Aiying. Mr. Li is primarily
responsible for the strategic planning and overall management of our
Group. He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr.
Li joined the Group in April 2009 and was appointed as executive
Director on 13 January 2016. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Li has approximately 32 years of experience in the energy testing
and inspection field. Prior to joining the Group, from October 2008 to
April 2009, Mr. Li served as a project manager of China Certification
& Inspection Group Co., Ltd. (F BB RE(EE) AR A A) a
state-owned testing company that serves different industries, and
was responsible for the establishment of the platform for mineral
inspection. From January 1989 to September 2008, he worked at
the coal inspection technology center of Qinhuangdao Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (£ £ & i} A B 5B % & ) and
was promoted to a deputy director in April 2004, responsible for coal
testing and inspection.

HITES

ZTEFLE - 5958 - ERBITHAH - TAT
EF - FREARERLIMNES  FEHELE
EEERE NEEEE c HMAREEZESIRE -
R2009F4 A + ZHAENMAREE - KR201651A8
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FOETRER A MRS BB 32 F L -
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ZEITERERBREHBIE QT A IE B K12 -
BEEVEERERBR TS B1989F1AZE20084F
98 ' REES D ABRBRE B AR BT+
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEAEHN

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hebei Normal
College (/] 4k Al #8 £ X ) in the PRC in July 1985, and a master’s
degree in materials science from Yanshan University (3% LU K £) in
the PRC in December 1999. He obtained the qualification as a senior
engineer in November 2001 granted by State Administration for
Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC (B i A B e te
ZR).

Mr. Li is the sole director and sole shareholder of Leon Cornerstone
Investment Holding Limited, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, as disclosed in the “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in
the Shares” section of the Directors’ Report. Also, Mr. Li, Ms. ZHANG
Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi (2] 1}) entered into an acting-in-concert deed
on 31 January 2016. Pursuant to the deed, Ms. ZHANG Alying and
Mr. LIU Vi (B3) shall support Mr. Li's decisions on material matters
in relation to the operation and management of the Group by
exercising their voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and
boards of the members of the Group in accordance with the decision
of Mr. Li.

Ms. ZHANG Aiying, aged 59, is a vice president of the Company
and an executive Director. She is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiangli. Ms.
Zhang is primarily responsible for overall business management,
overall management of the procurement and human resources
departments of the Group. She is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Ms. Zhang was appointed as executive Director on 13
January 2016. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Ms. Zhang has over 19 years of experience in energy field. Prior to
joining our Group, from May 1995 to February 2005. Ms. Zhang
served as a manager of examination department of Shanxi Coal
Import & Export Group Qinhuangdao Branch (LI P8 ik 0 £ E &=
EE5 72 F]), a company primarily engaged in coal trading, and was
responsible for coal testing. From August 1988 to May 1995, she was
a teacher at No. 11 High School of Qinhuangdac (2B & +—F
&), and was responsible for teaching chemistry.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in chemistry from Hebei
Normal College (3L AH#EE2F) in the PRC in July 1988.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited e Annual Report 2021
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Zhang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Swan
Stone Investment Holding Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company (by virtue of the Listing Rules), as disclosed in the
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in the Shares” section of the
Directors’ Report. Also, Ms. Zhang, Mr. LI Xiangli and Mr. LIU Yi (Z125)
entered into an acting-in-concert deed on 31 January 2016. Pursuant
to the deed, Ms. Zhang and Mr. LIU Vi ( €] i} ) shall support Mr. LI
Xiangli’'s decisions on material matters in relation to the operation
and management of the Group by exercising their voting rights at
the meetings of the shareholders and boards of the members of the
Group in accordance with the decision of Mr. LI Xiangli.

Mr. LIU Yi, aged 57, is a vice president of the Company and an
executive Director. He is primarily responsible for overall management
of sales, quality control and research. Mr. Liu joined the Group in
February 2010 as deputy general manager of Lihong Inspection, and
was appointed as executive Director on 13 January 2016. He is also
a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Liu has approximately 33 years of experience in the energy testing
and inspection field. Prior to joining the Group, from September
1988 to January 2010, Mr. Liu worked with Qinhuangdao Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (£ £ & i AR 5B % & H) and
was promoted to the director of the coal inspection technology center
in September 20083, responsible for coal inspection. From July 1987
to September 1988, he was a teacher at Hebei Building Materials
Vocational and Technical College (A3t 34 B 3 #1i7 2367), and was
responsible for teaching analytical chemistry.

Mr. Liu obtained a master’s degree in materials engineering from
Yanshan University ( # L X £) in the PRC in November 2006. He
obtained the qualification as a senior engineer in June 1998 granted
by National Commodity Inspection Bureau ( B 5 & & & % B ),
currently known as General Administration of Quality Supervision,
Inspection and Quarantine of the PRC (IR E S E£E 0B Z A R).

Mr. Liu, Mr. LI Xiangli and Ms. ZHANG Aiying entered into an
acting-in-concert deed on 31 January 2016. Pursuant to the deed,
Mr. Liu and Ms. ZHANG Aiying shall support Mr. LI Xiangli’s decisions
on material matters in relation to the operation and management
of the Group by exercising their voting rights at the meetings of the
shareholders and boards of the members of the Group in accordance
with the decision of Mr. LI Xiangli.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEAEHN

Mr. YANG Rongbing, aged 41, is an executive Director. Mr.
Yang was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 18
June 2016 and was mainly responsible for providing independent
opinion to the Board. He was re-designated as executive Director
on 23 July 2018 as well as appointed as the vice chairman and is
mainly responsible for corporate strategies, capital planning, internal
control and compliance of the Group. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yang, holder of a MBA from Central University of Finance and
Economics, was a distinguished professor of Capital University of
Economics and Business. He has served in the capital markets in both
Mainland China and Hong Kong for a long period of time. He is an expert
in adopting innovative financial tools to provide support to enterprises on
sustainable development and continuously improving capital vehicles.
Mr. Yang previously served as an executive director and the chief
executive officer of SMI Holdings Group Limited (2 E12ARE B AR A 7))
(“SMI Holdings”), a company once listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 0198). Before joining SMI Holdings in 2010, Mr.
Yang served in various financial and investment roles in State-owned
enterprises and institutions such as Beijing Golden Tide Group Co., Ltd.
bR e ZEEB AR A7), Foreign Economic Cooperation Office under
Ministry of Environmental Protection (B 5 IR B (R 2 £ M 1EFR ) and
Center for Development of Trade and Control of Investment in Europe (&%
NI E B D).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Non-executive Director

Mr. HAO Yilei, aged 49, is the non-executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for providing business guidance in relation to the industry
to the Group. Mr. Hao was appointed as the non-executive Director
on 23 December 2021.

Mr. Hao has over 25 years of experience in the inspection-related
industry and is currently the vice president of China Inspection
Company Limited (7 B2 5 B R A &) (“CIC”). Mr. Hao joined CIC in
2017 as the general manager of the renewable resources inspection
department. CIC is a company primarily engaged in inspection and
certification service and is a substantial shareholder of the Company,
indirectly holding more than 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company through its subsidiary. Prior to joining CIC, Mr. Hao was
responsible for managing and inspecting the issuance of certificates
of origin in China at the Division of the Inspection and Certification
Department (12 7% 28 & 7)) of the former China Commodity Inspection
Bureau (B KR # H O 7 @ % 5 /&) from 1995 to 1998. He was
responsible for the management of inspection and supervision of the
imports and exports of light industrial products such as textile raw
materials, textile products and toys at the Inspection and Supervision
Department (252 25% 7]) of the former State Administration for Entry-
Exit Inspection and Quarantine Bureau (B 5 A B i % /&) from
1998 to 2001. From 2001 to 2004, he was in charge of the handling
of and foreign negotiations on China’s technical barriers to trade in the
Department of International Cooperation (WTO Office (BIFE & £ FI(WTO
% A =) of the former General Administration of Quality Supervision,
Inspection and Quarantine of the People’s Republic of China (B % &
48 f5) (AQSIQ). From 2004 to 2012, he was the deputy director and
director of the Inspection and Supervision Department (552 25E 7)) of
the former AQSIQ, and was in charge of the management of inspection
and supervision of China’s import and export of commodities,
chemicals and renewable resources. From 2012 to 2017, Mr. Hao
served as the director of the Mechanical and Electrical Products Office
of the Inspection and Supervision Department (1853 5 & A # B 2= g
SREERR) in the former AQSIQ and was responsible for the inspection
and supervision of the import and export of mechanical and electrical
products in the People’s Republic of China.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEAEHN

Mr. Hao obtained a Bachelor of Engineering degree in International
Trade, Commodity Inspection and Survey from the School of
Business Administration of the University of International Business and
Economics in 1995. Subsequently, he obtained a degree in Master of
Laws from the School of Law at the same university in 2002.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Zichen, aged 55, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for providing independent
advice and judgment to the Board. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wang was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 18 June 2016.

Since September 2007, Mr. Wang has been working with China
Bohai Bank Co., Ltd ()8 & 17 % 15 B BR A &) and is currently a
branch head of China Bohai Bank Co., Ltd Tianjin Fifth Avenue
Branch (/&R 1T B R QA 8K #E % A A X 17), responsible for
the management and operation of the branch.

Mr. Wang obtained a master’s degree in software engineering from
Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (1t 3 fift 2= fii X K
&) in the PRC in July 2010. He obtained the qualification as a certified
cost engineer (7 &8 TF2AM) granted by the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development of the PRC (FF A R £ A B {F 5 Ak 46 2
5% E6) in 2001. He also obtained the qualification as a senior engineer
granted by China State Construction Engineering Corporation (4 Bl 52
S8 T 3248/ B]) in December 2008.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. ZHAO Hong, aged 61, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Zhao is primarily responsible for providing independent
advice and judgment to the Board. He is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhao was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2016.

Currently, Mr. Zhao is an independent director of Zhejiang Kaier New
Materials Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 300234), a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in the PRC.

Mr. Zhao has extensive experience in thermal engineering. Since
March 1991, Mr. Zhao has been serving as a teacher in College of
Energy Engineering of Zhejiang University and has been responsible
for teaching and scientific research.

Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in thermal energy from
Zhejiang University in the PRC in July 1984, and a master’s degree in
engineering from Zhejiang University in the PRC in January 1991. He
obtained the qualification as a professor in December 2001 granted
by Personnel Department of Zhejiang Province (i T& A EE2).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEAEHN

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Liu is primarily responsible for providing independent
opinion and judgement to the Board. He is also the chairman of
the Audit Committee. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 July 2018.

Mr. Liu has over 32 years of experience in the field of auditing,
accounting, finance, management and secretarial work. Mr. Liu
received his Master of Science degree from the University of Hong
Kong in 2002. He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Liu previously served as director and senior management
positions with a number of public companies listed on the Stock
Exchange, including being a director and joint chief executive officer
of PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (Stock code: 2078); an
executive director and the chief financial officer of Genvon Group
Limited (now known as Beijing Health (Holdings) Limited, Stock code:
2389); a director, the chief executive officer and the chief financial
officer of Tonic Industries Holdings Limited (now known as China
Merchants Land Limited, Stock code: 0978); the company secretary
of Tungtex (Holdings) Company Limited (Stock code: 518) and an
executive director and the company secretary of Alco Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 328). Besides, Mr. Liu previously worked at
international accounting firms for a total of nine years and gained
extensive experience in accounting, auditing and taxation of listed
companies.
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2021, the complex and volatile environment globally made the
business environment challenging for enterprises. In the face of a
dismal market environment, the Group resolutely forged ahead with
determination and efficiently implemented its decisions and planning.
The Group upheld the development policy of seeking progress in the
midst of stability, embraced the business philosophy of long-term
vision and the corporate values featuring a culture of reliability, and
focused on high-quality and stable development. By enhancing quality
control and innovating the management mechanism, the Group
was able to continuously strengthen its operational efficiency, brand
credibility and influence in the industry, and maximize the synergy
among various business segments. As a result, we maintained a solid
revenue growth during the period.

The Group always regards “ESG sustainability” as a key priority
for development. As such, it constantly enhances its sustainability
management framework and related policies, strengthens sustainable
capacities, and strives for smooth implementation of sustainability
initiatives. For details, please refer to the ESG report in this report.
During the period, the Group made significant strategic investments
in the Company’s ESG-related new businesses, and set up two
new divisions, namely Environmental Protection Division and Climate
Change and Sustainability Division, to further expand the ESG
business. While centering on the business of testing, inspection,
and certification in two key sectors, namely energy and commaodity,
the Group has extended its business presence to ESG-related
sectors such as clean energy, environmental protection and carbon
neutrality, thereby harnessing ESG as a new growth engine and
empowering the green transformation and development of industries
and enterprises. To facilitate the rapid development of new business,
the Company increased investment in R&D and talents of research
institutes and laboratories. Such forward-looking investment is
expected to gradually and continuously create value in the future and
facilitate the advancement of the Group.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

China Leon Inspection adheres to the “people-oriented” principle,
upholds corporate social responsibility as a mission, and regards
talents as the most valuable assets for corporate development.
The Group values team spirit and enlightened corporate culture,
continuously invests resources in employee development and
strives to build a diversified, inclusive and industry-leading team.
By facilitating employee benefits and welfare schemes and fully
integrating individual and corporate goals, the Group provides
employees with a solid platform for mutual progress. The Company
has also strengthened support and incentives for employees. On the
one hand, we continuously increase investment in talent development
programs such as management trainee program; on the other hand,
we attract and retain talents through long-term incentives such as
equity incentives, with a view to creating a community of shared
interests. This not only facilitates the alignment of the Company’s
strategic development with the ESG trend, but also fuels the long-
term and stable development of the Group.

2021 was a year of exploration, pioneering and innovation for the
Group, and also a year where opportunities outweighed challenges.
The next three years will be a critical period for the Group to develop
and further consolidate the international credibility and influence of
our brand. We will size up the situation and seize major strategic
opportunities to expand presence in the fields of ESG and carbon
neutrality. The Group will continue to work with our partners to
achieve sustainable development and make greater contributions to
promoting China’s green energy transformation.

Our achievements are attributable to the effective hard work of all
employees, the steadfast trust of partners, and the unwavering
strong support of shareholders. On behalf of the management of the
Group, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all of you. The
Group will continue to strive forward and create better returns for
shareholders.

Mr. Li Xiangli
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

Riding on the booming TIC market and the advantage of
the Group’s leadership in various segments, the Company
maintained a sound and steady growth momentum in 2021.
During the period, the Company strived for steady growth
while fully committed to the “2+X” growth strategy. The
Company accurately captured the market trends in various
segments, seized opportunities to acquire high-quality targets,
and devised a forward-looking plan in advance for the areas
of strategic advantages. Focusing on inspection, testing and
certification business for the energy and commodity segments,
the Company had extended the “X” business to the clean
energy, environmental protection, carbon neutrality, and other
ESG services at a pace beyond expectation. The Company
capitalized on the synergy of various business segments to
drive the overall growth of revenue.

Guided by the corporate values featuring long-term
vision, the Company constantly boosted its capability in
sustainable development and brand credibility, increasing
strategic investments in new business initiatives, R&D and
innovation, and talent programme to fortify its foothold
against competitors. The Company made significant strategic
investments in the new business areas to extend boundary
of business growth on an ongoing basis. During the period,
Environmental Protection Division as well as Climate Change
and Sustainability Division were set up, and the Group
successfully extended its service scope into LDAR and
carbon reduction. During the period, the Group’s headcount
increased by 459, and the Company was involved in 9 large-
scale projects in total, in an ongoing attempt to empower
transition to green energy and low carbon. As an effort
to create new profit drivers, the Company stepped up its
investment in the “X” business, laying a solid cornerstone for
the Group’s future growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB WD AT

Fast-growing new business segments

Clean Energy Business: The Company established the
Electricity Power Division at the end of 2020 to capture the
growth opportunity arising from the new energy industry
by launching testing services in the new energy sector
which is based on wind and solar power generation, and
other clean energy fields. Up to now, the Company has
served 10 customers covering world leading engineering
equipment manufacturers and international integrated solution
providers in relation to clean energy, energy conservation
and environmental protection, and provided technical service
support for more than 60 projects including large-scale
wind and solar power generation projects. The Group helps
customers gradually achieve low-carbon transition and green
development.

Environmental Protection Business: In February 2021,
the Company acquired reputable target companies in
the environmental protection field and began to provide
environmental inspection and testing services, including
services relating to ecological monitoring, consulting on
environmental protection technology and carbon neutrality. In
November, the Company launched the Leak Detection and
Repair (“LDAR”) service, further enhancing the Company’s
service capabilities in the environmental protection business.
Up to now, the Company has secured 6 LDAR projects, with
customers covering large central SOEs such as giants in the
gas industry and the petrochemical industry in China, as well
as newly-secured state-owned holding companies ranking
top 100 nationally in the pharmaceutical industry. The Group
provides customers with full support to enhance their ESG
management capabilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Carbon Neutrality Service Business: In November of the same
year, the Company officially established the Climate Change
and Sustainability Division, representing a further expansion
to the carbon neutrality related fields to provide customers
with comprehensive solutions, which primarily include carbon
neutrality related advisory services, carbon asset development
and trading services, ESG consultancy services, as well as
low-carbon information comprehensive solution services, etc.
Up to now, the Company has secured 2 customers, one of
which is an international industry leader among Fortune Global
500 in natural resources, and the other is the global leader in
the commodity industry. The Group provides them with full
assistance in efficiency enhancement, energy conservation
and emission reduction to help them achieve green and low-
carbon sustainable development.

Well-positioned global network

The Group secured significant market share and surpassed
all other domestic listed peers in the TIC industry. As at
the end of 2021, the Group’s key performance indicators
in overseas markets, i.e. business revenue, the number of
outlets, the number of professional service personnel and
the number of leading international customers, all ranked first
among China’s TIC listed companies. The Group focused
on international expansion, established effective marketing
strategy and marketing coverage, and became the first
Chinese TIC company to successfully develop overseas
business. The Group covered key ports and hub cities in the
Asia-Pacific region, and comprises 58 branches and project
laboratories, creating a strong advantage in delivering services
globally. The Group actively responded to national policies
relating to the “Belt and Road” initiative. During the year, the
Company secured PowerChina Resources Limited’s coal-
fired power plant project in Barisal, Bangladesh as the sole
independent inspection service provider, through which the
Company helped to improve the infrastructure of the power
sector in Bangladesh and laid a foundation for the expansion
of comprehensive TIC services in Bangladesh.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB WD AT

Growing Brand Influence and Global Credibility

The Group’s brand influence and global credibility continued
to enhance. In 2018, the Group joined IFIA as a full member.
In 2019, the Group joined TIC Council, the most influential
international organisation in the TIC industry, as a full member.
Comprehensive accreditations further endorsed the group’s
credibility internationally. With strong R&D capabilities and
extensive qualifications, the Group provides 24/7 professional
testing, inspection, measurement, certification, consultation
and related technical services for global customers, primarily
the global industry leaders. The Group’s customers include
but are not limited to such leading enterprises as CHN
Energy, Shaanxi Coal Group, China Coal Group, Yitai Group,
Datang Group, China Resources Group, CNPC, SINOPEC,
CNOOC, ChemChina, SinoChem, Goldwind Technology,
Sany Heavy Industry, China Huadian Corporation, Beijing
Gas Group, Baiyunshan Chemical Pharmaceutical Factory,
Shell, Exxon-Mobil, Chevron, Total, Saudi Aramco, ENOC and
other renowned industry players. The partnerships between
the Group and the industry giants fully reflect the Group’s
international reputation as a world-renowned third-party
quality assurance service provider, which has been highly
recognised by our customers globally.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Strategies and Future
Prospects

Future Prospects

Given the ongoing pandemic and geopolitical tensions
around the world, global economic recovery is subject to
diverse challenges. Global economic growth is expected
to slow down to 4.1% in 2022". In particular, China has a
strong economic growth momentum and performs better in
high-quality development. China’s GDP growth is expected
about 5.5% in 2022 in the government report early this year,
remaining the biggest driving force for global economic
growth?. According to the Markets and Markets’ forecast, the
global TIC industry will grow at a compound annual growth
rate (CAGR) of 3.6% from 2020 to 2025. It is estimated that
the size of the global TIC industry will exceed €250 billion by
2025 and the global TIC market will see more positive and
steady development. In particular, the Asia-Pacific TIC market
has the largest market share and the highest growth rate,
and is expected to grow at the highest CAGR in the forecast
period®. As an industry leader in the Asia-Pacific region, the
Group will further seize opportunities arising from the industry
to expand related business in the TIC markets at home and
abroad, and maintain a leading position in various segments.

The global economy is shifting from a conventional growth
model to a green and sustainable path, with many countries
stepping up investment and growth in the eco field, and
creating new economic drivers characterised by low-
carbon emissions. The Group’s key strategic customers are
the core participants in building a clean, low-carbon, safe
and efficient energy systems. The Group will focus on our
strategic customers prioritise on ESG related services, and
integrate resources to help customers achieve sustainable
development. The Group will strive to capture more business
opportunities in the vast market driven by green and low-
carbon transition to achieve rapid development.

! https://www.shihang.org/zh/publication/global-economic-prospects
2 http://www.people.com.cn/n1/2022/0118/c32306-32333975.html
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF WD AT

Financial Review

Bt %5 B

Overview BE
2021 2020 Change
20214 20204 B
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(reE5)
Revenue WA 818,828 649,904 26.0%
Profit before tax AR 112,761 99,748 13.0%
Profit for the year FRF)E 89,674 79,996 12.1%
Revenue A

The Group’s revenue increased by 26% from approximately
HK$649.9 million (restated) in 2020 to approximately HK$818.8
million in 2021. The revenue growth is mainly due to:

1

New businesses emerging as a new growth engine: Our
“2+X” growth strategy borne remarkable fruits, leading to a
significant year-on-year growth in revenue during the period.
The Company established the Electricity Power Division at the
end of 2020, to advance its clean energy business smoothly
during the period. In February 2021, the Company set foot in
the environmental protection field, followed by an expansion
to leak detection and repair (“LDAR”) service in November
to enhance its environmental testing service capabilities.
The Climate Change and Sustainability Division was also set
up during the period to extend our service offerings for low
carbon transition. The Company secured a string of major
clients and large project contracts during the period, creating
a strong revenue driver to expand our overall earnings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Increasing customer base and loyalty: Benefiting from the
booming TIC market, we leveraged our leading advantage
to increase collaboration with existing customers, while
continuing to cement ties with new customers. In a sustainable
development approach, our well-established quality control
enabled us to constantly improve our operational efficiency,
brand credibility and industry influence, and capitalise on the
synergy of various business segments, laying a foundation for
solid revenue growth during the period.
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2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

(Restated)

(JE7)

Testing services 208 IR T% 520,304 408,455
Surveying services EFIRE 223,617 192,883
Witnessing and ancillary services R REBARTE 74,907 48,566
818,828 649,904

Profit for the Year

The Group’s profit for the year increased by 12.1% from
approximately HK$80.0 million (restated) in 2020 to approximately
HK$89.7 million in 2021. The Group prioritised on long-term
sustainable growth and increased strategic investments and
expenditures in numerous areas during the year:

(1)

Investment in new businesses: The Company made significant
strategic investments in the new business lines. During the
period, two new divisions, namely Environmental Protection
Division as well as Climate Change and Sustainability Division,
were set up coupled with the newly introduced LDAR and
carbon neutrality services. During the period, we invested in
a total of 9 large projects, and stepped up our proprietary
R&D investment in digital management systems to fortify
our foothold against competitors. In addition, we continued
to expand our talent pool to support rapid growth of new
business lines, and the Group’s headcount increased by 459.
Higher investment costs for new business lines and project
development as well as increased staff costs led to higher total
operating expenses, but paved the way for future profit growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERWED T

Talent investment: Embracing the people-oriented concept,
we had placed the highest value on our employees as part
of our mission for mutual and sustainable success both for
the Company and individual staff members. While increasing
investment in talent programmes including the management
trainee programme, we continued to improve our corporate
governance structure and long-term incentive mechanism. By
expanding our equity-based incentive schemes, we aimed to
reward key staff members for their significant contributions
to our business. A comprehensive incentive mechanism
balancing the Company’s long-term interests with short-
term benefits was conducive to attracting and retaining
excellent talents and boosting motivation. Building on effective
and efficient remuneration mechanisms, we effectively
balanced the interests of shareholders, the Company and
key team members to create a shared interest community
for sustainable development of the Company. Equity-settled
employee incentives during the period amounted to HK$9.4
million.

Strengthen cash position for potential M&A opportunities:
Under a proactive business expansion strategy, we acquired
Saybolt China, Saybolt Hong Kong and Saybolt Singapore
in recent years, achieving an important milestone for our
globalisation and diversification. During the period, the
Company successively acquired Tianjin Zhiheng and Tianjin
Huaneng, two high-quality targets in environmental monitoring,
to successfully extend our footprint to the environmental
sector. Drawing upon previous successful acquisition
experience, the Company continued to focus on potential
M&A targets. The Company issued convertible bonds during
the period to further optimise the capital structure, strengthen
cash position and expansion with a focus on ESG and
carbon neutrality. The fair value loss on the convertible bonds
amounted to approximately HK$8.0 million was recognised for
the current year, which was non-cash and non-operating in
nature.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash
and bank balances denominated in RMB, HKD, USD and SGD. The
Group remained in a strong cash position throughout 2020 and 2021,
with cash and cash equivalents of HK$93.7 million (restated) and
HK$150.6 million as at 31 December 2020 and 2021 respectively.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The Group had net cash inflows from operating activities of
approximately HK$115.4 million (restated) and HK$134.7 million
in 2020 and 2021 respectively. The increase in the Group’s cash
flows from operating activities was primarily due to higher revenue
generation.

Cash Flows Used in Financing Activities

The Group had net cash outflows used in financing activities of
approximately HK$71.6 million in 2020 and approximately HK$18.5
million in 2021. This was primarily due to (1) repayment of borrowings,
interest and lease liabilities of HK$94.5 million (2020: HK$111.0
million (restated)); (2) dividend payment of HK$27.9 million (2020:
HK$16.4 million (restated)); and (3) purchase of shares for share
award scheme of HK$6.3 million (2020: HK$5.9 million (restated)),
partially offset by additional borrowings of HK$50.0 million (2020:
HK$59.4 million (restated)), proceeds on issue of convertible bonds
of HK$50.0 million (2020: nil) and proceeds from issue of shares of
HK$4.1 million (2020: nil).

Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total capital commitment
of approximately HK$2.2 million for contracted but not performed
acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Group had cash and cash equivalents of RMB150.6 million as
at 31 December 2021. The Group is in a strong and healthy financial
position and has enough resources to support its operations and
meet its foreseeable capital expenditures.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Treasury Management and Funding Policy

The primary objectives of our capital management are to safeguard
our ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support our business and maximize our
shareholders’ value. We manage and adjust our capital structure
considering changes in economic conditions and the risks of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust our capital structure, we
may adjust dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or raise funds through issuing new equity.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. To manage the Group’s
liquidity risk, the management monitors the Group’s liquidity position
and maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents within the Group,
as well as ensuring the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to settle the
payables of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities or guarantees to third parties.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gearing Ratio

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The
calculation of gearing ratio is based on total net debt divided by
capital plus net debt and multiplied by 100.0%. Net debt is calculated
as trade payables, other payables and accruals, borrowings and
convertible bonds, less cash and cash equivalents as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital is calculated
as “equity attributable to owners of the Company” as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

BB WD AT
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RNEBMENEIR REITE A o B R ThiRMaE
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2021 2020

202145 20204

HK$°000 HK$’000

BEET T BT IT

(Restated)

(&E7)

Trade payables B S e IR 39,513 41,873
Other payables and accruals HEAb e RIE R ERTIE R 54,490 63,866
Borrowings EES 22,900 40,177
Convertible bonds AR ES 57,953 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERREEEY (150,636) (93,726)
Net debt BEFE 24,220 52,190
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ZNA Al#EH A JE(E#ER 347,638 297,567
Capital and net debt BEARREETE 371,858 349,757
Gearing ratio AR & 6.51% 14.92%
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a customer’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations. The Group enters into
transactions only with recognized and creditworthy parties. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to have credit transactions
with the Group are subject to credit verification procedures taking
into account the customers’ financial position and the Group’s past
experience with the customers.

In addition, the Group monitors receivable balances on an ongoing
basis. The management of the Group evaluates the creditworthiness
of its existing and prospective customers and ensures that the
customers have adequate financing for the projects as well as the
source of the financing. No collateral is required.

The Group’s other financial assets include other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents. The credit risk of these financial assets arises
from default of the counterparty. The maximum exposure to credit
risk equals to the carrying amounts of these assets.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group was exposed to foreign currency risk on cash and
cash equivalents, receivables, payables and borrowings that were
denominated in a currency other than respective functional currencies
of the Group’s entities. The currencies giving rise to this risk were
primarily Hong Kong dollar, United States dollar and Singapore dollar.
Significant Investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during the year.

Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2021, certain investment properties of the Group
with a total carrying value of HK$19.2 million (2020: HK$20.7 million
(restated)) were pledged to obtain a banking facility from a bank
amounting to HK$12.2 million (2020: HK$11.9 million (restated)).

Event After the Reporting Period

The Group has no significant events after the reporting year up to the
date of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as well as
preserving the interests of its shareholders as a whole. The Company
has adopted the CG Code.

The requirements under the New CG Code which came into effect on
1 January 2022 shall apply to the Company’s corporate governance
report for the financial year commencing on 1 January 2022.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31
December 2021, the Company had complied with all code provisions
as set out in the CG Code in force during the year ended 31
December 2021 save for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of
CG Code (which was rearranged to code provision C.2.1 of the New
CG Code) while such deviation is explained in the relevant paragraph
below of this corporate governance report.

The Board will, from time to time, review and enhance its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet
the requirements of the CG Code and the New CG Code.
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TEERME

A. The Board A E=E
A1. Responsibilities and Delegation A1l.

A2,

The powers and duties of our Board include managing
our business, convening general meetings, reporting
our Board’s work at our Shareholder’s meetings,
preparing financial budgets and final reports,
formulating proposals for profit distributions as well
as exercising other powers, functions and duties as
conferred by our Articles.

Board Composition A2,

As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises eight members, which consist of four
executive Directors, one non-executive Director, and
three independent non-executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Xiangli (Chairman and CEQ)
Ms. ZHANG Alying

Mr. LIU Vi

Mr. YANG Rongbing (Vice Chairman)

Non-executive Director
Mr. HAQ Yilei

(appointed on 23 December 2021)
Mr. WANG Gang

(resigned on 23 December 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Zichen

Mr. ZHAO Hong

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung
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AS.

A4.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Currently, Mr. LI Xiangli takes up the roles of both
chairman of the Board and CEO, which is deviated
from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code (which was
rearranged to code provision C.2.1 of the New CG
Code) that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company are performed by the same
individual. The Board considers that Mr. Li possesses
the essential leadership skills to manage the Board and
extensive knowledge in the business of the Group. In
the opinion of the Directors, through supervision by the
Board and the independent non-executive Directors,
together with effective control of the Company’s
internal check and balance mechanism, the same
individual performing the roles of chairman and CEO
can achieve the goal of improving the Company’s
efficiency in decision- making, execution and effectively
capturing business opportunities. The Board will review
the effectiveness of this arrangement from time to time.

During the year, the chairman met once with
independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of other directors.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All Directors are appointed for a specific term, subject
to renewal upon expiry of the existing term. Each
of the Directors is appointed for a term of three
years pursuant to their service contracts, letters of
appointment, or service agreements.

Details of specific term of each of the Directors are
set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Service
Contracts” of the Directors’ Report.
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AS5.

According to the Articles, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM.
The Directors who shall retire in each year will be those
who have been longest in the office since their last
re-election or appointment, but as between persons
who become or were last re-elected Directors on the
same day, those to retire will (unless they otherwise
agree among themselves) be determined by lot. The
retiring Directors should be eligible for re-election at the
relevant AGM. In addition, any new Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after
his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting, whereas any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next following AGM and shall then
be eligible for re-election. The Director appointed by
the Board as aforesaid shall be eligible for re-election
at the relevant general meeting.

Training and Continuing Development for
Directors

Each newly appointed Director will receive formal
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction
shall be supplemented by visiting to the Company’s
key plant sites and meetings with senior management
of the Company.

The existing Directors are continually updated with
legal and regulatory developments, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge of
their responsibilities. Trainings and professional
development for Directors are arranged whenever
necessary. In addition, reading materials on new or
changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to
the Company are provided to Directors from time to
time for their studying and reference.
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GEERRE
The Directors are required to submit to the Company EFERSHREERARAIRR
details of the training they received in each financial HEBEZHNEIEFE - WHART
year for the Company’s maintenance of proper training FEEZMEEFIIRE - BER
records of the Directors. According to the training ANEl BT ERSIIREE  EFRN
records currently maintained by the Company, during FRNEER(PEERTADEALS
the year, the Directors had complied with the code 1&SFRMES (B ACH B ¥E AT
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code (which was rearranged AINECA AT RNMES) 2 H T 5
to code provision C.1.4 of the New CG Code) on BHEESE
participation in continuous professional training as
follows:
Type of training/education
B HEER
Reading regulatory
Attending training updates or corporate
on regulatory governance related
development, materials or
directors’ duties or materials relevant to
other relevant topics directors’ duties
HERREERRE HEEERMEAR
ESHER HECEERFHENMADS
Name of Director EENR H{th A8 B8 = E /Y HEEHEFRNME
Mr. LI Xiangli A E v v
Ms. ZHANG Alying RERZL v v/
Mr. LIU Yi 2L v v
Mr. YANG Rongbing B IEE 4 4
Mr. HAOQ Yilei (appointed on  #Bta& AL
23 December 2021) (72021412 H23H
BEE) v v/
Mr. WANG Gang (resigned on 454
23 December 2021) (72021412 H23H
BHE) v v/
Mr. WANG Zichen TrRESESE v v
Mr. ZHAO Hong FEUL A v v/
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung B AE v 4
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AG.

A7.

Directors’ Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance records of each Director at the Board

and Board committee meetings and the general

meetings of the Company held during the year ended

31 December 2021 are set out below:

AG.

ESNERHFELE

BEEELFEARAEZ2021F12
AB1HILFEHBARTNESSS
# O EBEFLEEERNMBREREN
EERHETIINT

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ERZEE FHEEE REZEE
Name of Director L - 83 6 i TN
Executive Directors: HITES :
Mr. LI Xiangli ZRAEE 1010 N/A N/A 2/2 2/2
Ms. ZHANG Alying REHELT 1010 N/A 2/2 N/A 2/2
Mr. LIUYi 2ot 10/10 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
Mr. YANG Rongbing BRERE 10/10 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
Non-executive Director: FHTESE :
Mr. HAO Yilei (appointed on #8147 %4 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
23 December 2021) (F2021512 7
23AEZM)
Mr. WANG Gang ks 10/10 N/A N/A N/A 2/2
(resigned on (R2021F 128
23 December 2021) 23HEHT)
Independent non- BYFHTES:
executive Directors:
Mr. WANG Zichen FRERE 10/10 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. ZHAO Hong I LA 10/10 2/2 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung BR®EAE 10/10 2/2 N/A N/A 2/2
N/A:  not applicable N/A = TEA
Model Code for Securities Transactions A7. ETELHERZNEESTH

The Company has adopted the Model Code as

its own code of conduct regarding dealings in the

securities of the Company by the Directors and the

Company’s employees who, because of their offices or

employments, are likely to possess inside information

of the Company and/or its securities.
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AS8.

A9.

Having made specific enquiry by the Company with
all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code (which was rearranged
to code provision A.2.1 of the New CG Code).

Role and Function of the Board and the
Management

The Company has set out the respective functions and
responsibilities which are reserved to the Board and
delegated to management or Board committees. The
Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to management while reserving certain key matters,
mainly relating to the approval and monitoring of the
Group’s overall strategies, policies and business plans,
and overseeing and evaluating the performance of
the Group. It is also responsible for promoting the
success of the Group and its businesses by directing
and supervising the Group’s affairs. Board committees
for specific functions are also set up to ensure efficient
Board operations. The composition and functions
of each Board committee and their major roles and
functions are described below. The final decision
still rests with the Board unless otherwise provided
for in the terms of reference of the relevant Board
committees.
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A10. Relationship between Directors

Set out below are the relationship between Directors

as required to be disclosed under paragraph I(h) of the

CG Code (which was rearranged to paragraph B(h) of
the New CG Code):

Mr. LI Xiangli is the spouse of Ms. ZHANG
Aliying.

Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Alying and Mr. LIU
Yi entered into an acting-in-concert deed on
31 January 2016 whereby Ms. ZHANG Alying
and Mr. LIU Yi shall support Mr. LI Xiangli’s
decisions on material matters in relation to the
operation and management of our Group by
exercising their voting rights at the meetings of
the shareholders and boards of the members
of our Group in accordance with the decision of
Mr. LI Xiangli.

B. Board Committees

The Company has three Board committees, namely, the

Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and

the Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects

of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have

been established with defined written terms of reference

which are available on the Stock Exchange’s website

(www.hkexn

ews.hk) and on the Company’s website

(www.leontest.com). All the Board committees should report

to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.
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Remuneration Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Remuneration Committee comprises a total of three
members, being two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. ZHAO Hong (chairman of
the committee) and Mr. WANG Zichen, and one
executive Director, namely Ms. ZHANG Aiying.
Throughout the year, the Company had met the
Listing Rules requirements of having the majority of the
Remuneration Committee members being independent
non-executive Directors as well as having the
committee chaired by an independent non-executive
Director.

The primary function of the Remuneration Committee
is to develop remuneration policies of our Directors,
evaluate the performance, make recommendations
on the remuneration packages of our Directors
and senior management and evaluate and make
recommendations on employee benefit arrangements.

During the year, two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held (i) to recommend the grant of
share options; and (ji) to review the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Company as
well as the total amount of remuneration paid by the
Company in year 2021.

The attendance records of each committee member in
the Remuneration Committee meetings held during the
year are set out in section A6 above.
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RIB(BEE AT RIDFEBA.5EST A
FEX (B BCGREEERTRDE

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code
(which was rearranged to code provision E.1.5 of
the New CG Code), the annual remuneration of the E15EFAIEX) - aREBAER
members of the senior management by band for the RARFEE RN FE SN E ST 0
year is set out below: N

Number of individuals

40

B2.

Remuneration band (HK$) HEEE (R T) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 3
1,000,001 - 2,000,000 1,000,001 22,000,000 -
2,000,001 - 3,000,000 2,000,001 %3,000,000 2
3,000,001 - 4,000,000 3,000,001 %4,000,000 2
Details of the remuneration of each Director for the BEEERAFEANETIFEET
year are set out in Note 11 to the financial statements RAFERETEHIREMTEN -

contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Nomination Committee comprises a total of three
members, being one executive Director, namely
Mr. LI Xiangli (chairman of the committee), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong. Throughout
the year, the Company had met the code provision
A.5.1 of the CG Code (which was upgraded to
Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules) of having a majority
of the committee members being independent non-
executive Directors and having the committee chaired
by the chairman of the Board.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board; identifying individual suitably qualified to
become members of the Board and select or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorship; making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and succession planning of Directors;
and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, as well as reviewing the board
diversity policy and the nomination policy.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which
sets out the criteria for and process and procedures
of nomination of Directors. In accordance with the
nomination policy, in evaluation and selecting a
candidate for acting as a Director, the criteria to be
considered include:

- character and integrity of the individual;

- qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity
aspects under the board diversity policy
(summarised below) of the Company that
are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy;

- any measurable objectives adopted for
achieving diversity on the Board;

- requirement for the Board to have independent
Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and whether the candidate would be
considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules;

- any potential contributions the candidate can
bring to the Board in terms of qualifications,
skills, experience, independence and gender
diversity;

- willingness and ability to devote adequate time
to discharge duties as a member of the Board
and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;
and

- such other perspectives that are appropriate to
the Company’s business and succession plan
and where applicable, may be adopted and/or
amended by the Board and/or the Nomination
Committee from time to time for nomination of
Directors and succession planning.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

1 HBR

EXeCRMEREER  EREA
EEHRBEMEFE TIRE - 1R
BRAHE  RHERBEEESA
B - FTE BHIRER

- EAARBEHE:

- B BREREXER K
T3 ABEREARRRESE R
REZAARA R - ARAR
AEFEXEZTIEBER (B
EHFEN T OMRANZ T
ESEgE

- REFEZFEREZITILM
R EA AT ERR

- RIFEHRA E2E2FE
EBIEENRE  UAR2
E(EMRRDAFIARE A
LR SEILAIES]

- REANER  HIT - &
5 - B ERMERZ TR
ERAEFSEROTME
EER

- REBEREGEARAR
WERBETHRARRES
BRER/SAEEEETE
BEMZENRE &

- ERRARRERKRET
EMEMEERE 58
R/IREEEGIEAT
RETHRIERES REIT
R R HERT B RE

PR S RERIERERAT « 2021 FERE

41



42

Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

The nomination policy also sets out the nomination
process and procedures, including but not limited to:

1. evaluate the candidate based on the
abovementioned criteria upon receipt of the
proposal of appointment of new Director;

2. if there are more than one desirable candidate,
rank the candidates with reference to the needs
of the Company and the reference check of
each candidate; and

3. recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate as the new Director.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board and regards the increasing
diversity at the Board as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

Summary of Policy

The Nomination Committee reviews annually the
structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

In reviewing and assessing the Board composition
and the nomination of directors (as applicable),
Board diversity has to be considered from a number
of aspects, including gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited e Annual Report 2021

TE%JB( ﬁ%@ﬁ*E%mﬁi&%ir—’
BIREETRR

1. REBZEHESNERER
RIE EAIRES NEETT
ft

2. WMiFfE—BALEHERA
ﬂ'wﬂ%ﬁﬂﬂ%iﬁi
7 AR R E 51 40 4P
WEBERFF K

3. MESESHBUREABEA
BRNES -

EFEHBZTILHE

ARBIPALREEFTEKRES
tEERZYKEETENERT
TUERBER AR R BRFEZNH
RITR EFTSCHEMESTEXE
ZIALERE - EFEISRERE
EZEREZTTEMIERM T -

BRBE

REZEEEFRIEFENR
B ABEAER  TERRRES
ARBWARKREMEEESEL
R BT R -

Ei MHAEE AR RIRERE
=Z(WER)E - AREEEKES
TEERZTHENRE - BREKE
Al Fik - UERBEER - E¥
BE - e - MBS



Measurable Objectives and Progress

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance
of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant
to the Company’s business growth. The Nomination
Committee will discuss and where necessary, agree on
the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board and make recommendation to the Board. For
the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy, the following measurable objectives were
fulfilled during the year:

1. at least one-third of the members of the Board
shall be independent non-executive Directors;

2. at least one of the members of the Board shall
have obtained accounting or other professional
qualifications; and

3. at least one of the members of the Board is
female.
Annual Review

During the year, two meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held (i) to recommend a non-executive
Director to the Board; and (i) to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board in consideration of
the board diversity policy, and to review the nomination
criteria and procedures, the performance of Directors
and the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The independence of the independent non-executive
Directors has been assessed in accordance with the
applicable Listing Rules. The Company has received
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, and the
Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
the independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent.
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The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board
is maintained. The Nomination Committee also
considered that the Directors are rich in knowledge,
experience and background and their outstanding skills
in their respective expertise can meet the development
needs of the Company.

The attendance records of each committee member
in the Nomination Committee meetings are set out in
section A6 above.

Audit Committee

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit
Committee comprises a total of three members, all
being independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (chairman of the committee), Mr.
WANG Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong. The Company
has met the Listing Rules requirements regarding the
composition of the Audit Committee throughout the
year.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include
monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and interim report, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgements
contained therein; reviewing the Company’s financial
controls, and overseeing the risk management and
internal control systems; making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditor, as well as reviewing arrangements which
can be used by the employees of the Company,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions as set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code (which
was rearranged to code provision A.2.1 of the New
CG Code). Its main duties include developing and
reviewing the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations
to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the Group’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management of the Group;
and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG
code and the Model Code and the disclosure in the
corporate governance report to be contained in the
Company’s annual reports.

During the year, two meetings of the Audit Committee
were held to review the annual and interim financial
results and reports in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020 and in respect of the six months
ended 30 June 2021. The Audit Committee also
reviewed financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems as well as the scope of work of
external auditor. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code (the requirements under which are
applicable to the year ended 31 December 2021) and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The attendance records of each committee member
in the Audit Committee meetings are set out in section
A6 above.
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C. Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial

Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Company
and review their effectiveness in order to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and
to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

D1. Control Structure

The Company implemented various policies and
procedures to ensure effective risk management at
each aspect of its operation, including the provision of
on-site inspection, surveying and sampling services,
performance of analytical tests in our laboratories,
administration of daily operation, financial reporting
and recording, fund management, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations on environmental
protection and workplace safety. The policies and
procedures are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.
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D2.

The internal audit department monitors compliance
with policies and procedures and the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control structures across
the Group and its principal divisions. The internal audit
department reports directly to the Audit Committee
and ensure the internal controls are in place and
functioning properly as intended.

Control Approach

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures, reviewing the effectiveness of the internal
control and risk management systems and resolving
material internal control defects. The management
conducted interviews with relevant staff members,
reviewing relevant documentation of the internal
control system, identifying and evaluating findings
of any deficiencies in the design of the Company’s
internal control system, providing recommendations
for improvement and following up on the effectiveness
of implementation of such recommendations, where
appropriate. The scope and findings of review on the
risk management and internal control are reported to
and reviewed by the Audit Committee during the year.

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines are in
place to safeguard the assets against unauthorised
use or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper
accounting records in compliance with the applicable
laws, rules and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use and/or external
publication.

The Board, in conjunction with the Audit Committee,
annually assessed and reviewed the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems and
procedures and considered the adequacy of resources
and financial reporting function.
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D3. Annual Review

D4.

For the year 2021, the Board through the Audit
Committee had conducted an annual review on the
systems of internal control and risk management of
the Company. The review covered material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions of the Group. Areas
of improvement have been identified and appropriate
measures have been put in place to manage the risks.
The enhancement of the systems of risk management
and internal control is an ongoing process and
the Board maintains a continuing commitment to
strengthen the Company’s control environment and
processes. The Board considers that the internal
control and risk management systems are effective
and adequate.

Inside Information

The Company formulated the inside information policy.
The Company regularly reminds the Directors and
employees of the Group about the due compliance with
all policies regarding the inside information (as defined
under the SFO). Also, the Company keeps Directors,
senior management and employees appraised of the
latest regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare
or update appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure
the compliance with regulatory requirements. Under
the policy, heads of business units shall report to the
Directors any potential inside information event as
soon as practicable before or when it materialises
for determining the nature of developments, and if
required, making disclosure.
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Company Secretary

Mr. CHAN Qi Fat (“Mr. Chan”) is the company secretary of the
Company (“Company Secretary”). The primary contact person
at the Company with Mr. Chan is Mr. ZHANG Yu Kevin, the
chief financial officer of the Group.

During the year, Mr. Chan was responsible for providing
advice to the Board on corporate governance matters. Mr.
Chan confirmed that he took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year.

External Auditor and Auditor’s
Remuneration

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements for the year is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual
report.

The fees paid/payable to the external auditor in respect of
audit services and non-audit services (if any) for the year are
analyzed below:
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Communications with Shareholders
and Investors

The Company considers that effective communication
with Shareholders (both individual and institutional, and
in appropriate circumstances, the investment community
at large) is essential for enhancing investor relations and
ensuring ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company (including
financial performance, strategic goals and plans, material
developments and governance) by investors.

The Company maintains a website at www.leontest.com as
a communication platform with Shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations and other information are
available for inspection for public access.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and
other general meetings. Board members, in particular,
the chairmen of Board committees or their delegates,
appropriate management executives and external auditor
will use all reasonable efforts to attend AGMs and to answer
shareholders’ questions.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at general meetings, including the election of individual
Directors. All resolutions put forward at general meetings
will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and
poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company
(www.leontest.com) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) after each general meeting. The Articles
allow a Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at a general
meeting to appoint a proxy, who need not be a Shareholder,
to attend the meeting and vote thereat on his/her/its behalf.

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

There is no provision allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman lIslands
Companies Law or the Articles. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

With respect to the Shareholders’ right in proposing persons
for election as Directors, please refer to the procedures
available on the website of the Company.
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During the year, the Company has not made any changes to
the Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further details of the
rights of Shareholders.

In case of shareholding enquiries, Shareholders should
direct their enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, via its online holding enquiry at
www.computershare. com, dial its hotline at (852) 2862 8555
or go in person at its public counter at 17M Floor/17 Floor,
Shops 1712-16, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a dividend policy which sets out the
principles of and guidelines on recommending or declaring
dividend to the Shareholders. The Company shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital
requirements and future growth as well as its shareholder
value. The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders subject to the Articles and
relevant laws and regulations. The Board shall take into
account the factors of the Group when considering the
declaration and payment of dividends, including but not
limited to, the Group’s financial results, cash flow situation,
business conditions and strategies, capital requirements and
expenditure plans and interests of the Shareholders.
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The Board is pleased to present the Directors’ Report of the year
2021 together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year.

Principal Business Activities

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29
July 2015 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company is an
investment holding company.

An analysis of the Company’s revenue and operating profit for
the year by principal activities is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and
Notes 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators, particulars of important events affecting
the Group during the year, principal risks and uncertainties of the
Group’s business, and an indication of likely future developments
in the Group’s business, could be found in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this annual report. In addition, a discussion on relationships with
its key stakeholders is included in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” in this
annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non- controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 317 of this annual report.
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Results, Dividends and Bonus Issues

Results

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 160 and 161 of this annual report.

Final Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.018
per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Monday, 4 July 2022. The proposed final dividend will
be paid on or around Friday, 15 July 2022, subject to approval at the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 16
June 2022 (the “AGM”). The proposed final dividend shall be declared
and paid in Hong Kong dollars.

Issue of Bonus Shares

Subject to the passing of the relevant resolution at the AGM and the
Stock Exchange granting the listing of and permission to deal in such
new shares, the Board proposes to make a bonus issue of one new
share for every ten shares held to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 4 July 2022.
The relevant resolution will be proposed at the AGM, and if passed
and upon the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting the
listing of and permission to deal in such new shares, share certificates
for the bonus shares will be posted on or around Friday, 15 July
2022.
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Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the

following periods:

(i)

(ii)

Book Close Dates for 2022 AGM

From Monday, 13 June 2022 to Thursday, 16 June 2022,
both days inclusive and during which period no share transfer
will be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 10 June 2022; and

Book Close Dates for Final Dividend and Bonus
Shares

From Tuesday, 28 June 2022 to Monday, 4 July 2022, both
days inclusive and during which period no share transfer will
be effected, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed final dividend and bonus shares.
In order to establish entitlements to the proposed final dividend
and bonus shares, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 27 June 2022.
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Issue of Bonus Shares and Adjustments
Made as a Result in July 2021

As disclosed in the circular and the announcement of the Company
dated 18 May 2021 and 18 June 2021 respectively, the bonus issue
(“2021 Bonus Issue”) was made on the basis of one (1) bonus share
for every ten (10) existing shares in issue held on the record date, i.e.
5 July 2021, by the qualifying shareholders. As at 5 July 2021, there
were in total 403,088,000 Shares in issue. The number of bonus
shares issued under the Bonus Issue was 40,308,800 Shares.

Pursuant to the terms of the share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by the Company on 5 May 2017, the exercise
price of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and the number of Shares to be allotted and issued upon full exercise
of the subscription rights attaching to the 6,372,000 outstanding
share options were adjusted as a result of the 2021 Bonus Issue in
the manner as announced by the Company on 15 July 2021.

In addition, pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds, the
conversion price of the Convertible Bonds and the number of
conversion shares to be allotted and issued upon full conversion of
the Convertible Bonds are adjusted as a result of the 2021 Bonus
Issue.

Furthermore, the number of awarded shares issued on 29 January
2021 under the Share Award Scheme were also adjusted.

Details of the number of bonus shares issued and adjustments

to share options and Convertible Bonds are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 15 July 2021.
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Issue of Convertible Bonds in June 2021

As disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 12 May 2021
and 11 June 2021, the completion of the subscription for the 5-year
2% coupon unlisted convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”)
(the “CB Subscription”) has taken place on 11 June 2021 and the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$50,000,000 have
been issued to the subscriber in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the conditional agreement dated 12 May 2021 entered
into between the Company and the subscriber (the “CB Subscription
Agreement”). Details as follows:

Principal Terms of the Convertible Bonds

Issuer: The Company

Subscriber: Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master
Fund Limited, an open-end investment company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and the subscriber to the CB Subscription
Agreement (the “Subscriber”).

Status: The Convertible Bonds constitute general and
unsecured obligations of the Company and
rank equally among themselves and pari passu
with all other present and future unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Company.

Principal Amount: HK$50,000,000

Issue Price: 100% of the principal amount of HK$50,000,000 in
cash

Coupon: 2% per annum payable in arrears annually

Maturity Date: The fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the

Convertible Bonds
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Conversion Price

The initial Conversion Price of HK$1.63 per Conversion Share
represents:

(i) a premium of approximately 5.16% over the closing price of
HK$1.550 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 12
May 2021, being the date of the CB Subscription Agreement;
and

(ii) a premium of approximately 7.66% over the average of the
closing prices of HK$1.514 per Share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange for the last five (5) consecutive trading days
immediately preceding 12 May 2021, being the date of the CB
Subscription Agreement.

The net Conversion Price, after deduction of relevant expenses, is
approximately HK$1.62 per Conversion Share.

The Conversion Price was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between the Company and the Subscriber, taking into account of,
among others, the recent trading performance of the Shares. The
Directors considered that the Conversion Price and the terms and
conditions of the Subscription Agreement and the Convertible Bonds
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Subscriber

The Subscriber is an open-end investment company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. It is managed by RAYS
Capital Partners Limited, an Independent Third Party, licensed to carry
out Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the SFO.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief

having made all reasonable enquiries, the Subscriber and its ultimate
beneficial owner(s) are Independent Third Parties.
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Reasons for the Issue of Convertible Bonds

As an international independent inspection and testing company, the
Company provides customers with professional testing, inspection,
certification, consultation and related technical services round the
clock globally. Building on the Company’s two key business areas,
namely energy and commodity, and by fully leveraging its leading
advantages in different segments and economies of scale, the
Company has expanded the service scope to power generation. We
launched new inspection services in clean energy field, especially
focusing on the solar and wind power projects. The Company also
provides environmental monitoring and testing services including
ecological monitoring, soil testing, environmental technology
consultation and assessment and carbon neutrality.

The Subscriber’s interest in making an investment into the Group
reflects its confidence in the Group’s business and growth potential.
The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
were of the view that the raising of funds by the issue of the
Convertible Bonds would enhance the Group’s capital structure and
liquidity, strengthen the Group’s financial position, broaden the capital
base of the Group and to finance the Group’s future development
and expansion.

The Directors considered that the issue of the Convertible Bonds was
an effective means of raising additional capital since (i) it would not
have an immediate dilution effect on the shareholding of the existing
Shareholders; and (ii) in the event that the Convertible Bonds were
converted into Shares, the Company could broaden its capital base,
benefiting the long-term development of the Company.

The Directors considered that the terms of the CB Subscription
Agreement were arrived at arm’s length negotiations between the
Company and the Subscriber, and the transactions contemplated
thereunder (including the Conversion Price) were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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Use of Proceeds from the Issue of the Convertible
Bonds

The gross proceeds of the CB Subscription were approximately
HK$50,000,000. The net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible
Bonds was approximately HK$49.6 million.

The Company intended to use the net proceeds to accelerate the
implementation of the Group’s 2+X sustainable growth strategy as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 May 2021
by way of (a) business expansions; (b) investments to increase market
share in key markets, and (c) general working capital purposes.

As of 31 December 2021, approximately HK$29.6 million of the net
proceeds of the issue of convertible bonds had been utilised for (a)
business expansions as disclosed in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements with the consideration of approximately HK$7.4
million during the year; (b) capital expenditure of approximately
HK$16.2 million, which mainly comprised of the addition of equipment
of approximately HK$11.2 million and vehicles of approximately
HK$4.6 million; and (c) general working capital in the amount of
approximately HK$6.0 million. The remaining balance of the proceeds
of HK$20.0 million is expected to be utilised for the intended use as
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 12 May 2021 by the
end of 2023.
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Adjustments made to the Convertible Bonds

As announced by the Company on 15 July 2021, pursuant to
the terms of the Convertible Bonds, the conversion price of the
Convertible Bonds and the number of conversion Shares to be
allotted and issued upon full conversion of the Convertible Bonds
were adjusted (the “Convertible Bonds Adjustments”) in the following

manner as a result of the 2021 Bonus Issue:

Before completion
of the 2021 Bonus Issue
SEF2021 FALAR & 4T Al

Number of

conversion

Shares to be

allotted and

issued upon full

Conversion price conversion of the
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of the 2021 Bonus Issue
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 31 to the financial statements.

Equity-linked Agreements

During the year, other than the Convertible Bonds, the Share Option
Scheme and the Share Award Scheme as set out in the sections
headed “Convertible Bonds”, “Share Option Scheme” and “Share
Award Scheme” and Notes 30, 32 and 33 to the financial statements
respectively, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked
agreement or subsisted at the end of the year.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environmental
protection and has not noted any material non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment
and the environment. During the production process, the Group
has implemented environmental protection measures, including
procedures related to energy use control, waste water and waste air
discharge management.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 164 and 165 of this annual report and
Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s distributable reserves were
HK$93.7 million.
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Donations

During the Reporting Period, the total charitable donation of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$57,000.

Borrowings

Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and Note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, directors of
the Company were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. LI Xiangli

Ms. ZHANG Alying

Mr. LIU Yi

Mr. YANG Rongbing

Non-Executive Director

Mr. HAQ Yilei (Appointed on 23 December 2021)
Mr. WANG Gang (Resigned on 23 December 2021)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. WANG Zichen

Mr. ZHAO Hong
Mr. LIU Hoi Keung
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Biographical Details of the Directors and
the Senior Management

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set out on
pages 9 to 16 in the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM had any service contract with our Company or any of our
subsidiaries, other than contracts expiring or determinable by
the employer, which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). The directors’ remuneration is determined with
references to directors’ duties and responsibilities, individual
performance and the results of the Group.

Executive Directors’ service contracts

Three of our executive Directors, namely Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG
Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi, have respectively entered into service contract
with the Company pursuant to which each of them agreed to act as
an executive Director for an initial term of three years commencing
from 13 January 2016. Such terms were renewed for a further three
years commencing from 13 January 2019 and upon expiry of such,
the terms were renewed for a further three years commencing from
13 January 2022.

Mr. YANG Rongbing, formerly an independent non-executive Director,
has been re-designated as an executive Director and appointed as
the vice chairman of the Company with effect from 23 July 2018. Mr.
Yang has entered into a service contract with the Company pursuant
to which he agreed to act as an executive Director for an initial term
of three years commencing from 23 July 2018 and upon expiry of
such, the term was renewed for a further three years commencing
from 23 July 2021.
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Non-executive Director’s and Independent Non-executive
Directors’ letters of appointment/Service Agreement

Non-executive Director, Mr. HAO Yilei, has been appointed with
effect from 23 December 2021. Mr. Hao has entered into a service
agreement with the Company pursuant to which he has been
appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from 23
December 2021.

Two of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. WANG
Zichen and Mr. ZHAO Hong, have respectively entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company pursuant to which each of them has
been appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from
18 June 2016. Such terms were renewed for a further three years
commencing from 18 June 2019 and upon expiry, a further three
years was renewed commencing from 13 January 2022.

The other independent non-executive Director, Mr. LIU Hoi Keung,
has been appointed with effect from 23 July 2018. Mr. Liu has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company pursuant
to which he has been appointed for an initial term of three years
commencing from 23 July 2018. Such term was renewed for a further
three years commencing from 23 July 2021 upon expiry.

The non-executive Director received no director’s fee. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors received a director’s fee of
HK$100,000 per annum.

Confirmation of Independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors for the year 2021 and the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.
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Emolument of Directors and Senior
Management

We offer our executive Directors and senior management members,
who are also employees of our Company, emolument in the form
of salaries, allowances, remuneration, pension, discretionary bonus
and other welfares. Our non-executive Director does not receive
any emolument from our Group. Our independent non-executive
Directors receive emolument in the form of director’s fee based on
their responsibilities (including being members or chairman of Board
committees). We adopt a market and incentive-based employee
emolument structure and implement a multi-layered evaluation
system which focuses on performance and management goals.

The remuneration (including fees, salaries and other benefits,
performance-related bonuses, equity-settled shares compensation
expense and pension scheme contributions) paid to the Directors in
aggregate for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$12.0 million.

The remuneration (including salaries and other benefits, performance-
related bonuses and pension scheme contributions) paid to our
Group’s five highest paid individuals in aggregate for the year ended
31 December 2021 was approximately HK$15.5 million.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, no emoluments were paid by
our Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining our Group or as compensation
for loss of office. None of the Directors had waived any emoluments
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 11 and 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme to
motivate Directors and employees. Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of
this directors’ report and Note 32 to the financial statements.
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Furthermore, the Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on
27 October 2020 to motivate the Company’s middle and senior
management, core technological personnel and operations team.
Details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the section headed
“Share Award Scheme” of this directors’ report and Note 33 to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments had been made or
were payable, for the year ended 31 December 2021, by our Group
to or on behalf of any of the Directors.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to article 191 of the Company’s articles of association, every
Director or officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company from liabilities which they may incur by reason
of execution of their duties.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for the Directors and officers of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Competing Business

Except otherwise disclosed in this annual report, during the year,
none of the Directors were considered to be interested in businesses
which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with our core businesses.
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Deed of Non-competition

Reference is made to the non-competition undertakings given by
the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company disclosed
in the Prospectus. The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed
to the Company that they have complied with the non-competition
undertakings during the year. The independent non-executive
Directors have conducted such review for the year, and also reviewed
the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that such undertakings
have been complied with.

Pension Scheme

Details of the pension scheme of the Company are set out in Note 34
to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the share option
scheme conditionally approved and adopted by written resolutions of
our then Shareholders on 5 May 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

(i) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract, retain
and motivate employees, Directors and such other participants
and to further perfect corporate governance structure,
propel the Company to build up and complete motivating
mechanism, fully motivate employees, and effectively help
to align the interests of Shareholders, Company and its
employees by the grant of options.

(i) Participants

The directors, officers and employees of any member of the
Group as determined by the Board from time to time.
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(iii)

(iv)

The total number of shares available for issue

The Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted under this Share
Option Scheme (the “Share Option(s)”) shall not exceed 10%
of the total number of the Shares in issue on the date where
the refreshment of 10% limit (being 44,350,080 Shares) under
the Share Option Scheme was approved at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 29 September 2021 and relevant
listing approval was granted by the Stock Exchange on 4
October 2021.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
44,350,080 shares, representing approximately 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.

The limit on the number of securities which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the scheme and any other schemes must
not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the listed
issuer in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the Share Options granted to each participant
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total number
of Shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to an
Eligible Employee would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to such Eligible
Employee (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the total number of Shares in issue, such further grant must
be separately approved by the Shareholders at the general
meeting with such Eligible Employee and his/her close
associates abstaining from voting.

(iii)

(iv)
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be specified by the Board at the time of grant, such period
shall not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which
any particular option is granted in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised (i.e. vesting period)

Options may be vested over such period(s) as determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion subject to compliance
with the requirements under any applicable laws, regulations
or rules to which the Share Option Scheme may be subject,
including the Listing Rules or regulations of any stock
exchange on which the Shares may be listed and quoted.
Furthermore, the Shares to be issued and allotted to a
Grantee pursuant to the exercise of any Option under the
Share Option Scheme may or may not, at the discretion of the
Board, be subject to any retention period.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and
period within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purposes must be
repaid

RMB1.00 within 15 days from the date of grant.
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(viii) Basis of determining the exercise price

(ix)

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the

Board at its absolute discretion and notified to the Participant

in the offer at the time of the offer, and shall be no less than
the highest of:

@)

the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the relevant Share Option, which shall
be a business day;

the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five Business Days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant Share Option (provided
that, in the event that any Share Option is proposed to
be granted within a period of less than five Business
Days after the trading of the Shares first commences
on the Stock Exchange, the new issue price of the
Shares for the share offer shall be used as the closing
price for any Business Day falling within the period
before listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange);
and

the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the
relevant Share Option.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a

period of 10 years commencing on 5 May 2017, the date on

which the Share Option Scheme is conditionally adopted by

resolution of our Shareholders.
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(x)  Present status of the Share Option Scheme

(x) BRETERMN

Movements in the Share Options during the year were as FABRENSBHT -
follows:
Grant before the year 2021 2021 Z G2 1
No. of Share Options
BREHA
Before Adjustment* After Adjustment*
Exercise Exercise
Exercised Lapsed Exercised Lapsed price per price per
during during during during Share Share
the Year the Year Balance Balance the Year the Year (Before (After
Asat Granted (Before (Before before after (After (After Asat  adjustment  adjustment
1 January during 15 July 15 July 15 July 15 July 15 July 15July 31 December on 15 July on15July Exercise
Date of grant Participants 2021 the Year 2021)* 2021)* 2021* 2021 2021) 2021)* 2021 2021)* 2021)* period
BRORE  SROKE
FREAR  FRBAM 2021 RONE  FRETE  FABAM (R2021E  (Ro021%
R2021% (20215 (20215 TR1585 TR158% (2021 % (0215 R2021% 1R158 TR158
LT sk 18R ERSEE  TABRA) TAWEE)  2eW 28 TRNRA’  TAGRAF  nANE BN BB TAEER
(HKS) (HKS)
(B47) (B%7)
4duly 2017 Employees 2,055,000 - 1,241,000 90,000) 724,000 796,400 (89,500) - 706,900 128 1164 4July 2018-
(Notes 1,264 3) (aggregate) 3 July 2023
201757 74R [EB(53) 01857A48E
(it 2k3) 202357 A 3R
1,985,000 - (1,119,000) 90,000) 756,000 831,600 (21,500) - 810,100 128 1164 4July2019-
3 July 2024
019%784R%
2024573
2,740,000 - (728,000 (120,000 1,892,000 2,081,200 2,000 - 2,079,200 128 1164 4 July 2020-
3July 2025
020578482
20055 7R3R
6,760,000 - 3,088,000) (300,000 3,372,000 3,709,200 (113,000 - 3,596,200
23 July 2018 Mr. YANG Rongbing, 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000 1414 1285 23July2018-
(Notes 1,24 4) executive Director 22 July 2023
01857A2A RRERE N1857A2BAZ
(Wit12k4) H7E% 2023%7R228
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000 1414 1285 28July2019-
22 July 2024
019675230 %
202457 R 228
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000 1414 1285 28July 2020
22 July 2025
020%7F230%
2025%7R228
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
Subtotal
it 9,760,000 - (3,088,000) (300,000) 6,372,000 7,009,200 - - 6,896,200

the exercise price of the share options granted under the

Share Option Scheme and the number of Shares to be
allotted and issued upon full exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to the 6,372,000 outstanding share options
were adjusted on 15 July 2021 as a result of the 2021 Bonus
Issue as announced by the Company on 15 July 2021 (the
“Adjustment”).
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Grant during the year 2021 2021F FARH
No. of Share Options
BREZE
As at Granted Exercised Lapsed Asat Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December price
Date of grant  Participants 2021 the Year the Year the Year 2021 per Share  Exercise period
20215 20215
RHAH $8E 118 ERERE  FREAE  ERBAM 126318 SROFE TOHEHR
(HKS)
(%)
Directors
Ex
15July 2021 Mr. LI Xiangh - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 214 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027
(Notes 5,6 &7)  executive Director 20207 A158 2202747 A14H
WNETA5E FRHELE  B17ES - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 214 15July 2023 to 14 July 2008
(Hrit5 - 6%7) 202357 B15B 200857 A 148
- 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000 214 15 July 2024 to 14 July 2029
200457 A15H Z200957 A148
- 4,000000 - - 4,000,000
15July 2021 Ms. ZHANG Aiying, - 750,000 - - 750,000 214 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027
(Notes 5,6 & 7)  executive Director 202257 R15R 2202757 A 14H
WNETA5E REELT  HTEE - 750,000 - - 750,000 214 15.July 2023 to 14 July 2028
(W5 6%7) 20237 158 E202857 A148
- 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 214 15 July 2024 to 14 July 2029
200457 A15B £200957 A148
- 2500000 - - 2500000
15duy 2021 Mr.LUYi, - 900,000 - - 900,000 244 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027
(Notes 5,6 & 7)  executive Director 20227 A158 2202747 A 148
W1E7A15H BiE  BTES - 900,000 . . 900,000 214 15.July 2023 to 14 July 2028
(W5 - 6%7) 20237 A 158 E2028E7 A148
- 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000 244 15 July 2024 to 14 July 2029
20247 A15852020%7 A14H
- 3,000000 - - 3,000000
15July 2021 Mr. YANG Rongbing, - 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000 214 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027
(Notes 58 6)  executive Director 200257 1582202757148
WNETASE BREEE BT8R - 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000 244 15July 2023 to 14 July 2028
(Hi#sks) 202357 F15B 220087 A 148
- 1,400,000 - - 1,400,000 214 15 July 2024 to 14 July 2029
20047 A15B 2200957 A148
- 3500000 . - 3,500000
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No. of Share Options

BREZE
Asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Asat Exercise
1 January during during during 31 December price
Date of grant  Participants 2021 the Year the Year the Year 2021 per Share  Exercise period
R2021 % R2021%
RiRH $5% 1818 HRERE  FRERFE  FREXX 128318 SRARE IAEIR
(HKS)
(B¥T)
Other Employees
EfbfER
15 July 2021 Employees (aggregate) - 6,930,000 - - 6,930,000 2.14 15 July 2022 to 14 July 2027
(Notes5&6) (EE(A4T) 20027 R15A 2200757 A148
202157 A15H - 6,930,000 - - 6,930,000 2.4 15 July 2023 to 14 July 2028
(Hiztsk6) 2023%7 R15A 202857 A 14
- 9,240,000 - - 9,240,000 2.4 15 July 2024 to 14 July 2029
20047 R15H 2200957 A148
- 23,100,000 - - 23,100,000
Subtotal
NGE - 36,100,000 - - 36,100,000
Notes: Bist -

1)

The above share options are either vested on the date of
grant to two years or vested in one to three years from the
date of grant and are exercisable for a period of five years
commencing from the relevant vesting date and expiring at
the close of business on the last day of the five-year period.

The Company received a consideration of RMB1.00 from
each of the grantees for the share options granted on 4
July 2017. The Company also received a consideration of
RMB1.00 from Mr. YANG Rongbing for the share options
granted to him on 23 July 2018.

The closing price of the Shares on 3 July 2017, being the
business day immediately before the date on which the
options were granted, as quoted on the Stock Exchange was
HK$1.31.

The closing price of the Shares on 20 July 2018, being the
business day immediately before the date on which the
options were granted, as quoted on the Stock Exchange was
HK$1.40.
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The Share Options are exercisable for a period of five years
commencing from the vesting date and expiring at the close
of business on the last day of the five year period. Vesting
condition and exercise period of the share options are: (j) Not
more than 30% of the Share Options will be vested on 15
July 2022; not more than 30% of the Share Options will be
vested on 15 July 2023; and not more than 40% of the Share
Options will be vested on 15 July 2024.

The Company received a consideration of RMB1.00 from
each of the grantees.

The closing price of the Shares on 14 July 2021, being the
business day immediately before the date on which the
options were granted, as quoted on the Stock Exchange was
HK$2.08.

The grant of 9,500,000 Share Options to Mr. Li, Ms. Zhang
and Mr. Liu (each of them being a substantial shareholder) out
of the total of 36,100,000 Share Options granted on 15 July
2021 was beyond the Scheme Mandate Limit and had been
approved by the Shareholders at an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”) of the Company. Accordingly, the () specific
grant of 9,500,000 Share Options and (i) the refreshment of
10% limit (being 44,350,080 Shares) under the Share Option
Scheme were approved at the EGM held on 29 September
2021 and relevant listing approvals were granted by the Stock
Exchange on 4 October 2021.

No options were cancelled during the year.
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WA AFHMERE - ANEERBER
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BEIRRENS 12202457 15 AR E ©
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1.007T °

R 2021F7 A14 8 (BN 2 EHE IR
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B2021 F7 A5 BB HZ AR
36,100,0001) AR+ » T HAE -
RETREEE(FEREERR)Z
9,500,000 17 B A% # T 8 8 &t & 5% 1 R
B O ABRRAAR ARSI AS
(TR RIARE ) EHUEIER © Bt - ()
B BIIH% H19,500,00017 i A% 48 K (i) 52 5 8
A AERT BB T A910% R 58 (B144,350,080
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Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 27 October
2020 (the “Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share Award
Scheme are to further improve the corporate governance structure
and long-term incentive programme, maintain mutually sustainable
growth of the Company and individuals, attract and retain excellent
talents.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board,
the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten
(10) years commencing on the Adoption Date.

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion,
determine the criteria for any eligible participants to participate in
the Share Award Scheme as award holders in accordance with the
rules of the Share Award Scheme. An award holder may be granted
an award of Shares (the “Award Shares”). The Award Shares to
be granted under the Share Award Scheme are ordinary shares
(“Ordinary Shares”) in the capital of the Company. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 27 October 2020 for further
details of the Share Award Scheme.

In general, the Company will pay to the third party trustee (the
“Trustee”) monies and may give directions or a recommendation
to the Trustee to apply such amount of monies and/or such other
net amount of cash derived from Ordinary Shares held as part of
the funds of the trust to acquire existing Ordinary Shares from the
market. Such Ordinary Shares will be held on trust by the Trustee for
the relevant award holders. The Trustee shall not exercise any voting
rights in respect of any Ordinary Shares held in the trust and no
award holder is entitled to instruct the Trustee to exercise the voting
rights in respect of any unvested Award Shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the trustee purchased
an aggregate of 4,400,000 Shares of the Company from the market
at a total consideration of approximately HK$6.3 million (including
directly attributable incremental costs) and a total of 3,533,750 Award
Shares were granted to 10 eligible participants, including Directors
and employees on 29 January 2021 pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme. As a result of 2021 Bonus Issues, the number of Award
Shares issued were adjusted to 3,887,125 Shares, representing
approximately 0.88% of the total number of issued shares as at 31
December 2021.
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Movement of the Award Shares under the Share Award Scheme for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:
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HE2021F12A31BIEFE - R EEEFEET
FEEEIR (A B ANT

Number of Number of
award shares Award Shares
outstanding After After  outstanding
asat Award adjustment Vested adjustment asat
Category of 1 January during the on 15 July during the on15July 31 December
participants Date of grant Vesting date 2021 year 2021* year 2021* 2021
R2021F R20215F
1A1A R20216 #2021 12310
HRATRR 7R158 7A15H W RATRR
SEEEH RS HEAS RBRHEE FRERD #Egr FRCER REL RBROYE
Directors
Bz
In aggregate 29 January 2021 29 January 2021 - 2,200,000 2,420,000 (2,200,000) (2,420,000) -
At 021F18208 2021517298
Other Employees
HibfEE
In aggregate 29 January 2021 29 January 2021 - 1,333,750 1,467,125 (1,333,750) (1,467,125) -
At 2021F18298  202141H29A
Total - 3,533,750 3,887,125 (3,533,750) (3,887,125) -
#st
* Adjusted number of Share Awards as a result of 2021 Bonus Issue. * E 2021 F AT I 31T M FH AR (D SEEp B A -

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was
entered into or subsisted during the year.

Arrangements for the Directors to Purchase
Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the “Share Option Scheme” section and “Share
Award Scheme” section in this directors’ report and in Notes 32 and
33 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the
financial year or at the end of the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, its holding company or the subsidiaries of its holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

EESE

FA - ARBARGLATE 2 B HALMEAREP D %
BHER RITR T L S EEAAR
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
in Shares and Underlying Shares

To the knowledge of the Board, as at 31 December 2021, the
interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) (a) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
(b) which were required, under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to in that section, or (c) which were required

EERESTRAESRKREG KAHE
RO PERNER

MEBRCHA - N2021F12A318 » EFHAR
Al&EmITHRABRAR RS EMEBEEE (&
RAFEH R EEEGI)EXVER) /A% - RGN &
EREPES @QRIB(GES LS KFDEXVERE
TRESHIBAMEARNRR KB R ERIAR
(BIEREC(ER AR RN AE BRSO E ERR
REBRERIOXE)  KO)RB(EHFRPE K
B )5 352578 5 50 MO 5% 16 FT 15 & ac i O 2 sl ¢
B ROBBUEETRNVEMNS AR R KB ZFTH
BmBARIT -

under the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Approximate

Number of Number of percentage

Shares underlying to the issued

(including shares/ share capital

Name of Directors Nature of interests Award Shares) share options Total of the Company

(Notes 1 & 2) (Note 2) (Note 10)

RHHBE EARAT

(EERBRE) MRS, ERITREMH

BEpE EEME BREHA et BB

(FraF1k2) (Hriz2) (Fiz#10)

Mr. LI Xiangli Interests held jointly with another 251,783,400 (L) 9,500,000 261,283,400 58.91%
(Notes 2, 3 & 4) person (Note 7)
FRMEE Bt A+ H R R (Hi:t7)

(Bfzt2 - 3)%4) Interests of a controlled
corporation

XEmiEER

Interests of spouse

ffEms

Beneficial owner

EaSlEA
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Approximate

Number of Number of percentage
Shares underlying to the issued
(including shares/ share capital
Name of Directors Nature of interests Award Shares) share options Total of the Company
(Notes 1 & 2) (Note 2) (Note 10)
R EE HERT
(BRERBRT) HERD, BERITRAH
Y e EmtE BREZE #et L ESIE R
(Hizz1k2) (Hizt2) (Hiz10)
Ms. ZHANG Aiying Interests held jointly with another 251,783,400 (L) 9,500,000 261,283,400 58.91%
(Notes 2, 4 & 5) person (Note 7)
RERZL BEE M A T HFARKENER (H1727)
(B2 - 4%5) Interests of a controlled
corporation
XA EER
Interests of spouse
s
Beneficial owner
ERBEAA
Mr. LIUYi Interests held jointly with another 251,783,400 (L) 9,500,000 261,283,400 58.91%
(Notes 2 & 6) person (Note 7)
SRk A (a2 k6) EE M A T HFARKERNER (Ki:#7)
Interests of a controlled
corporation
XA EER
Beneficial owner
ERMAA
Mr. YANG Rongbing Beneficial owner 2,739,000 (L) 6,800,000 (L) 9,539,000 2.15%
BRI ERBEAA (Note 8) (Note 9)
(Hr:t8) (H17£9)
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares and
underlying shares.

There was a duplication of interests of 249,913,400 Shares (increased
from 227,194,000 Shares to 249,913,400 Shares as a result of 2021
Bonus Issue in 2021 on the basis of one bonus share for every ten
shares) among Mr. LI Xiangli (155,067,000 Shares), Ms. ZHANG
Alying (54,421,400 Shares) and Mr. LIU Yi (40,425,000 Shares).

There was a duplication of interests of 1,870,000 Award Shares
(increased from 1,700,000 Award Shares to 1,870,000 Award Shares
as a result of 2021 Bonus Issue on the basis of one bonus share
for every ten shares) among Mr. LI Xiangli (880,000 Award Shares),
Ms. ZHANG Aiying (440,000 Award Shares) and Mr. LIU Yi (550,000
Award Shares).

There was a duplication of interests of 9,500,000 Share Options
(granted on 15 July 2021, the grant of which is approved at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 29 September 2021
and relevant listing approval were granted by the Stock Exchange on
4 October 2021) among Mr. LI Xiangli (4,000,000 Share Options), Ms.
ZHANG Alying (2,500,000 Share Options) and Mr. LIU Yi (3,000,000
Share Options).

On 31 January 2016, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr.
LIU Yi entered into an acting-in-concert deed to acknowledge and
confirmed that they are parties acting in concert in respect of each
of the members of the Group during and since the three years ended
31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 and continue after the date of
the deed. Pursuant to the deed, Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi
shall support Mr. LI Xiangli’'s decisions on material matters in relation
to the operation and management of the Group by exercising their
voting rights at the meetings of the shareholders and boards of the
members of the Group in accordance with the decision of Mr. LI
Xiangli. For details, please refer to the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders — Our Controlling Shareholders Acting
in Concert” in the Prospectus. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli,
Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi are deemed to be interested in the
Shares which are interested by each other.

Leon Comerstone Investment Holding Limited (“Leon Investment”) is
beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. LI Xiangli is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Leon
Investment.
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(10)

Ms. ZHANG Aiying is the spouse of Mr. LI Xiangli. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli and Ms. ZHANG Aiying are deemed to be
interested in the Shares which are interested by each other.

Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited (“Swan Stone”) is beneficially
and wholly-owned by Ms. ZHANG Aiying. By virtue of the SFO, Ms.
ZHANG Alying is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Swan
Stone.

Hawk Flying Investment Holding Limited (“Hawk Flying”) is beneficially
and wholly-owned by Mr. LIU VYi. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LIU Yi is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Hawk Flying.

Included in total number of Shares of 251,783,400 were 880,000,
440,000 and 550,000 Award Shares (increased from 800,000,
400,000 and 500,000 to 880,000, 440,000 and 550,000 Award
Shares respectively as a result of 2021 Bonus Issue on the basis
of one bonus share for every ten shares) granted to Mr. LI Xingli,
Ms. ZHANG Aiying and Mr. LIU Yi respectively on 29 January 2021
pursuant to the Shares Award Scheme.

Included in total number of Shares of 2,739,000 (increased from
2,490,000 Shares to 2,739,000 Shares as a result of 2021 Bonus
Issue on the basis of one bonus share for every ten shares) were
550,000 Award Shares (increased from 500,000 Award Shares
to 550,000 Award Shares as a result of 2021 Bonus Issue on the
basis of one bonus share for every ten shares) granted to Mr. YANG
Rongbing on 29 January 2021 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

Such 3,300,000 Share Options (adjusted from 3,000,000 Share
Options to 3,300,000 Share Options as a result of 2021 Bonus
Issue on the basis of one bonus share for every ten shares), each
entitles its holder to subscribe for one Share, were granted to Mr.
YANG Rongbing (who was re-designated from an independent non-
executive Director as an executive Director and appointed as the vice
chairman of the Company on 23 July 2018) on 23 July 2018.

On 15 July 2021, additional 3,500,000 Share Options, each entitles
its holder to subscribe for one Share, were granted to Mr. YANG
Rongbing.

As at 31 December 2021, the issued share capital of the Company
was 443,509,800 Shares.

(10)
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Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, as at 31 December 2021, there were no interests and
short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required,
under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
in that section, or were required under the Model Code to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in
the Shares

So far as the Directors are aware, as of 31 December 2021, the
following corporations/persons (other than Directors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests of 5% or more in the issued
Shares or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Br EXATIEBREEINRLERATRA - 72021412
A31H MEBEERARFESTHAERAEAR
A E (AR AE (E& RGEHF REIEF)NE
XVER) BB ~ MBI (D sk &M B P A IRIEGE
H M HRE GG )EXVERET R E8D B BME RN T
MBS e e AR (BERIE(GES M EK
BB BIESUR ZIESR AR MR IUAR) - 3K
BIEGE A LRG0 ) E 35216 B E B IGFT1E
ErfaiEs AR - SR RCEESFREME A
REI R RFTHER AR ©

EFERRRBROFHERHES

MEZMH - HE2021F128318 » THlA7F/
AT (BERARGHSTTHRABBRIN B #ET
B BN P ESRBE(ES MBAEIKRADE
XVELSE2 K 535 BRI SCBTRI AN A B) R Bt 22 AT i
7 URIB(EHF R HAE AN )FES36IKBRARA A
HBERELMTREERR5% A LR

Number of Approximate

Shares percentage

(including Award to the issued

Shares and share capital

Name of Shareholders Nature of interests Share Options) of the Company

RBEE HARRAF

(BFERB RO R EEITREN

BREE BB REmME MBIRE) BRES T

(Note 1) (Note 11)

(Hizt1) (KizE11)

Ms. WEI Yajuan (Notes 2 & 6) Interests of spouse 261,283,400 (L) 58.91%

BB (M2 k6) [ h e

Leon Investment (Notes 3 & 6) Beneficial owner 159,947,000 (L) 36.06%
Leon Investment(#/:£3X%6) EmEAA

Swan Stone (Notes 4 & 6) Beneficial owner 57,361,400 (L) 12.93%
Swan Stone( #1545 6) EnEEA

Hawk Flying (Notes 5 & 6) Beneficial owner 43,975,000 (L) 9.92%

Hawk Flying(#77£656) E=MmAA
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Number of Approximate
Shares percentage
(including Award to the issued
Shares and share capital
Name of Shareholders Nature of interests Share Options) of the Company
RBEE HARAF
(EFERB RO R ERITREN
BRRMEEB R IBRRE) BRED T
(Note 1) (Note 11)
(HizE1) (KizE11)
China Certification & Inspection Interests of a controlled corporation 46,500,000 (L) 10.48%
Group Co., Ltd. (“CCIC”") (Notes 7 & 8)
P EIRERRE (RE)BRAA R EE R
([ ERERE SRR ) (HF7R8)
China Inspection Company Limited (“CIC”) Interests of a controlled corporation 46,500,000 (L) 10.48%
(Notes 7 & 8)
PERBARAB(HRRAT ) (H7K8) X EEER
China Dragon Inspection & Certification (H.K.) Beneficial owner 46,500,000 (L) 10.48%
Limited (“China Dragon”) (Notes 7 & 8)
HhEERRRE(BB)BRAR EREAA
(T3 (H7E7R8)
Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Beneficial owner 40,126,583 (L) 9.05%
Master Fund Limited (“Asian Equity”)
(Notes 9 & 10)
Asian Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio  E#E A A
Master Fund Limited ([ Asian Equity |)
(Mfz#9%10)
RAYS Capital Partners Limited Investment Manager 40,126,583 (L) 9.05%
(“RAYS Capital”) (Notes 9 & 10)
EREABRAR([ERER]) REKIE
(Mfz#9%10)
RUAN David Ching Chi (“Mr. David RUAN”) Interest of a controlled corporation 40,126,583 (L) 9.05%

(Notes 9 & 10)
RUAN David Ching Chi

([David RUAN%EA 1) (B15495%10)

Notes:

M

@

EREPREl: o

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Ms. WEI Yajuan is the spouse of Mr. LIU Yi. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. WEI Yajuan is deemed to be interested in the Shares which are

interested by Mr. LIU Vi.

it

Q)

@

BXFHRILIEZA TR T TR

RIEBLTRBIMELMERE - RECGESF R
BI&H) - BREBL TR AR EHEE

AR PR A o
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Leon Investment is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LI Xiangli.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. LI Xiangli is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Leon Investment.

Swan Stone is beneficially and wholly-owned by Ms. ZHANG Aiying.
By virtue of the SFO, Ms. ZHANG Alying is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Swan Stone.

Hawk Flying is beneficially and wholly-owned by Mr. LIU VYi. By virtue
of the SFO, Mr. LIU Yi is deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Hawk Flying.

There was a duplication of interests of 249,913,400 Shares (increased
from 227,194,000 Shares to 249,913,400 Shares as a result of
2021 Bonus Issue on the basis of one bonus share for every ten
shares) among Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Alying, Mr. LIU YI, Ms. WEI
Yajuan, Leon Investment, Swan Stone and Hawk Flying. Of these
Shares, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi and Ms. WEI
Yajuan were deemed interested in the 155,067,000 Shares (held
by Leon Investment), 54,421,400 Shares (held by Swan Stone) and
40,425,000 Shares (held by Hawk Flying), respectively.

There was a duplication of interests of 1,870,000 Award Shares
(increased from 1,700,000 Award Shares to 1,870,000 Award Shares
as a result of 2021 Bonus Issue on the basis of one bonus share
for every ten shares) among Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr.
LIU Y1, Ms. WEI Yajuan, Leon Investment, Swan Stone and Hawk
Flying. Of these Award Shares, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Alying, Mr.
LIU Yi and Ms. WEI Yajuan were deemed interested in the 830,000
Award Shares (held by Mr. LI Xiangli), 440,000 Award Shares (held
by Ms. ZHANG Alying) and 550,000 Award Shares (held by LIU Yi)
respectively.

There was a duplication of interests of 9,500,000 Shares Options
among Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Y1, Ms. WEI Yajuan,
Leon Investment, Swan Stone and Hawk Flying. Of these Shares
Options, Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi and Ms. WEI
Yajuan were deemed interested in the 4,500,000 Shares Options
(held by Mr. LI Xiangli), 2,500,000 Shares Options (held by Ms.
ZHANG Aiying) and 3,000,000 Shares Options (held by Mr. LIU Yi)
respectively.
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Leon Investment HFE R M EEEZT R EH
A o RBCGEFRHEERN) - FRFEEERE
HLeon Investment FTH54 HIAR (D #E A = o

Swan StoneHREBR LT EXZ L2 EMA - IRIE
(BHEREBEEN)  REELZ TR AR Swan
StonefT 8 AR R A s o

Hawk Flying@ 21 £ EX N2 EH A - RIE
(EFHMEERN) - 2050 % £ 345 B Hawk
Flying i3 BB P HE B #E2s o

FRFEE  RERLLT - BPkE - BB
%z £ - Leon Investment * Swan Stone & Hawk
Flying 25 45 # /5 249,913,400 % f& 15 ( A1z & 1 %
B8 19 81T — AR AT AR ) B AR HE 1T #2021 F AL AR 3%
1T H 227,194,000 J% % {7 3 %= 249,913,400 A% %
MINER - RZERDF - TAAEE  RE
EAR L B A RERAELR 22+ #E4R R Leon
Investment + Swan Stone &Hawk Flying% Bl FT#F
A #9155,067,000/% f& 1% ~ 54,421,400 8% i 15 I
40,425,000/% A 7 H #E 5 #E 2 ©

FRFLEE  RERLLT - BPkE - BB
%+ - Leon Investment * Swan Stone X Hawk
Flying 8 48 # 5 1,870,000 % 22 % (5 (E 2 5 1
A& A& 17 84T — AR AL % ) E AE 3 17 592021 S AL X
E%77H1,700,0000% 22 Ep % 17 15 2= 1,870,000 % £
BIAR ) MR - RZERBRMN T - FRFE
£ REHRZL - 2IPEE RIS L TR
75 RBIIFA880,000 A% £ Bl B% 17 ( Fa 2= 1) 1| 58 A4 F5
B) ~ 440,000/% ELREIAR 19 (BHRB R L THE) &
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(7) China Dragon is a 99.88% owned subsidiary of CIC, which is a 75%
owned subsidiary of CCIC. By virtue of the SFO, CIC and CCIC are
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by China Dragon.

8) There was a duplication of interests of 46,500,000 Shares among
China Dragon, CIC and CCIC.

9 Asian Equity is a 100% owned subsidiary of RAYS Capital, which
is 45.60% owned by Mr. David RUAN. By virtue of the SFO, RAYS
Capital and Mr. David RUAN are deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Asian Equity.

(10) There was a duplication of interest of 40,126,583 Shares among Asian
Equity, RAYS Capital and Mr. David RUAN.

(11) As at 31 December 2021, the issued share capital of the Company
was 443,509,800 Shares.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at 31 December 2021, no other persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) owned interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO or interests or short positions required to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO.

Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and as
far as the Directors are aware, as at the date of this directors’ report,
at least 25% of the total number of issued Shares of the Company is
held by the public pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands (being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated), which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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(11)  HR2021%F12A31H  AQARBETHRAAE
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Tax Relief

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The customer base of the Company mainly consists of global giants
and industry leaders, covering a wider range of industries which
include energy and cleaning energy, commodity, environmental
protection and carbon neutrality services etc. Our suppliers mainly
include equipment suppliers and landlords.

In the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue.

In the year under review, the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for less than 15% of the Group’s total cost of sales.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close
associates or Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total number
of issued Shares had any interest in the five largest customers or five
largest suppliers of the Group during the year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Other than the financial risk management objective and policies as
disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements, some significant
risks and uncertainties affecting the Group are outlined below. They
are not exhaustive and there may be other additional risks and
uncertainties which are now unknown or immaterial to the Group but
could become material in future.

Our business and operations involve certain risks and uncertainties,
many of which are beyond our control. Management oversees the
risks and mitigate them by implementing robust business processes.
These risks can be broadly categorized as (1) business and industry
risk; (2) economic and political risk; (3) financial risk; (4) people risk;
and (5) operational risk.
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Business and Industry Risk

The Group depends on a limited number of customers for a
substantial portion of our revenue and may not be able to successfully
maintain our business relationship with these customers. Our
expansion plans or future acquisitions may entail certain risks and
challenges.

Economic and Political Risk

The economic, political and social conditions of regions we operate
in could affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Any slowdown in the global economy may affect the
demand for energy and commodities and result in a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Financial Risk

The Group is exposed to discontinued or reduced preferential tax
treatments, interest rate, foreign currency in the normal course of
business.

Operational Risk

The Group’s operations may be interrupted by the occurrence of
unexpected events like natural disasters, strikes, epidemics and
occupational hazards that may or may not be under the Group’s
control.

Furthermore, the widespread community transmission of COVID-19
may cause disruption in supply chain, and interruption of business
operations.
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Relationship with Customers and Suppliers

Our business relationship with our customers has proven to be
lasting. We believe that impartial and high-quality testing and
inspection are critically important for our customers. To better
serve the business needs from our customers, we are dedicated to
delivering reliable testing and inspection services supported by quality
control and operational measures consistent with statutory and
industrial standards, which are strictly followed by our employees. In
the meantime, we have an experienced sales and marketing team in
each of our service centers to better understand and serve the needs
of our customers.

We generally maintain a list of approved suppliers. We review this
list on an annual basis and consider whether any supplier should
be removed or added. In selecting a new supplier, we generally
consider whether the supplier candidate has passed the relevant
quality authentication, obtained the relevant production permit, and/
or received favorable recommendations. We typically maintain at least
two suppliers for each type of our major equipment, instruments or
required services to minimize potential disruption of our operation,
maintain sourcing stability and secure competitive prices from
suppliers.

Employees

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had 2,112 (2020: 1,653)
employees in total. The Group’s employee compensation includes
base salary, bonuses and cash subsidies. In general, the Group
determines employee compensation based on each employee’s
performance, qualifications, position and seniority. Other agreed
employee benefits includes pension scheme, medical insurance, on-
job training, education subsidy and other social security and paid
leaves stipulated under the relevant jurisdiction of places of operation.
The Company maintained good relationship with its employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is based
on their merit, qualifications and competence. The Company has
adopted the share option scheme as well as the share award
scheme as the incentives to Directors and eligible employees. The
emoluments of the Directors are recommended and decided by the
remuneration committee and the Board respectively, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction which were exempted from
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules. Details are disclosed
in Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Group was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Related Party Transactions

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements, of which certain of transactions
also constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but were
exempted from disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules.
Details are disclosed in Note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

We uphold high standards and meet relevant requirements under
applicable laws or ordinances when conducting our business.

For the year, the Company was in compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the Company in all
material respects.

Directors’ Report

ESERE

FERXS

FA - AREFILERRARECEMRADIRE
FTURBENRBERZRIFEEER S - FIFHERN
AR B TSR M E43

4
s

HE2021F12 31 B I FEHE - AEBWERT
VEREAEEER ARG LSS AL EZSME
BEBAEGFNEEARY -

BB L X5

NEBEREZ2021F12 A31 B I FE 5] L HRFHE
FRGEIRA IS REM 43 e BTXR
SIVERC ETHRA)E14AZIE FTHEER R RE
(CEMRADHREAT AR BENEER SIS EH
HER D o FEEBRERA M ISREM 5243

BPIREER

BANAREERBEHSFE - XN EMEENK
BB AEREARE

FA - ARABETEMAERTHAARRAEKN
FENBERAREAR

PR S RERIERERAT « 2021 FERE

89



90

Directors’ Report

ESERE

Significant Subsequent Events after the
Year

The Group had no significant events after the reporting year up to the
date of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) of the Board in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22
of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee now comprises three
members, namely Mr. LIU Hoi Keung (Chairman), Mr. WANG Zichen
and Mr. ZHAO Hong, all being the independent non-executive
Directors.

The Audit Committee has discussed with the management of the
Group and reviewed this annual report and the financial results of
the Group for the year. It also discussed with the management of
the Group and reviewed the financial controls, risk management and
internal control system of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group which are
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards for the year have been audited by Deliotte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deliotte”), the auditor of the Company.

Auditor

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 27
September 2019, Emst & Young was removed and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu was appointed as auditor of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
who will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the 2022 AGM. Save as disclosed above, there have been no other
changes of independent auditor for the preceding three years.
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The Publication of the Annual Report T 88 F ],
This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available RNFEFRP R ARG AT RARQAE
on the Company’s website at www.leontest.com and the website of www.leontest.com K B 22 BT 48 Uk www.hkexnews.hk
the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk. BT o
On behalf of the Board REEZEZE
Mr. Yang Rongbing HITEE
Executive Director BRELE
PRC, 30 March 2022 AR - 202293 A30H
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About the Report

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited is pleased to publish the 2021
Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report (the “Report”).
The Report discloses the Group’s management and policies, practical
actions and important results in promoting environmental and
social sustainable development, including the performance on the
environment, employees, products and services, supply chain and
community activities. For corporate governance information, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report contained in the Annual
Report for details.

Reporting Scope

The reporting period is from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
(“the Reporting Period”). The reporting scope of the Report covers
the principal business operations of the Group, including (1) testing
services; (2) surveying services; (3) witnessing and ancillary services;
(4) technical and consulting services.

All information disclosed in the Report is derived from the Group’s
official documents, internal data, statistical reports and stakeholder
surveys. Unless otherwise specified, the amounts shown in the
Report are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HKD).

Reporting Guide

The Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) under
Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The environmental and social key performance
indicators (“KPIs”) are disclosed in the Report pursuant to the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs and Reporting Guidance
on Social KPIs of the Stock Exchange, respectively. The Group has
considered the applicable reporting principles and the results of
materiality assessment to determine the scope of disclosures in the
Report. Details of the reporting principles applied and the materiality
assessment are elaborated in the section Reporting Principles and
Section 1.3 Materiality Assessment below, respectively.
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Reporting Principles

Reporting Principle
HERA

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

HE R

Application in the Report
ERAREKE

Materiality

E- i

Quantitative

g1t

Consistency

Fii

Consistency

The Report carries out assessment on material issues to better identify and set the priorities
of significant environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues in our work. Please refer to
Section 1.3 Materiality Assessment for details.

HRERRTEENZEN M  UEHETERZATELZEEEZNRE - H£8 REIAESC)
o FER2RF1 M EE MM -

Based on the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide issued by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange and relevant preparation principles, the Report describes, defines and,
where appropriate, provides comparable quantitative data on quantitative key performance
indicators. Please refer to the relevant chapters of the Report for the calculation methods and
reference standards of quantitative data.

ERBRZPATIENIRE 8 RERMEHES| IARBERREER - RNREHSCAREN
BIRETTHANATE  TEHEEBATRHTAEEBRNE(CEE - EES(CBEAES
EN G| BRENF RN AR S EMEE -

The Report objectively presents both positive and negative sustainability performance during
the Reporting Period in a way of disclosure which is fair and impartial.
REBRHATAENEER - BRERHAEEAREBENARFERRETEEY -

The Group has a long history of adopting consistent statistical methods in its disclosure that
enable meaningful comparison of ESG data in reports. During the Reporting Period, the Group
disclosed more key performance indicators and information to provide stakeholders with more
comprehensive information on sustainable development performance.

REBRPKA—BOBRBRT A CHRETESCGHRBEAIETERENLE - AREH
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B HEREARS

Access to the Report and Feedback

The Report is made available online unless specific requests are
received for the Report in printed form. You can access the Group’s
official website (http://www.leontest.com) or the website of the Stock
Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) for an electronic copy. The
Report is available in both Chinese and English versions. The English
version shall prevail in case of any discrepancy between the two
Versions.

Your opinions on the ESG Report are highly valued by us. You are
most welcome to provide your views and suggestions via our website
(http://www.leontest.com).

Board Statement

2021 was not only the first year of China’s 14th Five Year Plan,
but also the first year since the goal of “carbon neutrality” was
announced. Ever since China put forward the goal to achieve “carbon
emission peak by 2030 and carbon neutrality by 2060” in September
2020, national and regional policies have been frequently introduced
in an effort to make an overall plan to achieve the goal of carbon
peaking and carbon neutrality, which fully demonstrated China’s
determination to achieve this significant strategic goal.

China Leon has always led by the “long-termism” corporate value
and has paid great attention to the sustainable development. Under
central government’s decision and overall plan to achieve “carbon
peaking and carbon neutrality”, the comprehensive service market
for green and low-carbon development is embracing rapid growth.
We also size up the situations by integrating the ESG sustainable
development concept into our long-term development strategy.
Building on the strategies of “2+X” business expansion and ESG
sustainable development, we further deepen the direction of
sustainable development and boost the long-term and healthy growth
of the Company, so as to create and share more values with the
society.
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During the Reporting Period, we kept strengthening sustainability
building and stepped up strategic initiatives in new business planning,
R&D and innovation, staffing, etc., so as to devise a plan to ensure
the Company to grow faster in all aspects. We committed more
resources to our major strategies in the ESG field to make extensive
planning for clean energy, environmental protection and carbon asset
technical services. In February 2021, we acquired high-quality targets
in the environmental testing field and began to provide environmental
monitoring and testing services related to ecological monitoring and
environmental technology consulting. In November, we officially
launched the one-stop Leak Detection and Repair (LDAR) service,
further expanding its comprehensive service capacity in environmental
protection. In November, the Company also officially established the
Climate Change and Sustainable Development Business Division to
further extend our services to carbon neutrality. We further provided
customers with comprehensive solutions such as carbon peaking and
carbon neutrality consulting and technological services, carbon asset
development and trading services, ESG consulting and technological
services, and low-carbon comprehensive IT solution services to assist
our customers in low-carbon transformation and development. So
far, having focused on energy and commodity, the Company has
extended the “X” business to the ESG fields such as clean energy,
environmental protection and carbon neutrality services. It reaped
remarkable results of the implementation of the “2+X” strategy has
reaped remarkable results, making a positive contribution to China’s
goal of reaching carbon peaking and carbon neutrality.
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To cope with the rapid development of the new businesses, the
Company continued to expand its talent pool and the Group’s
headcount increased by 459. The Company adopts a people-oriented
approach by paying more attention to its employees, advocating
the concept of sustainable development among the Company
and individuals, and sharing the achievements of the economic
development with its employees. On the one hand, we continued
to commit more resources to our pool of skilled people such as
management trainees. On the other hand, we kept improving our
corporate governance structure and long-term incentive mechanism.
By continuously committing resources to the equity employee
incentive scheme, we provide incentives and rewards for the core
technicians and key business staff for their great contributions
to the Company. Building on effective and efficient remuneration
mechanisms, we effectively balanced the interests of shareholders,
the Company and key team members to create a shared interest
community for sustainable development of the Company.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company has long been
focusing on the environmental, social and governance issues. In
2021, led by the Board which was in charge of the overall ESG
management, the Group fulfilled its social responsibilities, carefully
reviewed the identified important ESG issues, played an active role in
the reporting progress to provide reference for corporate governance
and risk management, and regularly reviewed the promotion of ESG
actions and the achievement of objectives.

The Board oversees and manages the Group’s ESG strategies and
issues mainly in the following ways:

o Management system for sustainable development: We
have developed a three-level management system consisting
of decision-making, management and execution, and clearly
defined the functions and responsibilities of each level. The
Board has established a special ESG working team to boost
effective communications among the Board, relevant business
departments and subsidiaries as well as the actions taken.
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° Development of strategies and action plans: With the
assistance of ESG working team, the Board determines ESG
risks and opportunities of strategic significance to the business
development of the Group, and formulates strategies,
objectives and action plans for sustainable development
accordingly.

° Engagement with stakeholders: We sort out different
stakeholders and communicate with them through a number
of channels. Every year, we invite stakeholders to participate
in ESG-related materiality assessment and feedback through
surveys.

° Risk and materiality assessment: The Group has
developed processes for materiality assessment to identify,
assess and rank ESG material issues based on external
data (such as survey results from stakeholders, information
disclosed by peers and the latest industry practices) and
internal data (such as internal assessment on the issues’
relevance to and impact on the Group’s business). The Board
reviews and evaluates the identified issues.

° Risk management and internal control: The Board has
set up a risk management and internal control system to
manage relevant risks and opportunities in the Group’s
business. Meanwhile, we have established a systematic
internal supervision mechanism to supervise the management,
strategy and effectiveness of actions, achievement of goals
and compliance of ESG-related issues.

The Company’s performance in sustainable development not only has
a far-reaching impact on its long-term development, but also relates
to the diversified demands of stakeholders for the time being as well as
to the growing and the creating of value together with the society in
the future.

CENAHEFRRATMEHEREERAFR
FE  BOEEE THNEEEENSZ THR &
PERRM GO R FAEREEEANE -

Rk HSRERRE

FEBBRITHIE  E=SHEESGTE
PEABBT - EEHARBEHERAS
BEHMERNESCER R#E - WIHE
HE RSB R R - BRRITEEE

NBEEFAEERE  BETRMEBEES L
BRZEBRREETENER BFR
PIFpBFE N SRR ERBRHE T A2 HIR
BodHeghkEamBENEZEFERER
g8 -

Bk EEMTML  SEGE TE2 N
fEmig - ERSNERE R (12K 5 M 5188
FOREER  ATRENER R&EHT
FI1ER) RAFER (Pl ERE AR E
XA R EMAETHRE)
HESGERMZBEETHA - FFEMYE
Fr- EFEHUERANZBETERN LT
fi e

BREEERAREE EFSRIARE
B R ABES R BEEXEEH A
Rl REEETER - R HFIRELT
RHAEE B G - WESGHERIEER
EE - BELRTHARME  BRERLE
METEETERER

-
%

FERRBIZERARAR ¢ 2021 FEHE

97



98

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HEREARS

In the future, the Group will continue to focus on the “ESG sustainable
development” as its key development direction, enhance its
sustainability building, and integrate sustainable development into its
business operation and long-term strategic development. The Group
will capitalize on the synergy of various business segments, integrate
resources, focus on the ESG-related fields such as clean energy,
environmental protection and carbon neutrality services. We fully fuffill
market demands, offer innovative testing services, actively provide
customers with more green, sustainable development strategies for
efficiency improvement, energy conservation and emission reduction,
and empower the industry to transform into an eco and low-carbon
one. Furthermore, we will be fully committed to the “long-termism”
corporate value, enhance our strength in R&D, nurture outstanding
staff, fulfill the responsibilities and obligations as a corporate citizen,
SO as to enhance our brand creditability, further cement our leading
position in the industry and strive to build the Group as an industry
benchmark in China.
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Sustainability Management

11

Sustainability Management Structure

The Group has set up a systematic sustainable
development management framework that comprises
a three-level management mechanism for decision-
making, management and execution, for carrying out
sustainable development actions smoothly.

The Board
ey

Guiding T Reporting
Rt \L i ¥R

ESG working team
ESGT{EEFX

!

Relevant business units Subsidiaries

ey (R FNC]

Rk HSRERRE

IFERREE

1.1

FEEREERE

SEEY T -ERXRNAURKERR
EHERE - UBOREK - EEMAIT
R = REIEME] - B ATREER
TEMIBFEE -

( Decision-making level J

REKE

V4
Formulation of ESG strategy and management

policies at the group level.
BELEEMESGEH R « BEMESHIE -

Management level
EEE

V]
Promulgation and implementation of various ESG

policies and guidelines.
B E B S TBESGEUR BRI S) -

Execution level
AT

\
Formulating relevant ESG procedures and

implementing them in specific businesses and

task based on the Group’s policy.
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Sustainability Management Structure
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The Board is responsible for ESG strategic decision-
making and formulation and takes full responsibility for
environmental, social and governance management
and reporting. The internal ESG working team,
composed of members from various functional
departments (e.g. finance department, human
resources department and quality assurance
department), subsidiaries and business units, is
responsible for formulating and promoting the
implementation of sustainable development policies.
The working team not only offers assistance and
advice to the Board, including reviewing policies and
measures related to sustainable development and
assessing sustainable development risks, but also acts
as an effective communication channel between the
Board and its regional subsidiaries and business units.

In addition, China Leon has established a set of
complete ESG management mechanism and related
policies on the group level, such as corporate
social responsibility policy, environmental protection
policy, human rights policy, health and safety policy,
information security policy, anti-fraud and anti-bribery
policy, media, public participation and donation
policy, etc., providing a framework and direction for
sustainable development issues at the group level,
and encouraging subsidiaries and business units of
the Group to further develop relevant procedures and
plans suitable for their specific business conditions to
implement these policies.
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Stakeholder Engagement 1.2 R=EEEESE

As the Group’s business operations and development
affect various types of stakeholders, the Group strives
to communicate with them effectively by various ways
to obtain a better understanding of their concerns and
expectations with a view to improving the Group’s
sustainability strategies and performance.

Stakeholder engagement is one of the processes of
the materiality assessment carried out by the Group.
The Group identified the following six groups of major
stakeholders by taking into accounts of various factors
including relevance, impact and reliance:
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Major stakeholders Areas of concern Communication means
FEFRERE XS BEANX
Investors Return on investment Annual general meetings

Business plans, growth and
development

Disclosure and transparency of
corporate information

Sustainability development strategies

REHE REDE
X5t ERNER
RAEEHBEEENE
BEST E9ES

Customers Provision of fair and high-quality
professional services
Data security and customer privacy
Customer feedback and
communication

BFE REQT - BE - EXHORE
BEZEREPILE
BEPREERER

Interim and annual reports

Results announcements

Official company website

Communication via investor mailbox

Corporate communication (e.g. letters/
circulars to investors)
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hEA R FERE
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NEIE T #Euh

REEBEER

REEA(MBUREE BN - FEK)

Customer service centre

Daily operations, meetings and
interactions

Customer visits

Service hotline and email feedback
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Major stakeholders

Areas of concern

Communication means

FERFEREE BEEE BEARN
Suppliers Economic growth Supplier access and evaluation
Fair and transparent procurement Daily operations, meetings and
process interactions
Site visits
HrEm RBR R R R A SRR
A - ERHRRERRE AREE g2k
BEHER
Employees Remuneration package and staff Performance evaluation
welfare Regular trainings and activities
Occupational health and work safety  Internal system and email
Career development Communication meetings in a
Corporate culture democratic way
(== SR ETIEN BT
H&%&E&ﬁi EHRSE I B E B
BERE A8 R e B A
PEXE REEAEH

Public and Media

NSRS

Government bodies

BUFH#E

Support for development of
communities where we operate
Social and environmental protection

responsibilities
XIFEE Mt RER
HeRRERERE

Compliance with Listing Rules, and
other relevant laws and regulations

Corporate governance and risk
management

Corporate development and economic

benefits
Sustainability development strategies
B EAR B RARREE FOER
rEELRERER
ﬁ%é’*)ﬁ&%&%ﬁﬂﬁé
AIREERE
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Corporate news release
Response to media enquiries
Press conferences and interviews
Community engagements
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Regular reports
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1.3 EEMFE

As part of the ESG management and reporting ERIRSE e REANEERRK

process, the Group carried out identification,
assessment and ranking of the materiality of

SRFN D AREERSH
AR TAIREERBAEER LR

sustainable development issues during the Reporting Bl - FEEAPE o

Period.

Materiality Assessment Process

EERMFMEARR

|dentification

=l

Assessment

¥

Ranking

71353

Identify a number of sustainable development issues for the Group by referring to
the nature of the Group’s business, strategic planning, ESG reporting guidelines,

etc.
SREEEHE - BERE - ESCHEE3S  BAETASETRERRE
$E -

Invite, through a questionnaire survey, internal and external stakeholders to
assess and provide suggestions on the identified sustainable development issues,
and conduct analysis on and evaluate the survey findings.

BBRASHEE - BBEARR - SNEBAIERARREE B BRI H ) AT REE AT
B RHER  UHATERETONETME -

Rank 20 ESG issues based on both the materiality to stakeholders and the
materiality to the Group’s business for drawing a materiality matrix, of which
approval was obtained from the Board of Directors.
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During the identification process, we identified a
series of materiality issues regarding the sustainable
development of the Group by referring to the nature
of the Group’s business, strategic planning, ESG
reporting guidelines, etc. On this basis, we added
supplemental information with reference to the
following aspects, and finally generated a complete list
of issues:

o We referred to the latest regional and global
information that was highly relevant and
material to the Group’s business operations
and development. For example, we referred to
the key risks arising from the current economic,
social, environmental and technological
situations mentioned in the Global Risks Report
published by the World Economic Forum;

° We referred to the information disclosed by our
peers and benchmarked as a reference to the
latest industry practices and trends;

o The ESG working team conducted an internal
evaluation on the Group’s performance and
impact on the related issues.

During the evaluation process, the Group
communicated effectively with key stakeholders by
various approaches, and invited internal and external
stakeholders through a questionnaire survey to assess
and rank on the identified sustainable development
issues and advise accordingly.
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During the ranking process, based on the above
analysis and information as well as the materiality
to stakeholders and the materiality to the Group’s
business, we ranked 20 ESG issues, such as climate
change, compliance operation, customer services and
employee rights and interests, and drew a materiality
matrix, which was approved by the Board of Directors.
The ranking was divided into high materiality issues,
medium materiality issues and low materiality issues.
The specific analysis findings are as follows:

Materiality Matrix
EEMERE

Materiality to stakeholder
BN @SN EE

Materiality to shareholder

HERRMNEE T
Social Environmental
e RN
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High-materiality issues

BEEMEE

Medium-materiality issues

HEEMRE

Low-materiality issues

BEEEMERE

4 Climate change and carbon 3

neutrality
SRR B b B AR AN
8 Occupational health and 5
safety
BEREENZD 6
11 Professional qualification and
ethics
BEXEEMEBERT 7
12 Customer services
B R 9
17 Board governance
Exgne
18  Compliance operation 10
BRKLE
19  Anti-corruption 13
RES
14
20
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Efficient use of raw materials/ 1 Environmental management

energy RIRERE
BEMRLsER = R E A 2 Atmospheric emission

Green office RRAHEIR

EREIA 15 Responsible procurement and
Equal opportunities and rights partnership

protection EEFEERAYAE

FE e A RIRIE 16  Activities for public good
Training and development Fan-—/N=yE L)

b= [ aesnd i

Technological R&D and
innovation
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Service quality and safety
fRigE &ML e

Customer privacy and data
security
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Intellectual property protection
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Business ethics and morality
[HES BEREb L



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

2 Energy Conservation and Carbon
Reduction Boost Green Development

2.1

Green and Low-carbon Development

The Company always regards sustainable
development as its top priority by integrating the eco
and environmental concept into every aspect of its
operations. It aims to create an environment-friendly
operation model and strives to reduce the impact of
production and operation activities on the environment
by continuously enhancing its technologies and
strengthening its green management. The Company
both focuses on its own low-carbon operations
and vigorously rolls out various activities such as
green office and extension of eco footprint, so as
to constantly undertake environmental protection
initiatives and build a green culture for achieving
harmonious development between the Company and
the environment.

The Group has been certified under the ISO 14001
Environmental Management System. It has maintained
a high standard of environmental protection measures
during the setup and operation of laboratories.
Necessary environmental monitoring equipments have
been installed in the testing and surveying laboratories
already in operation to ensure these laboratories are in
strict compliance with the environmental requirements
in the locations where they operate.

2
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The Group strictly complies with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations which were
promulgated by the governments of the countries or
regions where the Group has a presence and which
have a significant impact on the Group’s business.
These laws and regulations include the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Impact Assessment, Energy Conservation Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Air Pollutions, Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Promotion of Clean Production, and
the Environmental Protection and Management Act
published by the National Environmental Agency
(NEA) of Singapore regarding energy conservation,
prevention and control of air pollutions as well as
all other applicable laws and regulations. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any
non-compliance issues or complaints related to
environmental protection.

2.1.1 Exhaust Gas and Greenhouse Gas

Air pollutants were mainly derived from the
Group’s testing, sampling and sample delivery
vehicles, while greenhouse gas emissions were
mainly derived from: (i) direct emissions from
the combustion of fuels in mobile sources (from
vehicles) under Scope 1; (i) indirect energy
emissions from electricity consumed under
Scope 2; and (jii) other indirect emissions (mainly
from business travel and waste landfill). During
the Reporting Period, we had been constantly
optimizing our operation process to reduce the
emissions of exhaust gas and greenhouse gas
by assessing various factors when sourcing
vehicles and equipment, such as environmental
performance, and by switching to more
online collaboration tools, such as video and
audio conference, to reduce the frequency of
business trips.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited e Annual Report 2021

AEBBRETEEEBAMEERR
S b G R 28 A0 3 AN SR B S RS
EEARFENERRRELAZE MR
B BREETENPEARLME
RIBEREER)  (FEARKMEIR
BREFNEE) (PEARKAE
ENKIBEIRR) (R EARKMBEX
RITRPDEE) (PEARKAE
BREERER)  ARF REHIRE
R~ RRISRPDRERRF I E
FKIRIEBH(INEA) B B CRIZ R E A
BIEAR)MB EME AR MO
B EAREHA > AEBERER
HIRIBREBANTERAE B

2.1.1 EREEEwE

KEHARRSAMERRE
RIR R R E X mE
W OREREBHREERR
7 () EN AR EIRER
BER(REEE)ELNERE
BEDL : () EBE2ARRINEE
EERRREEBER : AR
(if) L 4t P = BE B (20 - AR 2
ik~ REMDEIBFREEL) o R
SR EREEHEN - FITE
BILELRA - BRERRA
FRRINAEREEREHR
BEE URSRARAR
FHERFRLEBENTRA
B ESAR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIB - HER

Performance Indicators of Exhaust Pollutant Emissions

/q-h—\\ =+
E/ﬁ#&%

BRSRYHERERIEE
Percentage
Performance of total
Unit in 2021 emissions
Frib B E
Category 5l B 2021 F &M el
Nitrogen oxides AR kg 3,473.84 91.5%
Sulphur oxides ety kg 9.33 0.2%
Suspended particles BT kg 316.04 8.3%
Total we kg 3,799.21 100%
Emissions intensity PEaRE kg/million revenue 4.63 -
kg BEHA
Performance Indicators of Greenhouse Gas Emissions
BERBHRERER

Percentage
Performance of total
Unit in 2021 emissions
Frib B E
Category 5 By 2021 F &M 4]
Scope 1 &i[E— tCO,e 1,640.82 26%
Scope 2 HE— tCO,e 4,478.35 71%
Scope 3 #HE= tCO,e 219.93 3%
Total BE tCOe 6,339.10 100%
Emissions intensity BEMCRE tCO,e/million revenue 7.73 -

1CO,e/ EEYA
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2.1.2 Wastes

Main hazardous wastes such as waste
petroleum samples, solvents and acid/base
waste, and main non-hazardous wastes such as
paper wastes were produced from the Group’s
operation.

To deal with the wastes produced from its
operation in a reasonable manner and reduce
the impact on the environment, the Group
has developed measures for classification
and disposal during the service process in a
reasonable manner. According to the Safety
Management Procedures, all the hazardous
wastes are collected by (or collected by
the Group and then delivered to) licensed
and qualified third-party companies for safe
handling to avoid harm to employees and the
environment. For non-hazardous wastes, the
Group collectively disposes of them to the
designated waste collection areas for collection
by third party companies for recycling.

2.1.2 EEY

AEBELBIETEENT
REEREVRBEABE
m o ABIFBREREY 0 M

REERIEEETELRE
&Y REHRFOZE
SEBITE T REBETAE
DERBEENIDE IR
2EXEEER) FMERE
REZ Y O R A E
HEHBEEENE =17
WE  REREBRERR
MREETLREE - B
HETRRFEKET - Y
REEEREY  SETGE
F—RBEREEMNLR O
B AE=7 QA TALRK
FIF o

Performance Indicators of Wastes Emissions

EEE Y HE BRI E
Unit Performance
in 2021
Category k=] B 2021 F &N
Hazardous wastes BEREZEY Total tonnes 5.62
ks A
Emissions intensity tonnes/ 0.01
e E million revenue
g,/
BEBA
Non-hazardous wastes ~ EEFEZY) Total tonnes 438.09
ks A
Emissions intensity tonnes/ 0.53
P E million revenue
Wa,/
BEBA
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Efficient resources allocation

The Company has been strictly complying with internal
policies by continuously enhancing the efficiency and
advocating a green office in an effort to maximize
performance while maintaining eco-friendly. During the
Reporting Period, the major resources consumed by
the Group were purchased electricity, gasoline, diesel
and water.

In terms of the use of gasoline and diesel, the Group
increased the efficiency of the use of these resources
by planning the use of vehicles in a rational way and
by taking environmental factors into account when
purchasing vehicles.

In terms of electricity consumption, the Group devised
policies related to green office, and encouraged its
employees to apply the following measures for process
enhancement, green procurement and green office:

Management enhancement .

2.2

Rk - g RERRSE

SEERER

AR R EERAG 8 T R ERIRGRE
it THRABRERRE 18
Bgehs BHERGXBEENR
ERIRRCENTE - REHA
KEERMNEIREREE  HNE

B T - SO -

PR R R -
AEBUERER  BEERBS
ERREEZSR - RALRER
M o

ERENE  SEBERER AN
MK - EBLRE  RerE -
meERnE e E TRIUAT
it

Increase operational efficiency and reduce energy consumption by

BLERE

Green Procurement

making the optimal use of resources, enhancing processes and
improving technologies

Enhance the management of machinery and equipment (especially
high-power consuming equipment) and conduct regular checking and
maintenance

NERER - BOREREHSR ST R EENE - RELRER

mgEEmRE(BRRSRERB NER - WHETERieE REE

Use environment-friendly machinery and equipment sourced from green

Purchase energy efficient appliances with Grade 1 energy labels for

xR mER R ARRI MR E
ERAETRBAR - REERERNILERS

Advocate a green office and green actions, such as turning off lighting on
leaving offices and using less unnecessary equipment, etc.

suppliers
[ ]
offices
R .
[ ]
Green office °
RERA .

BERERNEEETE  ETRE O TBERBERS
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In terms of water consumption, the Group uses water
from the municipal pipeline network, which is lawful
and compliant in terms of acquiring water sources. The
Group has also formulated relevant policies for water
conservation to raise its employees’ environmental

ERKAE - KRERKEREMHK
B RRBUKRITEAREER -
RIE - SEIRGIE T E A RAKEE
B - THIRAB TIRRERE
BB THEZBRET IRBUAT

awareness continuously and encourage its employees ZIERKIEHE
to take the following water-saving measures during
operation:
Management enhancement o Devise water-saving plans to be distributed to subsidiaries
° Regularly record and monitor the use of water by each department
° Regularly inspect and maintain conventional equipment and pipelines and
timely repair and replace old water equipment and damaged pipelines to
avoid water leak
BlLER . HIEEIKETEl - D BEERWE LR
. T HARC 8% M B SR R AR PIE AOKIE R
. FHRRERREERARBNEE - MKEENRBBRENKREREE
EE  BRIRK
Green office ° Put up water-saving publicity slogans in prominent positions and carry
out water-saving publicity and education
° Promote water saving in a scientific way and raise employees’ awareness
of water saving
“Zen . BEM BRSNS EERE  AREKSEHE
. T RRIBEKAE - RSB TEHKER
Performance Indicators of Resource Consumption
ERHEERER
Performance
Unit in 2021
Category 5 By 2021 F &M
Energy consumption BEREREE KWH 12,133.57
Energy consumption intensity ~ BEFES&[E KWH/million (HKD) 14.80
KWH, B8t (B%)
Water consumption K& m?3 96,284.00
Water consumption intensity ~ F7/K3&E mé/million (HKD) 117.42
m3,/ BET(EE)
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Green Operation in Practice

We firmly believe everyone has the responsibility to
protect the environment. This is why the Group strives
to achieve sustainable development in the process
of providing professional and high-quality services for
customers.

In terms of green operations, the Group has formulated
a series of systematic green office related policies,
such as the Green Office Management System,
covering energy consumption, waste disposal and
recycling, so as to institutionally facilitate the Group’s
green and low-carbon operation. Furthermore, we
have also formulated a set of detailed guidelines on
sustainable offices for the Group’s subsidiaries, which
provides different suggestions on how to further
enhance the green office environment under different
situations. To make sure more employees can join
green environmental actions proactively, we have rolled
out a series of advocacy initiatives and incentives, such

2.3

Rk HSRERRE

BB EE—RBEIHARERSR
METENE  FAREERORE
REFPEHFER - BERHNBIZ
o N ERAISERR

EmedEEnm  SEHE TRe
MAERER)E— R ZFLAAE
BRAZTHERE  BHRRELR
/R - EEYRE  BWNBEES
| AREETHEEEZSREHR
HIERIE o BB - HAAITRHIFT T &
AN FHBEERMATESIMFAE
BMELTRA  BTRBRHE
—SERGICHARFERETZR
2E - RERESZETIERSH
HRERRFRTEY > RAFRT — &7
BEEEE - BRETRR :

as:
Equipment improvement ° Install fresh air system to purify air and recover heat and humidity in the
room to increase heating efficiency
° Use energy-efficient light tubes and use day lighting for offices whenever
possible
° Use energy-saving electrical appliances
HUERR . ZEFRARFOFCERORFI - BIKRERRRE - BT RE

. BEERMERENEE - WRAEEAEAL

oL EE og 2

i IR ERER
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Energy and paper saving

Turn off lighting and electronic appliances in the office when the office is
not in use or upon leaving the office
Keep the room temperature at 26°C

Use double-sided printing to save office paper and use recycled paper to
print non-essential documents

Put reusable paper in recycling bins by size, with the usable side facing
the same direction for easy use by others

Use less disposable paper cups and other supplies
EMAETEARER  BERAER - BERAE
REFZENRELE26°C
. {5 FEEE 4T £
o

HERAA I BT R
ENE A - WE R BERITENIEE E St
AR ERE AR RSRIZ R ST IRA RIS - W] AH—EHE— 5 MK

B AEMARA
Online office

B — IRV B an O

Sending and receiving messages, circulars and instructions by electronic
Group

AR

5

means are preferred over paper documents whenever possible within the

EBRAEE
Green travel

= AR

Promote the installation of video and audio conferencing systems, and
encourage employees to use such systems
SEAFEERZFETTHAMBEME - BERIETR - AR

SHREHRARNER - YBBE TERERAR
BT

Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from business trips and the taking of
the means of transportation related thereto
Arrange business trips wisely and give priority to low-carbon means of
transportation as an incentive to green travel
WA RE - RAEFERERAB T AELR)
o o J
Advocacy

BERBEIN
B ZHABHTT  BEERERBTA - SBREhTT

up publicity
[ ]

Carry out energy-saving and water-saving publicity and education
EWAE

Put up energy-saving slogans in the prominent positions of offices to step
activities to increase employees’ environmental awareness
B E L B R ENRE IR

FRERRE -

RUBERAm

CIAEENE
EKEEHEERY  RITBRTRRERE®
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Addressing Climate Change

As a responsible corporate citizen, we strive to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions from business operations,
improve our ability to address climate change, and
seize the development opportunities arising from the
transition to a low-carbon economy, provided that
we are able to safeguard our investors, employees,
customers, partners, communities and other
stakeholders.

To address climate change, the Group adopted the
framework for the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”) in 2021 to further
understand and identify the Group’s climate related
risks and opportunities and make disclosures on
governance, strategies, risk management and relevant
indicators and targets.

° Governance

The Board always supports the sustainable
development of the Group, reviews and
monitors the ESG performance including
greenhouse gas emissions and energy
consumption, and holds relevant meetings on a
regular basis. By forming an ESG working team,
an internal management system for sustainable
development has been set up to boost
implementation of ESG strategies and targets
by relevant departments and subsidiaries of the
Company. In addition, the Board identifies and
assesses the materiality of relevant issues and
risks, and discusses issues related to climate
change risks.

24

Rk HSRERRE

FE SRR 2L

ERABENEEAR  BAEN
REEEEBELHRNREREH
Mo RTTESRIRE (LS - X
EREHRMREE BT FF
BEBH R EFHBT WA
T EREREEELNERELS -

BTRGEHSRES  AEER
2021 F N RIRAB A B 15 4 52 T 1k
#H([TCFDIESE - #E— 2 7 BRI &%
RIAEERFHEBERERE#S - &
RIE - R - REBRERULERR
B2 EETTHEE

. B

EERREIBREENAR
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BLRHRESESGREIETTE
ENEE - WEHEFEER
T BBRERARESGT
YR/ - BRI T AR A
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Strategies

Based on the current business development
of the Group, we have incorporated responses
to climate change into our corporate strategic
planning and future development, and we have
taken into account factors such as related
risks, actual and potential impacts, and future
opportunities.

Physical risk

Acute risk: The Group has physical offices in
a number of locations around the world. These
offices may be affected (especially those in
areas near the coast where heavy rainfall is
frequent) when extreme events such as heavy
rainfall, flood, storm and typhoon increases
pbecome more likely to happen. In addition,
extreme weather will affect both the normal
operations of the Company and the health and
safety of employees.

Chronic risk: Chronic risks such as drought
and rise in sea levels brought about by climate
change will affect the regions where the Group
operates, and may affect business sustainability
and undermine regional financial stability.
Meanwhile, the transformation of energy
structure at the macro level will also have a
long-term impact on the Group’s production
and services.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited e Annual Report 2021
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Transition risk

Policies and laws: As carbon neutrality is
getting more popular around the world, China
has demonstrated its resolute determination
to address climate change with the publication
of more policies and regulations regarding
its commitment to achieve carbon peak by
2030 and carbon neutrality by 2060. If a
company fails to comply with national and
local regulations, and to develop relevant
sustainability measures, it may be subject to
huge operational pressure and cost. Riding on
a wave of transition to a low-carbon economy,
the Group will plan to commit more resources
and technologies to reduce the impact.

Technologies: If the Group, as a TIC service
provider, fails to shift to green technologies
and low-carbon products and services, it will
consume more energy and resources and lose
part of the market.

Market preference: As more and more
people embrace the concept of environmental
protection, the market has a growing demand
for low-carbon and eco-friendly offerings,
prefers green technologies and green products,
and tends to pay high premiums for products of
companies with outstanding ESG performance.

Rk HSRERRE

LeEidl

BERERE - BEERPANB
DEERBENRT - PE
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B BTREHAEEHSRERE
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Opportunities

Due to the energy transition and the
emergence of renewable energy and low-
carbon technologies, the demand from the
market and customers will transit to a demand
for green products. In the meantime, relevant
policies and regulations at home and abroad
will impose higher requirements for enterprises
which transform to green and low-carbon ones.
These changes will bring more development
opportunities to the Group.

When the demand of enterprises for low-carbon
products and services grows, the demand for
the Group’s testing and consulting services will
increase accordingly. The Group will keep up
with cutting-edge technologies, continuously
optimize services and work with customers and
business partners to address climate change,
thereby improving service capabilities related to
carbon neutrality.

In addition, the Group’s strategic efforts in
addressing climate change and facilitating
sustainable development will improve its
sustainability capacity and ESG performance,
which is beneficial for gaining more markets
and customers and generating more economic
benefits and additional environmental and
social benefits in the long run to better create a
common value.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited e Annual Report 2021
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Risk Management

The Group proactively identifies and
manages potential climate change risks and
opportunities, incorporates the prevention
and management of climate change and
other related environmental issues into daily
operations and management, continuously
carries out risk assessment, and develops
strategies to reduce the potential risks.

Rk - g RERRSE

. m g EE

STHEE R R IR 2R i B
B SEFRRT EBER
MEE  SRIRELREMD
MHRER R A B IR & TR
MMABEERRES I
FERRERE - HER
FESR B LA KB R o

) Analysis of actual and
Risk assessment N potential impacts of risks

Development of strategies

Risk identification and countermeasures

e Yl > BTG ANEBERE || slEaEEsE
EESE a1

To address climate change, the Group has
formulated a series of preventive and protective
measures, such as the “Mechanism for
|dentification and Management of Environmental
Factors”, “Mechanism for Management of Risks
and Opportunities”, “Emergency Management
Mechanism”, etc. For example, in the case
of severe weather, the Group will arrange
employees to work from home, reschedule
working hours and reallocate resources to
minimize the impact on its business and assets
while ensuring the safety of employees.
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e Indicators and Targets . EEREE

RTER EE R IR DR
AR RBERR  SEFIE
TR BIERIEE

In order to address the challenges of climate
change and facilitate sustainable development,
the Group has developed a series of targets
and measures.

Environmental Management ° To improve environmental management, continuously monitor the

Group’s performance in carbon emissions, and assess climate
change risks in a timely manner.

To continuously provide services and products for sustainability.
To enhance employees’ green development awareness and
capabilities.

RRER RARREEKT - HEEASEERERSEORE - RET

fSmREEE R
SERMASERR ARG EER
ERETEZERRITEMNEHRMEN -

Emissions To improve vehicle purchase standards and use efficiency, reduce
the number of vehicles, ensure that 100% of air pollutants meet
the standards, and constantly reduce the emission intensity.

HERD RAEMEBIEERGCAME RO EWHHE - REKRTEY

Climate Change

100% T & 1RHE - TR EBERRE -

To reduce the intensity of greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1
and 2) by 30% by 2030 (compared with 2020).

RIREL F2030%F - AEREE (FE1 - 2)HEHGREFEIE30% (LA20205F /4
BEAEL) o

Energy To reduce energy intensity by 30% by 2030 and increase the
proportion of renewable electricity (compared with 2020).

BEIR F20304F - g FEEEEIK30% + HE T A] B AT 118 A Il (A
2020F RELEF) -

Water To reduce water use intensity by 30% by 2030 (compared with
2020).

KER F2030%F + F7K5REFEIK30% (LA2020F AEAEF) o
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Rk HSRERRE

Waste ° To properly dispose of 100% hazardous waste, and continuously

reduce the intensity of hazardous waste discharged; to reduce the

intensity of non-hazardous waste discharged by 30% by 2030,

and ensure that the waste is properly recycled and disposed of
(compared with 2020).

REZEY) . 100% B EREEMEIRERE - TR EEEEEMENRE - 5
2030%F - MEEREEYHEIGREEE30% - REEYH S IREI
BAFR IR (JA2020F BEAEF) -

Creating a People-oriented Vibrant
Workplace

We adhere to the people-oriented concept, regarding talents
as the most valuable asset for our growth. Under a well-
established system for remuneration and benefits, vocational
training and welfare, we safeguard employee rights, respect
employee diversity, and provide each employee with a safe,
harmonious and vibrant working environment, in a bid to
organically align employee growth with our development for
mutual success.

3.1 Equality and Diversity
3.1.1 Equal Opportunities

The Group always respects employees’ diverse
background in an inclusive manner, and treats
employees of different gender, age, religious
belief and cultural background fairly, actively
creating a fair and open working environment.

The Group also actively offers more
employment opportunities to people with
disabilities. We provide computer accessories
or adaptive devices, optical amplifiers, hearing
and assistive devices, braille products and
other assistive devices to cater for the special
needs of employees in the workplace. When
necessary, we will also make adjustments to
the workplace, such as installing handrails and
providing barrier-free access, ramps and lifts,
to provide our staff with a more comfortable
working environment for.

3
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In addition, the Group has formulated a series
of employment management systems and
policies based on its own situation, such
as Recruitment Management System and
Employee Manual, ensuring standard and
transparent recruitment and employment
processes.

In the recruitment process, we adhere to the
principles of open recruitment, fair competition
and merit-based employment selection.
Through the stringent internal recruitment
approval and monitoring procedures to
verify personal information of candidates, the
risks associated with child labour and illegal
employment are eliminated. Employment
contracts between the Group and employees
clearly specify the job position, job duties,
working hours, wages, entitled leave and
benefits and other employment conditions. As a
result, the interests of employees are protected
by the employment contracts and forced labour
is prohibited.

Salary and Incentive

Based on the principle of distribution
according to workload and performance, the
Group establishes a salary system and pays
proper remuneration. While focusing on the
protection of the legitimate rights and interests
of employees, the Group conducts annual
performance assessment and evaluation on all
employees and arranges salary adjustments
and promotions based on each employee’s
ability and performance. For those employees
whose performances have been assessed not
up to the standard, the Group will deal with
them accordingly.
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In addition, to further enhance its corporate
governance structure and long-term incentive

RIR - HERERRE

AN - BE— T EREAR

IR AR A R BUSBI I - {5

mechanism and advocate for the philosophy g’\ﬂéﬁfl/\ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ
of mutual development between the Company = lﬂj?ﬁﬂxﬁé HENET
and individuals the Group also implements g - FEWSIARBEFSA
the share option incentive schemes, aiming 7 3%77 FAHAEFEE
to attract and retain outstanding talents, and ERAE  ROEIMAE
fully enhance the motivation, dedication and EBEHRNERYE BEER

commitment of the Company’s senior and
middle management, core technicians and key
business staff. The Company is determined to

MEWR - REH LB E
THARBRARERE X
BB N SAREE A GRS

inspire employees to grow with the Company BfE -
together and create a long-term value for all
stakeholders.

3.1.3 Staff Composition 3.1.3 ET#EA

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total
of 2,112 full-time employees. The workforce
by gender, age group, employment type and
geographical region and the respective turnover
rate is illustrated as follows:

PR2021F12A31H « NEE
BEAEAH21128ET - A
28 o ®MR - FEAAR -
EIRER R EA E & 5D 8
EEAE  LUREEEER

KEZHINT »
Employee distribution
U=Baid
Gender Age Employment type Regional distribution
£33 i ERSER EF 2
General Greater
Male Female <30 30-50 >50  Management staff China  Overseas
L2l z EEE  SBEE ATEME i)
1,623 489 881 1,171 61 211 1,901 1,693 419
76.85% 23.15% 41.711% 55.42% 2.87% 10.01% 89.99% 80.16% 19.84%
Employee turnover rate
EERAZ
Gender Age Regional distribution
3] £l EiF 21
Greater
Male Female <30 30-50 >50 China Overseas Total
E:led fegcd RPEHE o @t
30.30% 15.76% 35.19% 21.50% 12.02% 27.33% 25.35% 26.94%
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Labour Compliance

In terms of employment and labour practices,
the Group strictly complies with applicable laws
and regulations which were promulgated by the
governments of the countries or regions where
the Group operates or which have a significant
impact on the Group’s business, including but
not limited to the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Social Insurance
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and
the Employment Act in Singapore and Central
Provident Fund Act in Singapore, Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter
608 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and all other
applicable laws and regulations. The Group
prohibits any non-compliance issues related to
employment and labour practices. During the
Reporting Period, there was no occurrence of
child labour and forced labour.
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Health and Caring

3.2.1 Occupational Health and Safety

The health and safety of employees is our top
priority to drive the joint development between
employees and the Company. To ensure
the health and safety of employees globally,
the Group always aims to enhance its health
and safety management over the years and
works proactively on preventing occupational
diseases through systematic and standardized
prevention procedures, so that everyone can
enjoy a healthy, safe and satisfactory working
environment.

In each country or region where the Group
operates, the Group has established a
standardized health and safety management
processes. With ISO 45001 Occupational
Health and Safety Management System
certification, standard operating procedures,
regular on-site work safety inspection, safety
training, regular physical examination and other
diversified measures, we actively enhance our
safety and health management to ensure our
employees healthy and safe.
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In addition, the Group has formulated
systematic training schemes for laboratory
operators and safety emergency plans. We
provide regular training on testing methods,
operating procedures, chemical safety
protection and rescue knowledge, and
special training on the principle, operation and
maintenance of instruments for employees who
need to operate instruments. We have carried
out a series of emergency drills to constantly
enhance employees’ safety awareness and
their ability to handle emergency.

Meanwhile, as for preventing risks arising from
workplace, the Group has also formulated
a series of measures to actively evaluate
the occupational risk factors affecting
employees’ health and safety, and a series
of prevention processes and management
measures. For example, easy-to-see warning
signs of occupational hazards are set up at
the operation posts with potentially serious
occupational hazards; workers are informed of
the types, dangers, prevention and emergency
treatment measures for occupational
hazards; dust collectors and noise reduction
devices are installed in relevant workplaces;
helmets, masks, protective suits, gloves and
other protective equipment are provided for
employees at relevant posts to reduce potential
risks in the process of sampling and testing.
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In terms of occupational health and safety,
the Group strictly complies with applicable
laws and regulations promulgated by the
governments of the countries or regions where
the Group operates or which have a significant
impact on the Group’s business, including
but not limited to the Work Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases and
Emergency Management Plan for Production
Safety Accidents, the Workplace Safety and
Health Act in Singapore, Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), and all other applicable laws
and regulations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not have any non-compliance
issues or complaints related to occupational
health and safety.
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Key Performance in Occupational Health and Safety

BERERZZBREN
2021 2020 2019
20215 20205 20195
Unit Male Female Male Female Male Female
Category £l By B Ztt 2t att 2 Ztt
Fatality rate of work-related ~ TESHFT X % 0 0 0 0 0 0
accidents
Lost days due to work-related ETI{5HEAXTEHEE  Day 0 0 0 0 0 0
injury N
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Welfare and Care

For employees in formal labour relationships,
the Group provides pension insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
maternity insurance, work injury insurance
and housing fund where appropriate.
Accommodation, night-shift allowance, annual
medical examination, labour insurance and
other benefits are provided for employees in
certain job positions. Meanwhile, the Group
also ensures that employees’ working hours
are in line with the requirements of the relevant
laws and regulations. Employees are entitled
to sick leave, casual leave, wedding leave,
pbereavement leave, work-related injury leave,
annual leave and statutory holidays, etc., where
appropriate.

In addition, in order to enrich employees’
lives and enhance their communication and
cooperation, team spirit and cohesion, we also
actively organize various cultural activities and
sports competitions, including but not limited

to:

o Work-life balance: We create a family-
friendly workplace, advocate that
employees enjoy family life, and
encourage employees to balance work
and family responsibilities;

o Diverse employee benefits: We provide

benefits and gifts for employees on
holidays, employee birthdays, Women'’s
Day, etc., and also provide professional
sports venues (which remain open for
long hours) and fitness equipment for
employees for leisure and entertainment
purposes;
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o Various cultural and sports activities:
We hold all kinds of cultural and sports
activities such as year-end celebrations,
literary and artistic performances and
sports competitions, and organize team-
building activities to enrich employees’
lives.

Development and Growth

We recognize the importance of personnel training
and diversification with the offer of systematic training
schemes and career advancement opportunities to
help our employees maximize their personal value and
achieve progress and growth.

The Group continues to build the capabilities of its
employees and implements a policy on cross-post
examination and job rotation for core workforce.
Employees are encouraged to expand their expertise
and explore their own potential to enable them to
grow into professional, multi-functional employees. To
this end, the Group has formulated a scientific talent
training policy and rolls out systematic and diversified
training schemes every year, which cover functional
management, professional technology, comprehensive
quality, management system and safety training, so as
to improve employees’ comprehensive quality in every
aspect.
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Besides, the Group has also established a mature
system for career promotion to improve employees’
professional capability, comprehensive skills and team
performance, encourage employees to choose a
career development plan based on their advantages,
personal interests and expertise, in order to further
stimulate their personal potential and achieve the joint
growth of employees and the Company.

BESN - SRERRT T KRB EE
THREE - THTIRTTE Te ¥R
N e - BBER *iﬁb |
THEEAEGRERMER -
BEA EE{@?@E’]M%%@L%
B EEAERE  BRETHE
EHAKE -

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided WMEBHRN SEEXEAERBRHEY
approximately 8,767 hours of training activities for 8,767/ NEFHIIBINEE) - WE T A
employees, covering leadership, project management, B -IBEEE  UWHHE RE
financial reporting, anti-corruption, corporate culture, 5 EXE B2 EECBEE
production safety, early warning about accidents due WRE  ERELAZLERENR
to poor quality, maintenance of sample making facilities = EREERRA - MEERE
at laboratories, accreditation of laboratories, local laws RELHEARR °
and regulations, etc.
Key Performance in Training
EBAREN
Average
training
Number of hours of
employees Percentage Training employees
trained of employees hours of (hours/
(person) trained (%) employees person)
Fg1E
FINET EIET EIET EBIPKEH
Category k] BE(A) Bo(%)  PECAE) (MEA)
Male B 950 59% 5,264 5.5
Female pegis 260 53% 3,503 13.5
Senior management E1E 175 83% 1,318 7.5
General staff E®mET 1,035 54% 7,449 7.2
Total FECE 1,210 57% 8,767 7.2
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Trustworthy and Win-Win Partnerships

In business operation, we rely on integrity, technology and
service as the basis, require all employees to strictly abide by
the Group’s various technical specifications and operating
procedures, and provide services with the highest technology
and service standards, thus becoming a trustworthy partner.

Strict Compliance with Professional Quality

4.1.1 Quality Management

We adhere to the guarantee of quality and
quality, committing to providing customers with
professional quality services and experiences.
We upgrade our quality management system
based on the prevailing international quality
management standards and we establish
a systematic, innovative and scientific
management system in our various business
locations globally to ensure that all the tests
conducted at our laboratories are in strict
compliance with laws and regulations as well as
the guidelines and rules of accreditation bodies,
and to ensure that each part of the testing
process is authentic and traceable (please
refer to 4.1.3 “Standard Operation” for details).
Our operating process and service quality
are kept under effective control by numerous
quality management tools and documents
such as standardized process manuals, quality
manuals, management and technical rules, etc.

The Group sets high standards and
requirements for the qualification, professional
ability, ethics and integrity of quality
professionals, and regularly arranges relevant
internal training and evaluation to provide
mechanism assurance for the professional
qualification and professional ethics of relevant
personnel.
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Quality Assurance

To make sure that the Group meets the
service quality and professional competence
and that each operation location has a unified
process and perfect results as far as possible,
the Group has established a standard quality
control system certified both domestically and
internationally in terms of quality. The Group’s
professional competence has been recognized
and certified by credible international
institutions.

Quality accreditation for operation and
laboratories in the PRC

The PRC operations of the Group have been
certified, in terms of quality, by the China
National Accreditation Service for Conformity
Assessment in China, including the certificate
of ISO 9001 Quality Management System,
Laboratory Accreditation Certificate, Testing
Institute Accreditation Certificate, Member
Certificate of China Association for Instrumental
Analysis and Member Certificate of China
Inspection and Testing Innovation Consortium.
Meanwhile, the Groups is recognized as
a Member of Chinese Certification and
Accreditation Association, Quality and Credit
Enterprise AAA, Member of Vice Director
of Professional Committee of Coal Industry
of China Association for Quality Inspection,
Contract Abiding and Trustworthy Enterprise,
Full Member of TIC Council, Member of
China Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine
Association, etc. These certifications and
recognition indicate that our service quality is
assured and that we respond to the needs of
all stakeholders in society.
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Quality accreditation for overseas operation and
laboratories

Our overseas subsidiaries have been certified,
in terms of quality, by a number of international
institutions, so as to better comply with
local regulatory and customer requirements
and continuously offer quality services with
assurance to international regions. Currently,
the laboratories in Singapore have obtained the
ISO 17025 Accreditation for the laboratory and
ISO 17020 Accreditation for cargo investigation.
The laboratories in India, Indonesia, Pakistan
and Malaysia have been accredited by the
respective accreditation bodies and awarded
ISO 17025:2017. Our inspection and business
operations have been granted ISO 9001:2015
certifications by British Standards Institute (BSI)
in India and Malaysia. Furthermore, the Group
has also been awarded membership by the
Grain and Feed Trade Association (GAFTA),
Federation of QOils, Seeds & Fats Association
(FOSFA) and International Cotton Association
(ICA) memberships which are internationally
prominent in the agriculture industry. National
level memberships of Fertiliser Association of
India (FAI), The Soybean Processors Association
of India (SOPA), and Solvent Extractors’
Association of India (SEA) have been awarded
to the Group, and membership of Palm QOil
Refiners Association of Malaysia (PORAM) has
been awarded to the Group in Malaysia.

Rk HSRERRE

BINEERERERE B

SEEINTEARIEER
WEIEEREERE - Bif
BREAMEEREPENR
T AR EREEE NS
EE - ARENKRYE - B
Al - TR ERECDER
ISO 17025 & & = R Al &ISO
17020 cargo investigation
RA - ENE - ENERFAETER
EEBLRERAEINE
MEDESSERAITHKE
RFE - WEEFISO 17025 -
2017  EE & f5 2R 78 38 &Y
BB EEHKEEREFSAE
% A 3 & (BSI)#ISO 9001
20156 REBEEE - o - &
BEEY  SEHLEAR
22 & F1 #9 Grain and Feed
Trade Association (GAFTA)
Federation of Qils, Seeds &
Fats Association (FOSFA) &
Bl B 8 12 1% = (ICA) 78 3 /Y
EEERK - UREEREE
2 (FA) - ENERZ NI
g (SOPA) « EN )& Al 12 B
HECSEAMENRHRE S
BB WAERAEES
REAGGEEBERE RS
(PORAM)BEEMZEEE ©

PR S RERIERERAT « 2021 FERE

133



134

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HEREARS

4.1.3 Standard Operation

4.1.3 BEIEE

We have developed an information technology RIRBEERBEFEEILLE
management system, adopted automation EREAENRER - AT
equipment and formulated a series of stringent BMETEERMEER
operation procedures and specifications to 7 EREAEEEERE
ensure our professional services and reduce EBHIET — RVIES R IRIE
the risk during our service process. Details are B RiRE - AR -

as follows:

Video monitoring throughout
the inspection process

miEniE A A

Quality control centre

s
Gl
i
e
+|

Information system
management

ERILER RS

Throughout the whole inspection process, the Group has provided video
monitoring devices such as video monitoring system, body worn camera
are set up to effectively ensure inspections and tests are authentic and
traceable.

SERRREAIERBEEAELER WELBRENBISTREERESR
ARESIERME - BRURIERERR TIENEF MBI -

Independent of each laboratory, the quality control centre acquires
field operation pictures and information generated from work process
by means of information technology, for tracking and monitoring the
inspection and testing activities at our laboratories.
BUNSERENESEEFOBBEREMFR - BRISIEXE
ENTEBREPELNERNEN  HREREMBIRIEDNETET
PR BB o

We have developed the Leon LIMS Laboratory Information Management
System and Leon LIMS Test Information System, making information
management possible across the whole process of quality inspection.
The system functions cover sampling, sample making, testing,
information confidentiality in sample transmission, etc., which helped
effectively reduce the error rate of manual calculations.

EEHE T [ Leon LMSE i =15 BB R4t I M[ Leon LIMS Test(s
BlEFES BERTEHERRN2BIBES(ERE - RGWEEE - K
Bl R BmERERRES  ANREAREERE - §
BER TR TR R MAEREE o
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The Group together with a professional institute designed and developed
the Robot LEON-SIASUN IPS-3600 Automatic Sample Making System
to system can replace manual sample making, reduce the impact of
man-made factors on inspection work, and effectively improve sample
preparation efficiency and work automation standards.

L@ E B KRR AT IH R T [LEON-SIASUN IPS-36001# 88 A B B
BRG] c ZEAGAIBRRALSIE - BEARAZERBTIEPHNF
2 ARRARLEESENTEEEEKT -

Building on our practices and management experiences in the inspection
and testing services over the years and with reference to the national
standards, we have set 39 corporate standards to improve our
standardization and regulated process in our inspection practices.

SERBEZFERBRRAEBRIRIZNERNETELR  ERKEEE
#E b - HIE T IIEMBEIRE - TETR I & E ik TERE KRR

TEIREE -
Provision of Quality Services

Upholding the concept of customers first, we
continued to improve our customer service quality
through robust customer communication and service
mechanisms, while strictly protecting data security and
intellectual property with an aim to provide customers
with quality services and experiences.

With respect to health and safety, advertising and
privacy issues related to the services provided, we
comply with by the applicable laws and regulations
which were promulgated by the governments in the
countries or regions where the Group operates that
have a significant impact on our business, including
but not limited to the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Singapore Code of Advertising
Practice, Trade Marks Act of Singapore, as well as all
other applicable laws and regulations.
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4.2.1 Customer Complaints

Based on the relevant international/national
standards, the Group has established a
systematic customer complaint management
mechanism to govern the procedures and
turnover time for managing and handling
customer complaints and feedback. If a
customer lodges a complaint, we will, in a
timely manner, respond to it and give feedback
in accordance with the procedures illustrated
below, take remedial actions and demonstrate
our commitment to customer satisfaction and
quality improvement.

Issues raised in complaints are monitored
and reviewed to avoid a repeat of the same
issues. Furthermore, the Group evaluates on
an annual basis whether its complaint handling
and feedback mechanism is effective or not in
terms of timelines of responses and satisfaction

4.2.1 EFRF
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of return visits. The Group did not receive any A EEIRE
major complaints during the Reporting Period. %3
Within 3 d Complaint Within 1 d
Ithin ays Itnin ay
A, a}gd ,J?}?ﬁd}%aﬁqﬁk 1% R
Weaknesses
5986
Response and Quality of services Planning and
remediation and operations data gathering
B fE & 44 IE REREENEE %%J}S@HEIBZ%

Improvement
e
Investigation and
Within 3 days Analysis W\thm 3 days
RN AER D

Customer complaint feedback mechanism

Bk RS
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Customer Satisfaction

Customer satisfaction is the driving force
for us to continuously enhance our service.
The Group establishes a communication
mechanism integrating various channels (such
as customer service hotline and email), collects
customer feedback and opinions, and selects
and invites a number of major customers (e.g.
classified by earnings) and customers who
have filed complaints each year for conducting
customer satisfaction survey and preparing
customer satisfaction analysis report, so as
to continuously improve service quality and
customer satisfaction.

Data Security and Protection

The Group attaches great importance to
information security and makes every effort to
ensure privacy and security of customer data.
We have established a dedicated information
security management team to comprehensively
plan for data security and privacy matters so as
to meet the increasing needs for data security
on a timely basis.

Every year, we carry out a risk assessment
on information security to timely identify new
threats and risks associated with information
security in a timely manner, continuously step
up data protection, and ensure that the Group
can allocate sufficient resources and respond
effectively in respect of its information security
management system. We take a proactive
approach to acquire new information assets in
hardware and software, and provide relevant
personnel with information security training to
enhance their data security capabilities.

Rk HSRERRE

422 FEFHREE

BEPmBE R
ARAGHIBY 1) o KRBT 4R
BEERE(WMEFP R
AR BB - UE
EPRERER  UNEF
EREBFETEERRP(D
BB ) IR R
P E#TEFPREERSE -
mAEEFMBESITRE
THRERARGEENE, M

4.2.3 BiEZT 2 EARE

SESEERESERE 2
NREZEPEMNEBLRR
Z - HARZTEMNER
ZEEREN  SiEZREH
B2 EEMOEETIE
KB e B s e 8RR

BF  FEHSHEELEE
TTRBERE - REEIER
RENHRERRR - 58
BILBIBRE - BREEE
EEZE2ERRSGTEA
L7 B BRI A R
¥ o 5 HTE R AR (1 LARK
HITEMNHEEEE XM
HEABRKERZEZTE
Bl R BB R RS

PR S RERIERERAT « 2021 FERE

137



138

BRWmE

The Group has implemented the following
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REREFBBENERLMER

measures to ensure the privacy and protection o EBETEER T AT

of customer data:

Application of security
protection devices

ERZ2RERE

Prevention and detection
of unauthorized

authority
Tab; REEREEERN
&

Establishment of business
continuity and disaster
recovery plan

RESLSTE AR R
Bigstal

Training and ethical
requirement of
employees

BEMFI RBREK

Firewall and anti-virus software are installed and updated in a timely manner
to prevent data leaks as a result of hacker attacks. Meanwhile, all sensitive
personal and confidential data of customers are encrypted according to
defined procedures.

LR REFER NG R REE - B EARKIEMERNERING o
R - B PAGUREA REZ BRI RIBIE TR FEITING -

Access rights to systems (including the functions of creation, revision,
deletion and view features) are assigned in accordance with the roles, duties
and positions of employees. Besides, regular checks on unauthorized access
and log-in without authority are conducted by our information security
management team to prevent data leaks.

BEEEAE  BEMBLOEERRERENAILE - &2 MK RERS
Ee) o WA - ERZE2EEBR T HRE REEENERAREA » I8
S -

Our contingency plans are clearly defined for certain security breach
incidents (such as cyber attacks) and relevant roles and responsibilities are
specified. Moreover, relevant data are backed up to independently auxiliary
storage devices for the recovery of data and applications to minimize the
impact of unexpected incidents.

AR ELE TREFH(NERINE)NEEESTE - R EHEEAE LB
T AR SEKHESBRTHENEECHINRETEE - ARSERE
RRFNEE  ZARERERESHTEKNTE -

Relevant personnel are provided with training and are required to strictly

abide by the Group’s data security policy and to assure that they handle

customer data with a high level of ethics and integrity.

E@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\%ﬁﬁﬂf%%ﬂl C BRERETEEEBLE2HE - WREBE
BERNEEREREEFER
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4.2.4 Intellectual Property Rights

We give high priority to our intellectual
property practices, strictly abide by laws and
regulations including the Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China and Trademark
Law of the People’s Republic of China. We
have formulated a series of internal guidelines
on intellectual property protection. During our
promotional activities, the information delivered
to our customers and in our promotional
materials is strictly reviewed, and the use of any
false information and misleading statements is
strictly prohibited.

Timely registration of intellectual property is a
cornerstone for our strong business value and
competitive strengths. The Group has applied
for and obtained patents and trademarks for
its inventions and utility models in sampling,
inspection and information management
practices. Meanwhile, the Group keeps a close
eye on the news and updates on intellectual
property rights registered by peers as a
safeguard measure against any infringements.

As at the end of 2021, the Group had a total of
93 scientific researchers, 7 national invention
patents with 10 others pending approval, 35
utility patents with 6 others pending approval,
and 43 software copyrights.
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4.3

Achieving Win-Win Cooperation

The Group always aims to working with supply chain
partners on continuously empowering suppliers
with sustainable development capabilities through
supplier access, communication and evaluation and
other means, so as to achieve win-win development
together.

Based on domestic and international regulations and
agreements as well as its internal standards and values,
the Group has formulated a set of systematic supplier
access principles and standards at the stage of
supplier access. By carrying out our stringent supplier
selection procedures and independent approval
process, we require suppliers to submit relevant
social responsibility certificates. We preferentially
select suppliers that have passed relevant quality
certification and obtained relevant production permits
and are environmental friendly and willing to take social
responsibilities. We encourage and support the supply
chain to provide environmental friendly products and
services, and reduce environmental and social risks in
the Group’s supply chain. The list of suppliers is strictly
reviewed and approved by the Group’s management
based on the results of evaluation and on-site visits.

4.3
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Number of

suppliers

Category Hhl HERHE
Greater China aNGE=S: 1,648
Overseas NSEIN 818
Total B 2,466
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At the same time, with a systematic supplier
management system in place and toolkits such as
supplier account and qualified supplier evaluation
form designed, the Group closely monitors suppliers’
ESG performance to ensure their implementation of
relevant practices, and regularly communicates with
suppliers on major safety and environmental issues,
continuously assessing their performance. The Group
makes reference to suppliers’ self-declarations and
information disclosed by government agencies, etc. to
further identify if suppliers had any violations or confirm
if government agencies had imposed any penalties
on suppliers. For any identified cases, the Group will
cease cooperation until effective improvement and
remedial measures have been taken by the supplier
concerned. The Group applied the above measures to
all major suppliers during the Reporting Period.

Adherence to Business Compliance

4.4.1 Business Ethics

The Company holds a strong belief in the
core values of confidentiality, integrity,
independence, impartiality and trust, abides by
business morality and ethics, and has stringent
policies against bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

Our business partners strictly follow the code
of business conduct and ethics agreement
in conducting business deals. The top
management is committed to avoiding any
conflict of interests and maintaining protecting
integrity throughout our operations. The Group
advocates for integrity and ethics and requires
all employees to enshrine the principle of
fairness and impartiality, which brings the value
proposition in business and helps in building
trustworthy relationship with our customers,
business partners and other stakeholders.

4.4
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4.4.2

With respect to our whistle-blowing policy
and procedures, we have developed
clear guidance on reporting channels and
investigation procedures. Staff members are
encouraged to raise awareness of identifying
and reporting misconducts and potential
improprieties. All whistle-blowers are assured
of identity confidentiality and protection. The
Group undertakes to handle all reported cases
seriously by following the relevant procedures
with proper records maintained. Feedback on
the result will be given to the whistle-blower
upon completion of investigation, followed by
remedial actions as required.

Compliance and Anti-corruption

Compliance in operations is a cornerstone
for our long-term success. The Group keeps
strengthening its compliance management
requirements and system in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations, domestic and
foreign standards as well as compliance audit
principles in the region where it operates. All
employees have received training as specified
in the employee manual and proactively taken
part in our integrity education and training
sessions, including interpretation of integrity,
laws and regulations, actions and methodology.
Titles such as Outstanding Units Against
Corruption and Temptation and Outstanding
Individuals Against Corruption and Temptation
are awarded to our employees to continuously
improve their awareness and competencies in
compliance and anti-corruption.

During the Reporting Period, anti-corruption
and conflict of interest related training sessions
amounting to 2,581 hours were provided to
directors and employees of the Group with
3,051 attendances. More diverse training
sessions will be provided to both directors and
employees from time to time when necessary.
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The Group strictly abides by all the relevant
laws and regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering in the places where the
Group operates, including but not limited to
the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Prevention of Corruption Act of
Singapore, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and
all other applicable laws and regulations. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not have
any concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices field against the Group or its directors
and employees.

Undertaking Social Responsibilities

We continue to expand our advantages and
to give back to society while growing our
business. The Group is keen to pool the efforts
among employees, and encourages them to
engage in social activities through voluntary
services, with a view to giving back to local
communities and creating social value. As a
responsible corporate citizen, we will carry out
sustainable development with our employees,
strive to build a better life and contribute to the
building of a harmonious society in the future.

Integrating into and giving back to local
communities is one of the important ways for
the Company to fulffill its social responsibilities.
In 2021, the Group was working proactively
to repay local communities by carrying out
voluntary activities, visiting community-
based pandemic prevention stations, sending
volunteers to support communities’ fight
against the pandemic, and donating money
to charitable organizations, etc., so as to
further connect with local communities and
boost the coordinated development between
communities and the Company.

We fulfill corporate social responsibilities by
donating funds for education assistance.
Focused on individual support, we contributed
donations to four students, on a long-term
basis, in Longfenggou Village, Lindong Town,
Balinzuo Banner, Chifeng City, Inner Mongolia,
to support them in their education funding.
During the Reporting Period, the total funding
amounted to RMB47,600.
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Index for Environmental, Social and ERBI(RE - tERER
Governance Reporting Guide of Hong Kong (ESG)iRrE1E 51 )& |
Stock Exchange

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Section
TEHE - EBEH —KREERBEEEREE HEZE

Aspect A1: Emissions

EEA1 : Y
General Disclosure Information on: 2.1 Green and Low-
(@  the policies; and carbon Development
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—MRBEE BEERIOAEREEHN - MK THEEES BEREEEEY 21 SEERER
MEAEH -
(a BX &
(b) BTFTHBETAGEAZENHBERLROINER -
KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 2.1.1 Waste Gas and
Greenhouse Gas
RS AE R IRAL HErU A AR R B IR BUE - 211 BERER =R
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas 2.1.1 Waste Gas and
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit Greenhouse Gas
of production volume, per facility).
RSB UIRIRAL.2 BE(BE) RaREE(SE2))REREBEHRE (UBEGTE) R (10 211 BERER=RE
HR)ZE(WABESEN - BERBTE) ©
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, 2.1.2 Wastes
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RARAEMUIEIRA1.3 FrEABEREDEE UEE) R(MER)ZE(NEEEE 212 EEYD
7 - FIERMEAHE) o
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 2.1.2 Wastes
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RAREMUIEIRA1.4 FrEAEEREEYEE (UEE) R(ER)ZE(NEESEE 212 EEYD
7 - FIERHEHE) o
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve 2.4 Addressing Climate
them. Change
RARAE UIEIRA1.5 FPRET VBN E B IR R AR ER|E L B IR R 28K - 24 EHRIREL
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are 2.4 Addressing Climate
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken Change
to achieve them.
RARAEIEIRAL.6 HEEEERBEZEEYN LA  MELAMEIVABEERERS 24 EBHRIEZ(

EREL BRI T E
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Section

ITERER  BE - —REERBEEENER HESH

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water 2.2 Use of Resources in a
and other raw materials. Reasonable Way

—MRIRER BRERER(BEER  KREMEMEDBEEE o 22 EEFEAER

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, 2.2 Use of Resources in a
gas or oil) in total (kWh in *000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of Reasonable Way
production volume, per facility).

RS A R 1RA2.1 RENESNEER JEEER(IE - fReloB)BFEE(ATFHE 22 AEEAZR
FREFE)RBE(WABESEN - BERBTHE)

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production 2.2 Use of Resources in a
volume, per facility). Reasonable Way

MBEMIEIZA22 4 EEKERTRE(WABESEN - BIERHEE) ° 22 EEFERER

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps takento 2.4 Addressing Climate
achieve them. Change

FASEENIEIRA2.3 RPREI M EVREIRE ARG B R R RESE L B RN TR - 24 REBHREREZL

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit 2.4 Addressing Climate
for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Change
them.

BAREMUIEIRA2.4 FEASREGER R ERI B EAHERE - MEAEIVORAKEEBEER 24 BEHRIEEL

REDEL B RATERER) B o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and,  In view of the nature of the
if applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Group’s business, this KPI is
not applicable
RS A HEIRA2.5 S mFTABEMER A E (LA E) R (ER ) BEEEN ENAEEXRBILE - K
G o REBERTER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHA3 : RIERARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the 2.3 Green Operation in
environment and natural resources. Practice

—RRIREE MIEEIT AHRIRERARAERENERZENBER 23 BiTHeEE

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the 2.3 Green Operation in
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to manage Practice
them.

RS AE R TRASA HAEBRHERRERRAERNEATERCERNERFRTE 23 BIAEEY
BATE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Section

ITEER  BE - —REERBERENER HEEE

Aspect A4: Climate Change
EHEA4 : RIz#1E

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related 2.4 Addressing Climate
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. Change

—ARIRER BRAIREHCERAIEGHBETAEEFENERRGEBREEN 24 REHRIEE
BRER

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 2.4 Addressing Climate
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions Change
taken to manage them.

BB IR IRAS 1 R R R ARG HBETAEEFENEARKEREE - MEY 24 EHREZL
178 °

Aspect B1: Employment

BEB1 : EfE
General Disclosure Information on: 3.1 Equality and Diversity
(@ the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— MR BEE BRI AR - MEBERE - TR - RE - TEHE 2T 31 FHEEZT
£~ RIBARIA R B A8 RABFH) -
@ BER: R
b) BEFHBETABEAZENEMERLROINER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or 3.1.83 Staff Composition
part-time), age group and geographical region.
R IEIRB .1 R - EERE(NEBEFRE) - FiERItREIDNES 3.1.3 BIfER
HBEN -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical 3.1.8 Staff Composition
region.
RS AEIEIRB1.2 BRI - FiER FtEEI D EEIMKLE o 3.1.3 BIHER
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

ITERER  BE - —REERBEEENER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EEB2 : @FEHEZR

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B2.1

RS AE 2 HE15B2.1

KPI B2.2
FRIRAARUIRIRB2.2

KPI B2.3

RS AEIE1RB2.3

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

EAREZ2TIERERREREERMABENREN

@ BE: &

b) BEFHBEITABEAZENEREEIROIHER -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the
past three years including the reporting year.
BE=F(AEEREE)SERATITRMABRRLLE o

Lost days due to work injury.
EIGEXTIERS -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
PR BB R B 2 2 100 - AREBITRER A -

Aspect B3: Development and Training

FEEB3 : #/ERIEI

General Disclosure

—RRINFR

KPI B3.1

RA%RAE A IE1RB3.1

KPI B3.2

RIS 4B M F515B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRARTHREETT TIERE M MBS R KEEMHEER - g5 -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

BURIREEER(NESREERE  PREEEF)EONZIIER

A7t e

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and

employee category.
ZURREERERNED - BRESTHRXIINTFHERE

FERRBIZERARAR ¢ 2021 FEHE

Section
HEZHE

3.2

3.2

3.2

3.2

3.2
3.2

3.2

3.2

3.3

3.3

3.3

3.3

3.3

3.3

Health and Caring

Health and Caring
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Health and Caring
2 FREERE

Health and Caring
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

ITEER  BE - —REERBERENER

Section
HEZHE

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[ETEB4 : % T %A

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B4.1

RASAE IE1RBAA

KPI B4.2

FASAA N IE1RB4.2

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

B RE 1EE T alsa 45 TH -

@ BEE: K

(b) BFHBETAGEAZENHRBEEZLROINER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour.
f ARt R B e fa e AB R ZE T k& HI%5 T o

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

IR BB BRR B RIS U ERE ) 22 B
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3.1.4 Labour Compliance

3.1.4 BFER

3.1.1 Equal Opportunities

311 FEke

Not applicable due to

no violation during the
Reporting Period

RIS BRERER - TER



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

ITERER  BE - —REERBEEENER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

EMEB5 : fEHEEE

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI B5.1

RS 4B M H51RB5.1

KPI B5.2

A E N FEIEBS.2

KPI B5.3

AN FEIEB5.3

KPI B5.4

RASR 45215 17B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.
EIRMHEEIRE Rt G RRIBER

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

wiEE SN ERHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

AR RHEERNED  mERTABENINHEREE - A
KB RREHIHITRERTEL -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

HE a7 B R R R SR B E IR BT IR 35 St & b 618 7 - LA KA RS
HITRERAA -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

FRERE H R R 2 ARRE R KREHIER - A RIBEH
TRERETIE -

E B ERRER AR AR o 2021 FEHRE

Section
HEEE

4.3

4.3

4.3

4.3

4.3

4.3

4.3

4.3

4.3

4.3

Achieving Win-Win
Cooperation
ERAERE

Achieving Win-Win
Cooperation
BEREEHLR

Achieving Win-Win
Cooperation
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

ITREE - EFH  —REERBRENER

Section

HESH

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BEB6 : EmE(E

General Disclosure

—fRINER

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.2

MIE1EB6. 1

FAS AR N 1515B6.2

KPI B6.3

RSB IR 1RB6.3

KPI B6.4

RS AE 215 17B6.4

KPI B6.5

RASR 45 M 515B6.5

Information on:

(@ the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

BRI RRMERIRBOHEREL S -
FROTER

@ BER: R

b) EFHBEITABEAZENEMERIROIEER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.
IRE AR

BEEHEE? BERIBAMALNKN B AL -

Number of products and service related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

BEBNEm MR B AREE X

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
it ER A o T ARPR RN SREE MG VB D] o

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

il E EmE

BEREMEIKER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and
how they are implemented and monitored.
RSB EERHRERALBEBER - U RBERITRERE
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EE  BREALEREEARL

4.1 Strict Compliance with
Professional Quality

4.2  Provision of Quality
Services

41 BRTEXEE

4.2 RHEERE

In view of the nature of the
Group’s business, this KPI is
not applicable
%ﬁ’\%’il%‘k'\ﬁ’%{ N
REBIEETD

4.2.1 Customer Complaints
4.2.2 Customer Satisfaction
4.2.1 BPEF

422 BEFMEBE

4.2.4 Intellectual Property
Rights

4.2.4 FBERE

4.1  Strict Compliance with

Professional Quality

Recall procedures are not

applicable to the Group’s

business.

41 BTEXEE

7= BR - NE A

MANEEET o

4.2.3 Data Security and
Protection
4.2.3 iR HRE
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

Aspect B7: Anti-
corruption

EEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI B7.1

BB N FEIERT .1

KPI B7.2

BB MIE1RBTY .2

KPI B7.3

RS E N EIERT.3

ITERER  BE - —REERBEEENER

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BN IEERER - 3R - BGFROEREN

@ BE: &

b) BETFHBETABEAZENHBERLAOINER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.

RERBAAL T AR ERRLWEBENETH
PSEEN

ARMFEE

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing

procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

TR B EE A b R R IRAZ T - LA RABRAI T R EBER TV ©

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and

staff.
HiimESEKE TIRENRESE -

Section
HEZHE

4.4  Adherence to
Business Compliance

4.4 BELIREE

4.4.2 Compliance and Anti-
corruption

442 5RERES

4.4 .1 Business Ethics

4.4.2 Compliance and Anti-
corruption

441 BFEBERE

442 ARERES

4.4.2 Compliance and Anti-
corruption
442 ARERES

FERRBIZERARAR ¢ 2021 FEHE

151



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - R ERRE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls Section

ITEER  BE - —REERBERENER HESH

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[BEBS : HERE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 4.5 Undertaking Social
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities Responsibilities
take into consideration the communities’ interests.

—MRBEE B tE2ERTREEMEHEFTENBRREXFEDS 45 AEEHGEE
ZRARMNEAIBER o

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Education, environmental 4.5 Undertaking Social
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). Responsibilities

RS AE 5 1RBS.1 ErERER(NHE  BREE BIHK - 2F - Xtk 45 EEMGEE
BE) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. N/A

RS AE M HE1RB8.2 EEISRMBAER(NE EHRRE) NiE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

To The Shareholders Of China Leon Inspection Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Leon Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 160 to 316,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (the “IESBA Code”). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

B 2 RENHRE

=2

HHEIBERBERERAANZERR
(RASFSEMKRINBEREELRR])

=z
=

BB ETPEH N E 1602316 E M B 1B %%
TREBRAF(ERR ) REMBAR(HEI&E
EBDMEREFBRE WAV HRREER
202112 A31 B G MBI R EEH =Z A Lk
FEMGABEMEMEZANER  FAERE
ENGARERER  URGAUBRERWE &
FBERGFTEEME -
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REBEZALFENGAMBRARGEESR
2 WEEBREB(RARMEHDMIEEREZ BE
1% o

ERHNEE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BN ZBENHRE ()

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

FREETSEE

st ET S HEARERMNBEXHE - RAHAH
RAVBRRNETRAERNER - ZFFHE
EHSEAMBERREBETEITLVRERLNE
B NETRER - BZATHZEFFTHRERERBNE

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we R e

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREITER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B S EWF R R ERF I

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net trade receivables
amounting to approximately HK$134,783,000, which
represented approximately 20% of total assets of the
Group. As disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s allowance for lifetime expected
credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables as at 31 December
2021 amounting to approximately HK$3,540,000.

R20215F12A31H » EREZ EZRUKFIBFRN /B
134,783,0007C * 16 EHREEEMELI20% © RS BT

WERM 42T EE - P2021F12A318 © EEEESE
WxiBz 2 EREEBRLX((FEHEERRDBHEN A

3,540,0007T °

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of the trade receivables individually
for significant balances and based on provision matrix for
remaining debtors.

WINERE BRI AP IREE - EEEEREEMN M E
RNiEr BEEN B BEREARISREBAGABEIRRFIAZ S
HEREERRSRE -

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position.
IS E SRR REERABREAFE - RER
BHRMIEYE BEEBEZEAMGRAAEERERK -
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BANESTNAEERRETSE

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
receivables included:

BIVERNE 5 RUGIRREF SR 821

° Testing design and implementation of key controls on
how the management estimates the loss allowance for
credit losses of trade receivables;
BHABAERE WA E S RKFIERERLNE
KBE 2 2GR REM

° Obtaining management’s list of individually assessed
trade receivables and checking the past settlement
history, subsequent settlements, and relevant public
search results relating to the financial circumstances of
these customers;
EREREREMNTGNESRRKIBEE - WRER
TRERE  BEEE  UREZSEEPHBARRE
R AR SA



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BN ZBENRE ()

Key Audit Matter (continued) BRETEEE)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RREITER BN ESTNAEERRETSE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

S e =Ly =

o Obtaining an understanding of management’s basis
and judgement in grouping of remaining debtors
into different categories in the provision matrix and
checking with our knowledge of customer credit risk
characteristics;
THREEENBEREETBRISBREBSAD R TEER
BV RIR K HIE - SRR PR P EERRESERN T #
HEITIZE

° Testing the trade receivables aging report as at 31
December 2021 used by management to develop the
provision matrix, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in aging report with the relevant
supporting documents; and
AR & TR 2 ) E R s AR TR AR 2021 512 A 31
HEOE HRWHIBRRKRRE - HERBRERSER
TR A LSRR - &

° Testing the arithmetic accuracy of management’s
calculation of migration rates and historical default
rates in the provision matrix.
AREEENBEEREPHEERRRTENEN
BN -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BN ZBENHRE ()

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited e Annual Report 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

BN ZBENRE ()

BB E R BT AR S ISR AR

BfE

BANER  EHGEMBERRERRSNFAEH
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BN ZBENHRE ()

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concemn.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited e Annual Report 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements
(continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Tung Wai Lung Ricky.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2022

BN ZBENRE ()
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEmNEMZEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

2021 2020
2021 2020%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FisE BETT BETT
(Restated)
(&E7)
Revenue KA 5 818,828 649,904
Cost of sales SHERA (472,437) (372,833)
Gross profit EH 346,391 277,071
Other income and other gains and losses HAW A A R E iz R 518 7 11,758 14,176
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEAY (28,106) (17,805)
Administrative expenses TEAY (182,978) (156,091)
Reversal of impairment losses (impairment losses) TEEA{E B8 LB N R ERR
under expected credit loss model, net BECRERR)FHE 636 (1,267)
Fair value changes of financial assets and liabilities &2 o EEFT ABRHN S REER
at fair value through profit or loss BEZAREBEE (7,990) 923
Other expenses HAbfAE (23,205) (12,827)
Finance costs AR 8 (3,745) (4,432)
Profit before tax AT RIE 112,761 99,748
Income tax expense FiE#AEY 9 (23,087) (19,752)
Profit for the year FRFE 10 89,674 79,996
Attributable to: VAT IR
Owners of the Company RATHEA 49,836 52,455
Non-controlling interests IR R 39,838 27,541
89,674 79,996
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (continued)

reBakEMEE KRR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

2021 2020

2021 2020%F

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FisE BT T BETT
(Restated)

(& =51)

Other comprehensive income (expense): Hitt2EWE(FX) :
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: 7 @B B 1E#=7EH -
M EBRERZNEE 2B
e 23,385 17,365
BRNBERT AR MR E R
BRATARENAABEE

Exchange differences on translation from

Pite

functional currency to presentation currency
Fair value change on investment in equity
instrument at fair value through other

comprehensive income - (936)
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss in ~ FGEEHIRT A fEE FT 7 M2 182519
subsequent periods: EH

Exchange differences on translation of foreign BEBINETEHE L Z 5
operations (1,714) 745

FREMEEKE - MRAEH

Other comprehensive income for the year,

net of income tax 21,671 17,174
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAEKEATE 111,345 97,170
Attributable to: AT BIERERS

Owners of the Company KAREEB A 70,759 71,165

Non-controlling interests ek 40,586 26,005

111,345 97,170
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary ~AQREEEZEHEABESR
equity holders of the Company BA
Basic X 14 HK11.43 cents HK11.94 cents
11.4374 11,9474
Diluted s 14 HK11.38 cents HK11.94 cents

11.3838 1l

11,9474

PR S RERIERERAT « 2021 FERE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BARRR

At 31 December 2021
72021128318

At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020
R2021F 20204 20204
12A31H 12H31H 1H1H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt BT T BB T T BT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&S (&%)
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - BiRE & &4E 15 204,969 177,647 156,673
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 67,399 36,435 41,399
Investment properties WEWE 17 20,673 21,577 21,672
Goodwill EES 18 30,348 20,939 20,647
Intangible assets mAE 19 2,956 3,636 4,252
Financial assets at fair value RARBEEAERZR
through profit or loss TRBEE 20 7,331 - -
Financial assets at fair value BRANBEAHEMEE
through other comprehensive WEMEemEE
income ("FVTOCI") - - 905
Deferred tax assets FRETIIBE 27 590 618 329
Prepayments, deposits and TERFOE ~ e R HEAMm
other receivables JEW R IE 22 1,189 12,363 6,484
335,455 273,215 252,361
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables Z S IR 21 134,783 128,938 105,875
Prepayments, deposits and AR - B REM
other receivables FEWI IR 22 36,585 25,431 18,620
Pledged deposits EHEARTR 23 8,672 931 921
Cash and cash equivalents Re KAeEEY 23 150,636 93,726 84,810
330,676 249,026 210,226
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade payables & S ERFIA 24 39,513 41,873 50,859
Contract liabilities GRBE 25 2,794 4,733 3,774
Other payables and accruals H MR sRIE R FERT IR B 26 54,490 63,866 47,830
Borrowings B 28 19,437 29,690 61,455
Tax payable FERTL SR 11,814 11,587 1,664
Lease liabilities HEARE 29 11,796 15,846 15,251
Convertible bonds AR ES 30 57,953 - -
Total current liabilities BB EATE 197,797 167,595 180,833
Net current assets REBEEZE 132,879 81,431 29,393
Total assets less current BEEABERRBER
liabilities 468,334 354,646 281,754

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

e ISR K (E)

At 31 December 2021
H2021F12A31H

At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020
#2021 45 20204 20204
12H31H 12H31H 1H1H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
B aE BT T BT BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&S (&E7))
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Borrowings EEN 28 3,463 10,487 9,513
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIEAE 27 4,690 4,600 5,753
Lease liabilities MEAE 29 33,582 15,641 20,006
41,735 30,728 35,272
Net assets BEFE 426,599 323,918 246,482
Capital and reserves B #iE
Share capital &N 31 172 155 155
Reserves i 35 347,466 297,412 248,304
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ANA RIS AE(ERERS
the Company 347,638 297,567 248,459
Non-controlling interests JEFEAS 78,961 26,351 (1,977)
Total equity = iBEE 426,599 323,918 246,482

The consolidated financial statements on pages 160 to 316 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

F160=316 B MR A B R E B 1K 20229F3 A30
ARKEESIET T WAL TATRES

=

LI Xiangli
ZEA
DIRECTOR
EE

YANG Rongbing
BRE
DIRECTOR

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ROAFEARE
Shares held
Share-based  for share Exchange Non-
Share Capital ~ Statutory compensation award FVTOCI  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserves reserve scheme reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
HRMRER  RORE  ROAEE EX
WRE  HERE  HARKRE it ] R FER

ke EARE  LERE Rl R WENGE i il ait B EBAE
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
AETr A Tn BT METn BT BT AT BB BT #ETr BETr
(Note (a)) (Note o) (Note (c))
(W) Omstp) (M)

A1 January 2020 (Restated) 720201 A1 (HE5]) 15 110,367 27,964 3464 - (2467) (5,584) 114,560 218,459 (1977) 246,482
Proft for the year ERflE - - - - - - - 52,455 52,455 21,541 799%
Other comprehensive (expense)  EMEH2E(F%) s

income for the year - - - - - (930) 19,646 - 18,710 (1,536) 17,174

Total comprehensive (expense)  ERZE(FY)hELE

income for the year - - - - - (936) 19,646 52455 71,165 26,005 97,170
2019 final dhidend declaredand - BERRIEAH2019F

oaid ote 1) KA () - - - - - - -6k (1640 - (640
Eauity-setlled share compensation M EGEERRABERT

expense note 32) (Mtz32) - - - 23 - - - - 23 - 23
Shares purchased for shareaward A7 521 2R E 21k

scheme (note 33) (M333) - - - - (5920 - - - (590 - (590
Transfer from retaned profts ~ REHHER - - 3968 - - - - (3969) - - -
Capital controution fromnon-~~ —FEBR Al 23EHRR

controling interest of a subsiolary E&TE - - - - - - - - - 238 2323
At 31 December 2020 Restated) 202012310 (HE7) 155 110,367 31,982 3721 (5,920) (3,403) 14,062 146,647 297,567 26,351 323918
Proft for the year Ll - - - - - - - 49,83 49,836 30,838 80,674
Other comprehensive incomefor  EAEA2EE

the year - - - - - - 20923 - 20923 48 21,67

Totd comprehensieincome ~~ FAZANEAE

forthe year - - - - - - 20923 49,836 70,759 40,586 111,345
2020 finel dhidend dedlred and £ ERE 412020

oaid ote 1) KA (1) - - - - - - - eg0) (18030 - (1803
2021 nterim dhidend declared - EETEREAA20215

and paid (note 13) RS (P13) - - - - - - - (9,844) (9,84) = (984
Fauity-settled share compensation W ERE AR ARERT

expense [notss 32 and 33) (ME32R33) - - - 9,308 - - - - 5208 - 9,308
Shares puchased forshare - ARGREHEEE ZRA

award scheme note 39) (MtzE3) - - - - (6,309) - - - (6,309) - (6,309)
Award shares vested EEERERD - - - 4170) 3,757 - - 43 - - -
Bonus issue of shares BIR 16 86,243 = s = = = (86,259) = = =
Issue of shares upon exercise of  {T(FERIEAZTR(

share options 1 5,151 - (1,055) - - - - 4,097 - 4,097
Transler fom retaned profs ~ (REHEEE - - 3,563 - - - - (3,569) - - -
Capital contrbuton from —RHBLEL

non-controling inerest of FRERTE

asubsidiary - - - - - - - - - 6,097 6,097
Aoguistion of subsidaries (note 36) AKEH B 271 (F15E36) - - - - - - - - - 5921 5927
At 31 December 2021 H021E128318 172 201,761 35,495 7,900 (8472) (3,403) 34,985 79,200 347,638 78,961 426,599
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Notes:

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

The amounts represent for (i) the share premium of the issued share
capital of the Company; (ii) the difference between the nominal values
of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the share capital
of subsidiaries acquired through an exchange of shares pursuant to
the reorganisation of the Company in prior years; (i) the difference
between the fair value of the capital injections from non-controlling
shareholders and the carrying amount of the subsidiary attributable
to the non-controlling interests; (iv) the difference between the
consideration paid to non-controlling shareholders and the carrying
amount of the subsidiary attributable to the non-controlling interests;
and (v) the deemed contribution from non-controlling interest
determined by the difference between the principal amount and the
fair value of other loans at initial recognition.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), before distribution of the net profit each
year, each of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC shall
set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation to the statutory reserves.
The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of
directors of these PRC established subsidiaries and by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, HK$3,563,000 (2020: HK$3,968,000
(Restated)) were transferred from retained profits to the statutory
reserves.

The amount represents the share option and share award expenses as
disclosed in notes 32 and 33, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(=7)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEE
Profit before tax TR 112,761 99,748
Adjustments for: ERTIISEELAZ
Finance costs BE KA 3,745 4,432
Income from financial assets at fair value BAABETABENEBEENSEA
through profit or loss (136) -
Depreciation of property, plant and Mm% - BEREERITE
equipment 25,844 23,299
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENITE 15,503 15,278
Depreciation of investment properties BEMENITE 1,560 1,469
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 777 757
Loss on disposals of items of property, plant ~ HEWE « BiE MR EERHEE - 558
and equipment, net 96 181
Fair value changes of financial assets and BAREEFABRNEREERBER
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss NREEE 7,990 (923)
(Reversal of impairment losses) impairment & SEUFIERN CREEBERERD)FESSE -
losses on trade receivables, net Pt (636) 1,267
Equity-settled share compensation expense  WIEzS A E MR ER 9,398 263
Operating cash flows before movements in BELACEYINLERETE
working capital 176,902 145,771
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables B S REREIERL, (3 m) 1,201 (16,328)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other ~ JB A ~ 124 N E A0 FE IR IBE AN
receivables (6,930) (11,924)
Decrease in trade payables 2 S ENTERD (4,020) (11,288)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHAECRD), /1Em (2,048) 691
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HifEMFIB R EFIER O ),/ 4N
accruals (7,304) 19,941
Cash generated from operations REEENRS 157,801 126,863
Income tax paid [=ARR T (23,139) (11,429)
Net cash from operating activities REEBEREFHE 134,662 115,434
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
meREenER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE BT T BT T
(Restated)
(#&&E7)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZD
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB 1% - BB &R E U X
and intangible assets EmEE (45,165) (35,614)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant  HEWE - MENERES
and equipment RIE 5,750 7,019
Withdrawal of pledged deposits RRBEEBER 945 -
Placement of pledged deposits TFABEBER (8,548) -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEEREAABETABREN
through profit or loss CHEE (7,264) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash URBEFT B AT - INERIEEA
acquired R 36 (8,788) (9,016)
Income received from financial assets at fair IR ARBEF ABRA S @
value through profit or loss BEASRA 136 -
Disposals of financial assets at fair value HERAASBERABED
through profit or loss TREE - 950
Proceed for disposal of an associate & — B S D E TS R = 7,363
Deposit paid for purchase of leasehold land  BEEME it v B ige - (9,857)
Net cash used in investing activities "EEEFAR ST (62,934) (39,155)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AEEE
Contributions from non-controlling interest ~ FEFEMAEZS T E 6,097 2,328
New bank loans and other loans FIIRITER R EME R 50,030 59,381
Repayment of bank loans and other loans ~ EEIRTTER R HEMER (67,766) (94,629)
Proceeds on issue of convertible bonds BT IR R E S FTIS A 50,000 -
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAE (20,430) (10,986)
Interest paid EASFLE (6,340) (5,410)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITR FT1S 5B 4,097 -
Dividend paid BEfRE (27,874) (16,400)
Purchase of shares for share award scheme &% {7 ZEN T 2B E 2 IHD 33 (6,309) (5,920)
Net cash used in financing activities BhEEBFT R € F R (18,495) (71,641)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRRSEEYIEMEHE
EQUIVALENTS 53,233 4,638
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FINRERBAESEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 93,726 84,810
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net JMNEMEREHA L - JF58 3,677 4,278
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNRERAESEEY
END OF YEAR 150,636 93,726
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General Information

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (the “Company”) is
an exempted company with limited liability incorporated in
the Cayman Islands on 29 July 2015. The registered office
address of the Company is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park,
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands
and the principal places of business are Suite 1015, 10/F,
Ocean Centre, Harbour City, Kowloon and Building No. 78,
Zhuyuan Road, No 12 District, Tianzhu Free Trade Zone,
Beijing, China. The Company’s shares have been listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 12 July
2016.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 44. The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Group”.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB”).

Previously, the directors of the Company (the “Directors’)
prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Group in
RMB. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Directors
changed the presentation currency of the consolidated
financial statements from RMB to Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) as
the directors of the Company consider that it is an appropriate
presentation for a company listed in Hong Kong and for the
convenience of the shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the IFRS
Interpretations Committee of the IASB issued in June 2021
which clarified the costs an entity should include as “estimated
costs necessary to make the sale” when determining the net
realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2.

e SRR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

2. Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

F& R #TR] I ARAE BT B9 B PR B
B E 2D ([(RPRIMF®RE
Q) ) (%)

© 28 i B 1] R A R B9 3 =] RS FT KR
PR R 2R

AEBEWERFEAATERMERAKRE
MEFTR] MAERT e BIFR B 75 i 5 22 A1) -

effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRS
Standards

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?®

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
20211

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies®

Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2018-2020?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

170/ China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2021

(BB EA TS 3R )
E175%

(PR EA TS R 2R )
FEIF2IER]

(BB EA TS 3R )

F105 K ER gt

RIl)EE285% 2 1E7T
(BIFRE 53R 5 £ A1)
F165R 2 1ER]

(BEEREHERD
F1RZIERT

(BEREHERDSE1R
RSB TS s
EANEBHAE
F2RZIEFT

(B g HERD
EBEZIEFT

(BEREHERD)
1257 2EF]

(BIFR & =R
F165 2 EF]

(B2 &R))
EITH2EE]

(BB R A1)
BB

RBAHRIABZ
SR
B RIER

BEEEEBEPE
KA ERE L HN
EEHELEA

202156 H30H %K)
AT ARSI
eaEs

HEEDEAREK
FERE?

SEHR 2 &S

SHEFTHER?

RE—XHMELE
EMAERENE
FERIES

L ER Y
1ERE AR BIRAT
SRR

BiEEAN-BITA
KR A2

(BIBR B R 2R
2018-2020% 7
B k2

’ R2021F4 1Bk 2 A FIRFE A

R

2 M2022F1 A1 Ak 2 BRI FE R

S

8 20231 A1 AR ZARBHFE R

£

&
‘ ARFTE B H3sk 2 1& Bl 16 89 F E BAR AR 2L



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Except for the amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the
Directors anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

° update a reference in IFRS 3 Business Combinations
so that it refers to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued by the IASB in March
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) instead of the
International Accounting Standards Committee’s
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in September
2010);

° add a requirement that, for transactions and other
events within the scope of IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC
21 Levies, an acquirer applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21
instead of Conceptual Framework to identify the
liabilities it has assumed in a business combination;
and

° add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to
business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

2. Application of New and Amendments
to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance
on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months from reporting date for classification of liabilities
as current or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months; and

(ii) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if
the lender does not test compliance until a later
date; and

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying IAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31

December 2021, the application of the amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB.
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

UGSV BBRRNEERE
REFTEE

3.1

EREARERRNEE

e B RRIZREER S ERE
F 2R BIFR M 53R & £ R D5
o MRBEEAMBHRERME © W
EMAHEBEHBTETERRER
FEORTE - AIBEREHN WA RE
Ko 9N - HEMBRRBIKEE
BEXHAARARES EMARAD
(ICEMRAD]) REECABEDD
MIEHBE AR

ARA B ISR TR IE 2 PR B
B EETERIARNZREY
RAREBEFE  WTIXIRHE
SRR

JESL AR — RIS fn K RS Y
RENAREEBFE -

FERRBIZERARAR ¢ 2021 FEHE

173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.1

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except
for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use
in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs are to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is
calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basic of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled (including structured entities) by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution
of relevant reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The concentration test is met if substantially all of the
fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets,
and goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax
liabilities. If the concentration test is met, the set of
activities and assets is determined not to be a business
and no further assessment is needed.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the International Accounting Standards Committee’s
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in September
2010).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS
19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured
at the present value of the remaining lease
payments (as defined in IFRS 16) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount
as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to
reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’'s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. mBUSEMBEBRNEERE

Financial Statements and Significant REFTBUER (&)

Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EAGTEEK(E)
Goodwill (continued) BE(E)
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is RAEBARNS  IEgEIEE
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units TEHA R & OF 89 167 [B) BUFE i 7B 2= Y 2R
(“CGUS”) (or group of CGUs) that is expected to benefit SEEReELBEN(IREELE
from the synergies of the combination, which represent i) (B eEEBAMAR]) - BN
the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for RAMLERMFELEHENKEE
internal management purposes and not larger than an FEFRREE D ERERL ©

operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been BEORBMENHEEEBM(HR
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more CELEBMMARN) gEFETRE
frequently when there is indication that the unit may B IR ETREREBEENT
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition B H ER VR (B PR 5B A b EE TR (BB
in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) oo A mERNAKEmELESN
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for HMEmME  BOoEEmENREEE
impairment before the end of that reporting period. B (SRR EEEMNAR) NZH
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying HSHRAETRENG o & iE
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce SEONERAEE  AREEBES
the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the EDEEATR AR EENREE -
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying HEpZzBUANSBEEREEN
amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs). LRI DB EZ BN (IR EASN

MR EMBEE ©

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU ERERERCELAENIHECE
within the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of AEMEANRNERRESEESEN
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount B EENELSESRNETLE
of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes BB ETEAN - AEETE
of an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within a REEABM(SRGEEERAT
group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed of WEIRSEESMN) AR EBE - 1
is measured on the basis of the relative values of the ENHEeBERMEE RS (R
operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of SELSM)NBAREBERRENIR
the CGU (or the group of CGUS) retained. CEABMUTD (KB eEESMAE
BDETE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a service (or a
bundle of services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an

asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract, that
best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to
consideration in an amount that corresponds directly
with the value of the Group’s performance completed
to date (please specify — for example, service contracts
in which the Group bills a fixed amount for each hour
of service provided), the Group recognises revenue in
the amount to which the Group has the right to invoice.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will
not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the contract are subsequently changed. As a
practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability; and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. HmAERESUBRRNEERE
Financial Statements and Significant REFTBUER (&)
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EAGTEEK(E)
Leases (continued) HE(E)
The Group as a lessee (continued) HKEFEBEATN ()
Right-of-use assets (continued) FRAEEEE)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset,
and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration
in a contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease maodifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange fluctuation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

The change in presentation currency of the Company
was applied retrospectively, as if the new presentation
currency had always been applied.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs (continued)

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant
date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
compensation reserve). In cases where the grant
date occurs after the employees to whom the equity
instruments were granted have begun rendering
services, the Group estimates the grant date fair
value of the equity instruments for the purposes of
recognising the services received during the period
between service commencement date and grant date.
Once the grant date has been established, the Group
revises the earlier estimation so that the amounts
recognised for services are ultimately based on grant
date fair value. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the
share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to employees (continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to capital reserve. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will continue to be held in share-based
compensation reserve.

Shares purchased for share award scheme

When the Company’s shares are purchased from
the open market for share award scheme, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as shares held for
share award scheme and deducted from total equity.

The fair value of services received from directors and
employees determined by reference to the fair value
of award shares granted at the grant date is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based
on the Group’s estimate of award shares that will
ultimately vest, with a corresponding increase in share-
based compensation reserve. For award shares that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of
the award shares granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

At the time when the award shares are vested, the
difference on the amounts previously recognised in
shares held for share award scheme and the amount
recognised in share-based compensation reserve is
transferred to retained profits.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

AT ESVBBRNEERE
REFTEER(E)

3.2

BEAREFBER ()
Uikt B E# 8915 ()

BRBEE LR BERHNAK S
(#&)

ETREMNBEREGE)

EITEBRAER - SRR ARD R
AERmmEREERNEESER
ERAGHE - WBRELRE R
BB YA Em B BDARITEE -
ST RIS AR 17 7 EEHE B 108 1 o s T
RN SEEN RN BERD
MEREAAR -

BBRDEBEBE 2K

BARR BB ZR IR ART
BRBERNE - SNRE(BRREREMA
BEEREHEEERAN)DIERRD
By R BIFTR AL - W B S A ER A

EELREEMEHRRENAEE
D2ERHNZEBROHNE LA S
ZANRBEEE  REASEHR
R B B AR O MR LB
ORI IR B - AR AN
AR AR E A - BLN R
TR EBNERRNME
P h BB D R R BB I BIE
PIBERHA -

ERERDREE - TR R
By AT BIFT R A ) R A 2 B R A
B REROHERBRERRBNTE
Z M ERREHEERENE -

FERRBIZERARAR ¢ 2021 FEHE

197



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities. For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, the
Group applies IAS 12 requirements to right-of use
assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition due
to application of the initial recognition exemption.
Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision
to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modification that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the
date of remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the provision of services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
(other than construction in progress) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings and leasehold improvements in the course of
construction for provision of services or administrative
purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as “property, plant and equipment”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Variable payments that are dependent on the Group’s
future activity are not included in the measurement of
intangible assets and are recognised as expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of
the following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use
or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure

attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite
useful lives are reported at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses,
on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets
are allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU or
group of CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a CGU)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the
Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group
of CGUs) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or CGU or a group of
CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and
are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group’s right to receive the dividends
is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other
income and other gains and losses” line item in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
or designated as FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other income and other gains and losses”
line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, pledged deposits and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under
IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessments are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
and the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

UGSV BBRRNEERE
REFBER (#)

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3.
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EAGTEEK(E)
Financial instruments (continued) THETH(E)
Financial assets (continued) TEEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) TREEREE)

U

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

(iiiy Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.

218 / China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2021

3.

UGSV BBRRNEERE
REFBER (#)

3.2

BEXSTBER(E)
SHTH(E)
TEEEE)
TRBEREE)
(i) BEEFEERENSREE
(&)
(©) ERANERAER
A {5 30 A B 75 R & 42
R ERAE LR
A - MAERARTF
BERARATEEE
KB © 5k

V)

o  fERABRIBEHEERE
ESEMPHEAD -

HREHBCR

ERERBTEFHRAR
BV BRE - AEERKD
TREER AR - flang
FHBBERACEARER
FrAEEeMESRE
Eo-EEBEERERER
% CHESREEDIR
EAKE U OIE TR
HIMEERE) o MEHBAAR L
REM - TWERKENE
HEERmiER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights. The Group uses a
practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(V) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(V) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own
equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade payables
and other payables and accruals are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3
applies, (i) held for trading or (iii) it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading or contingent consideration of an acquirer in a
business combination may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9
permits the entire combined contract to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

For financial liabilities that are designated as at
FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. For financial
liabilities that contain embedded derivatives, such as
convertible bonds, the changes in fair value of the
embedded derivatives are excluded in determining
the amount to be presented in other comprehensive
income. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in
other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are
transferred to retained profits upon derecognition of
the financial liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e SRR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

ARG SMBRRNEERE
REFBUR ()

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3.
Financial Statements and Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 3.2 EAGTEEK(E)
Financial instruments (continued) TETH(E)
Financial liabilities and equity (continued) PHEERRE(E)
Convertible bonds AR B2

A conversion option that will be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Group’s own
equity instruments is a conversion option derivative.

Convertible bonds, which contain debt component and
derivative components, are designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

4,

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below:

Provision for ECL on trade receivables

The Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL of the trade
receivables individually for significant balances and based on
provision matrix for the remaining debtors. Significant balances
are assessed individually by considering internal credit rating,
historical credit loss experience adjust for any forward-looking
information. ECL on remaining debtors are assessed by past
due status for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns and based on the Group’s historical
default rates and calibrated to adjust for any forward-looking
information. The impairment assessment of trade receivables
involves high degree of estimation uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(continued)

Provision for ECL on trade receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECL is a
significant estimate. The amount of lifetime ECL is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECL on the Group’s trade receivables are disclosed in
note 42(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The amount
of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 was
HK$108,388,000 (2020: HK$77,491,000 (Restated)). Further
details are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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B2 RUEENRE R R R RE ()

HESLBRENE  FRBZEN R M IAH
EEEAXZENHBENFGHIIEKRG
it 2HEMERERANSBEHRFE(L
R TR R EAR R - NEEWE L 1F
ERRR R N B IR B TROR b A] BE R
FEREPARRERBONIER - BHEA
SEEZRUFBRREERROERRN
AP BMERME420)KE -

EEBAEE

firl B 1% 7] BE 5 FE R B A K 85 T 2h A B 75
BB - AIgt R ARG E B RRRER
BEE - RIBEBRERBAEHIEEE
R P Je 7K S DA K2 BB B 765 3R 81 SR S AR °F
AERNECHIBEEESER - AIELE
ANEEEHE - R2021F12 A31HE kK
R AR B & 5 A% 108,388,000 7T
(20204F : B#77,491,0007T (KL EF)) »
#— B IREN R A M mRM 2T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

5. Revenue

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers

A

i) FFEHRARMA

Segments R 2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(ge&E7)
Type of services BRA% | A
Testing services ORI AR 7 520,304 408,455
Surveying services EF IR 223,617 192,883
Witnessing and ancillary services R RE AR 74,907 48,566
Total A&t 818,828 649,904
Geographical markets EH IS
Greater China RPER 520,177 397,069
Singapore N 265,387 223,856
Other countries/regions HBER, @ 33,264 28,979
Total A&t 818,828 649,904
Timing of revenue recognition LN |
A point in time H— 2 813,370 649,904
Over time —EX R 5,458 -
Total A&t 818,828 649,904
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. Revenue (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Rendering of services

The Group performs analytical tests and issues testing
certificates or reports after completion of the on-site
preparation. The performance obligation is satisfied
upon (i) completion of testing services and/or (ii)
issuance of testing certificate. A contract liability is
recognised for advance payments received for sales in
which revenue has yet been recognised.

The Group provides surveying services and witnessing
and ancillary services (excluding supervision and
equipment maintenance services) on-site. Service
reports are issued after services rendered. The
performance obligation is satisfied upon (i) completion
of provision of services and/or (ii) issuance of service
reports, if any. A contract liability is recognised for
advance payments received for sales in which revenue
has yet been recognised.

The Group provides supervision and equipment
maintenance on-site. Such services are recognised
as a performance obligation satisfied over time as
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs. Revenue is recognised for these
services based on the stage of completion of the
contract using output method.

All services provided by the Group are for periods
of one year or less. As permitted under IFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

5. WAG&E)

(ii)

EFENNENER

TR

REBR TERRE R AT AR
W EmBEERNRS - BOEE
A (ViR RS T2 Rk Ko/ k(i BB
BEREK - ANBBEREARR
RS RER R BIHERNRK
1g o

AEBRHETERSE MRS RER
HYRE(TEREEE MREEER
1) o RIRE AR B BRF HRE
FE KB AER() SE R IR B AR 7S B2, 3K i)
HERBHRE (NB)REKX - &4
BERUA R RIERE @ WER S
EUIHETAR IR -

AEBRERSEE MRBEEER
5 o % PR B R 4 80 R B UL
MEBERAEEREHFIHENF
@ MIZERBGEER /N —BE
BAZRN—BENEE - WAR
BA K TTRRE B A B DA TER
FhR

AEBRENAERBHRE—F
SOAT o NS BER B 75 ¥R 5 Al
SEIGSATMERT - AR ERFTRE
AR Z BB TIHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

6. Operating Segment 6.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment focuses on revenue analysis by geographic
location of customers. No other discrete financial information is
provided other than the Group’s results and financial position
as a whole. Accordingly, only entity-wide disclosures are
presented.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the Greater China and
overseas.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the service
provided. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is
presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

mEDE
AARAMTEFR(EBELZERRE (X
ELREREE ) 2BNMBETERD R R
AHERE BRI ERN IR T P A IE A B (F i
HIRA DT - BRAREH BB RS M
RS - BB HE MBS ER -
bt E2mMEBIESEE -

I 13 3 8
REEBIMZETEM A KPR SO o
BEANEBINBREEITSRANE R TR

PR RSP 2R - BN ANKE3E
MBEENERIREENMISUEZR -

Revenue from Non-current
external customers assets

HEHBEFKA FRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 20204 20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T BET T BT T
(Restated) (Restated)
(Fg=E5) (F&ES))
Greater China pGEE 520,177 397,069 229,944 199,928
Singapore ¥ 265,387 223,856 50,732 46,580
Others HAtb 33,264 28,979 45,669 13,726
818,828 649,904 326,345 260,234

Note:  Non-current assets excluded financial assets and deferred tax
assets.

Information about a major customer
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
revenue generated from one of the Group’s customers —

Customer A, accounting for 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

Other Income and Other Gains and 7. HWAUREMKERESR
Losses
An analysis of other income and other gains and losses is as E AW A LA R B Ath iz R BRI AT T -
follows:
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T IT
(Restated)
(&E7)
Other income Hibl A
Bank interest income RITHRBHA 109 79
Value-added tax refund 2R B ET 1,462 1,334
Government subsidies IEdiSEGE) 7,119 13,275
Rental income HaelA 1,619 1,400
Income from financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFABENSRIEE
Frigug A 136 -
Others i 441 1,149
10,886 17,237
Other gains and losses Hitt = R EE
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange difference  SNEE & ZREU S (E518) 306 (2,018)
Loss on disposals of items of property, HEYE  BEMREEENESE -
plant and equipment, net FE (96) (181)
Others EAth 662 (862)
872 (3,061)
11,758 14,176
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE
8. Finance Costs 8. REMRA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERARE AT -
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(#eE5)
Interest on bank and other loans IRITREMERF B 1,705 2,722
Interest on lease liabilities HERERNE 2,040 1,710
3,745 4,432
9. Income Tax Expense 9. MMEHEX

Pursuant to the local rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject
to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands.

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong are
subject to income tax at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject
to income tax at a statutory rate of 25% on their respective
taxable profit, except for certain subsidiaries, which have been
identified as “high and new technology enterprises” and were
entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore are

subject to income tax at the rate of 17% on the estimated
assessable profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

Income Tax Expense (continued)

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rate of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

9. FEBMAX(E)

H iR R AENH B RIFERITA
Bl EEERERED - RAKEEEMN
EHREEERAIVITHEE -

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
(Restated)
(JEE5)
Current income tax BNERFR1S L
— Mainland China —HhER 12,457 10,461
— Other jurisdictions —HEtalEEERE 10,633 7,891
Withholding tax of dividends distributed o EURT B A R AT IR AR S A9 TR
by a PRC subsidiary - 2,883
23,090 21,235
Deferred tax credit (note 27) FIEFR AR 2 (MFE27) () (1,483)
Tax charge for the year FABIEZ L 23,087 19,752
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

9. FEBMAX(E)

FAMSHAX ARG Ra MEMEE
Wen R AR AT AESRRINT

9. Income Tax Expense (continued)

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to profit
before tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(fgE5))
Profit before tax T ATAIE 112,761 99,748
Income tax expense at the statutory income  1%£25%#J% TE PSR 5T E /)
tax rate of 25% FrisfiA 28,190 24,937
Tax effect of the preferential income tax rate  FTSRE R BTG 2 (7,546) (9,657)
Tax effect of different tax rates applicable to & Fl A H Ah Bl ARER AL & Y
subsidiaries operating in other HEB AR TRMENRBE
jurisdictions (5,018) (8,318)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIEEENT S E 8,447 7,882
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss previously — EhFH 2 B R RN T B 1B Y T 75
not recognised g (723) (1,199)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for tax N A YEFIFR R B X TR G S/ &
purpose 4,914 4,935
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BAEERT AN GENRETE
purpose (4,625) (4,117)
Additional tax deduction for research and T 88 7 S A SR B AR 1B
development expenditure (1,579) (1,416)
Tax effect of withholding tax on the REEFBEE R T A 2R FE
distributable profits of the Group’s TEMB RS2
PRC subsidiaries = 4,361
Tax effect of change in tax rate in deferred TR EB) TR E A RRIERIB
tax liability arising from withholding tax BENTBTE = (2,656)
Underprovision in prior years BT FERET R 1,027 -
Income tax expense for the year FRAERAY 23,087 19,752
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. Profit for the Year

10.

The Group’s profit for the year has been arrived at after

charging (crediting):

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

F A

A B F R FBENE GEA) U TEE
TR

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(gEE5)
Auditor’s remuneration R GIER T 2,278 1,845
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - BREMEENTTE
and equipment 25,844 23,299
Depreciation of investment properties REMENITE 1,560 1,469
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENITE 15,503 15,278
Amortisation of intangible assets A R 777 757
Research and development costs HERARGIAEMAE)
(included in other expenses):
— Current year expenditure —ARFERY 22,908 12,583
Employee benefit expenses (including EERAMAZ(BEEERES
directors’ and the chief executive’s TTEABE) -
remuneration):
— Wages and salaries —IEKE® 264,532 220,472
— Pension scheme contributions —RIREET B 26,152 6,720
— Welfare and other expenses — @A R EAMFE 62,342 43,207
— Equity-settled share compensation — RS ERNRNDFEERS
expense 9,398 263
362,424 270,662
(Reversal of impairment losses) impairment ~ JBEAE B8 KER N CREE B [D)
losses under ECL model, net: WEEEFEE
— Trade receivables —E Z WA (636) 1,267
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

11.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 11.
Remuneration

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance is as follows:

EERBESTHRAESHMH

RIBCEMRRD BB BCARHERDD BN
FRNEZRBZESTRABFHFMAOT

2021 2020
20214F 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(geE=5)
Fees we 300 300
Other emoluments: Emme -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMPRIERESE 4,740 4,708
Performance related bonuses ERARRATEAL 2,186 1,033
Equity-settled share compensation expense AR 45 E BN FEE R SZ 4,595 106
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIRR 489 348
12,010 6,194
12,310 6,494

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BIUFHTES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

FRARBYIFATESTHEE

during the year were as follows: HHT -
2021 2020
20214F 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(F£E5))
ZHAO Hong ikl 100 100
WANG Zichen FHEE 100 100
LIU Hoi Keung =L 100 100
300 300

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company.
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11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12A31HIEFE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 11. EBERESTRAEHM(E)
Remuneration (continued)
(b)  The non-executive directors, WANG Gang (resigned (b) FEIMITES=EHM(R2021F12 723
on 23 December 2021) and HAO Yilei (appointed on HEE) RiB1asE (7R 2021F12 A
23 December 2021), did not receive any remuneration 23R ERE)RNEE2021512 A 31
from the Company for the year ended 31 December B 1F 4 E W0 £ WA A m) A {A] Er B
2021 (2020: nil). (2020%F : ) -
(c) Executive directors and the chief executive () HITESBRERSTHRAE
2021 20214
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances Performance share Pension
and benefits related compensation scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
¥e BER ENER  UBEGEN Bihe
FR R A ROWERS TR x4 Fb
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BT BET T BRI
Executive directors HiTES
LI Xiangli (Chief executive) Zaf(&HTHAR) 1,44 494 1,559 157 3,651
LIUYi 2 1,446 814 1,051 157 3,468
YANG Rongbing BRE 1,200 100 1,128 175 2,603
ZHANG Alying RER 653 778 857 - 2,288
4,740 2,186 4,595 489 12,010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

11. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration (continued)

1. EERBSTRAEHM(E)

(c) Executive directors and the chief executive () HTEERERSITHAB(HE)
(continued)
2020 20204
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances  Performance Share Pension
and benefits related  compensation scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense  contrbutions  remuneration
e MR EyRE  EREER Bike
R e L RIVBERX TR Hries
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(& &75)) (&=51) (& &5)) (E=51) (&=35))
Executive directors HiTES
LI Xiangli (Chief executive) Zmfl(&HTHAR) 1,376 473 - 79 1,928
LU Yi 213 1,510 292 - 79 1,881
YANG Rongbing BRE 1,200 100 105 175 1,580
ZHANG Alying REE 622 168 - 15 805
4,708 1,033 106 348 6,194

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group, which also include the service of LI Xiangli as
chief executive.

The performance related bonuses are determined

having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends.
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12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2020: one) Directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 11 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining two (2020: four) highest paid employees who
are neither a Director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

12.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

hEEEEHHES

FAR B R PER 215 =% (20204 :
—R)EE  BRREFMOFBERIN L
XHIEEN » FEARRBERTHIFRSITHA
BHER T M4 (2020%F : U5 ) & M8
EMFARFMFITEIIT

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T T IT

(Restated)

(&%)

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMRIERSE 5,164 9,300

Performance related bonuses ERRFERIEAL 430 1,369

Pension scheme contributions BRIRSETEIMHR 202 411

5,796 11,080

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest HFNEATHBMNIEESNIEETSITEHA
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following BNEETNEENAZENT

bands is as follows:

2021 2020

20214 20204

Number of Number of

employees employees

EE A BB AZ

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 7B #2,000,001 7T £ 8 #2,500,0007T - 1

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7E#2 500,001 7T & 7 #3,000,0007T 1 1

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 75#53,000,001 7T E A #3,500,0007T 1 2

2 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

12. Five Highest Paid Employees
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of
non-director and non-chief executive highest paid employees
were granted share options or award shares (2020: none).

No remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid employees as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

12. EZBEFMES (&)

HZE2021F12A31HILFE - HERIEE
EMERSTHRAEN RS EER T
BE RS ok B2 BN AR 1D (20204F « 4E) o

HE2021F12A318IEFE - AEETE
MAERIZE =3k h & i = o B B 2 T
HEN - ERRSIMAREB S MAKREE
1% B B2 B ok BE B (5 (2020 - f®) ©

13. Dividends 13. KRE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT IT
(Restated)
(&=E71))
2020 Final - RMB0.0375 (2020: 2019 final 2020 R EA% B — B E BRI A R
dividend — RMB0.0375) per ordinary share ~ 0.03757TC(20204F : 20194 K &
i B — AR#0.03757T) 18,030 16,400
2021 Interim — HK$0.0225 (2020: 2020 2021 F iR B — B mATE
interim dividend — nil) per ordinary share 0.02257T (20204 : 2020 HA
%8 — ) 9,844 -

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the Company were
recognised as distribution during the year after consideration
of dividends on the shares held by the Company’s Share
Award Scheme under the trust (defined in note 33).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of HK$0.018 (2020: RMB0.0375) per share for the year ended
31 December 2021 has been proposed by the Directors and is
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

14. Earnings per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on the following data:

14.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

FRER
SREREFIS ERA AR L B R S

B ARG 4 ORI R 4 PO EL 39T AR A
T -

BREATSEHESRERREERT) -

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(JE5)
Earnings BF|
Profit for the year attributable to owners of 5+ & I E A K 5% 2 7|5 A 2 /)
the Company, used in the basic and RRARIEE ANEEERFE
diluted earnings per share calculation 49,836 52,455

Number of shares

RBEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
(Restated)
(F&E5))
Shares gy
Weighted average number of ordinary shares stE&REARZFIFHINERE
in issue during the year used in the basic BT E R DR T EL
earnings per share calculation 435,991,785 439,348,451
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:  EEALEBEEERNTE
— Share options — BB 1,964,417 -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares =2 &A% #58 2 75 F 259
in issue during the year used in the diluted A2 31T & BATINKE F 198
earnings per share calculation 437,956,202 439,348,451
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

BA RS IR AR MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

14.

Earnings per Share (continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares shown
above for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
have been arrived at after adjusting the shares held by the
Company’s Share Award Scheme under the trust.

In addition, the number of shares adopted in the calculation of
the basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 have been retrospectively
adjusted to reflect the bonus shares disclosed in note 31
which became effective in July 2021.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2021 does not assume the exercise
of certain of the Company’s share options because the
exercise price of those options were higher than the average
market price for shares for 2021. Also, the computation of
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2021 does not assume the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds since their assumed exercise
would result in an increase in earnings per share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2020 does not assume the exercise of
all of the Company’s share options because the exercise price
of those options were higher than the average market price for
shares for 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

15. Y% - EEKREE

Electronic
equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings Vehicles and others improvements in progress Total
R BENE i
BT L] REft %5 I8 ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT BETT BETT
31 December 2021 2021%12A31H
At 31 December 2020 and M2020512A318 |

1 January 2021; 202161418 :

Cost (Restated) AR (&S| 102,427 35,292 101,872 34,688 3,616 277,895
Accumulated depreciation ZFME(LES)

(Restated) (17,280) (21,038) (48,299) (13,631) - (100,248)
Net carrying amount (Restated) ~ BRTIF(E(&E7) 85,147 14,254 53,573 21,057 3,616 177,647
At1 January 2021, net of 2021 F1 18 + 0k

accumulated depreciation ZEHTE(LE7)

(Restated) 85,147 14,254 53,573 21,057 3,616 177,647
Additions RE 387 7,144 31,876 8,751 1,121 49,279
Acquisition of subsidiaries YRR B A R (F3E36)

(note 36) - 124 4,694 - - 4,818
Disposals L& - (1,902) (2,691) - = (4,593)
Depreciation provided during the  F T ER & (F3:10)

year (note 10) (4,481) (1,545) (14,897) (4,921) - (25,844)
Exchange difference B EE 1,592 283 1,099 585 103 3,662
At 31 December 2021, netof ~ #2021412A31A

accumulated depreciation MRRFE 82,645 18,358 73,654 25,472 4,840 204,969
At 31 December 2021: 120215 12A318 :

Cost AR 104,633 40,702 132,503 44,326 4,840 327,004

Accumulated depreciation ZithE (21,988) (22,344) (58,849) (18,854) = (122,035)
Net carrying amount REFE 82,645 18,358 73,654 25,472 4,840 204,969
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31ALFE

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. Y%  EERRE(E)

(continued)
Electronic
equipment Leasehold Construction
Buildings Vehicles and others  improvements in progress Total
BT HEMZ gis=:
BF BH REM e I At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTT BETT BETT BETTT BETT BETTT
31 December 2020 2020%12R31H
At 31 December 2019 and 2019128318 )

1 January 2020; 2020F1F18 ¢
Cost (Restated) KA ES) 96,015 28,298 78,820 27,865 946 231,944
Accumulated depreciation REE(LES)

(Restated) (11,665) (18,440) (35,848) (0318 - (75,271)
Net canrying amount (Restated) ~ BREIF(E(£E7) 84,350 9,858 42,972 18,547 946 156,673
At 1 January 2020, net of 202061 A8 + 1k

accumulated depreciation ZHMEEES)

(Restated) 84,350 9,858 42972 18,547 946 156,673
Additions (Restated) AE(EE]]) 124 8,045 23,207 5472 2,533 39,401
Disposals (Restated) HE(EES) - (3,042) (3,854) - - (6,896)
Depreciation provided during the  ERHTER/E(EE3)

year (Restated) (note 10) (Mzx10) @71 (1,424) (13,196) (3,968) - (23,299)
Exchange difference (Restated) [ X Z 8 (4 E5) 5,384 817 4,424 1,006 137 11,768
At 31 December 2020, netof 1202012 A318 -

accumulated depreciation R 25T E (L&)

(Restated) 85,147 14,254 53,573 21,057 3,616 177,647
At 31 December 2020; 20205124318 :

Cost (Restated) RA(EE) 102,427 35,292 101,872 34,688 3,616 277,895

Accumulated depreciation REHE(LES)

(Restated) (17,280) (21,038) (48,299) (13,631) - (100,248)
Net carrying amount (Restated) ~ BRELF(E (L E7) 85,147 14,254 53,573 21,067 3,616 177,647
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15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, after taking into account the residual
values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum:

4.75%

9.50% to 23.75%

9% to 31.67%

Shorter of lease term or
10% to 33.33%

Buildings

Vehicles

Electronic equipment and others
Leasehold improvements

15.

e SRR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

W% - EREK&REGE)

BRERTIEIN  UEWE  BELREE
B (&S RFSEE) REGEATIFE
e

Bg¥ 4.75%
2] 9.50%%23.75%
BT R HA 9%%231.67%
MEMEEE FAHAE10%%£33.33%

(ABIEE B%E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

16. Right-of-Use Assets 16. FAREEE
Leasehold
Leased land
properties payment Total
HEYX HELHRIE &5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T
As at 31 December 2021 #A2021F12831H
Carrying amount AREE 50,598 16,801 67,399
As at 31 December 2020 72020612831 H
Carrying amount (Restated) REE(EET]) 29,856 6,579 36,435
For the year ended HZE2021512A318 1L EE
31 December 2021
Depreciation charge WEsHA 14,962 541 15,503
Total cash outflow for leases HERS R EE 22,470
Ad(ditions to right-of-use assets 5 RS EIE M 43,792
For the year ended HZE2020F12A31HILLFEE
31 December 2020
Depreciation charge (Restated) wEBREEY) 14,088 290 15,278
Total cash outflow for leases HERE ML BRE(KET))
(Restated) 12,696

Additions to right-of-use assets e A EE (K ED)
(Restated) 8,430
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16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Right-of-Use Assets (continued)

For both years, the Group leases various office premises and
apartment units for its operations and staff quarters. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 10 years.

In addition, the Group owns several office buildings. The
Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties are
presented separately only if the payments made can be
allocated reliably.

The Group had extension option for a lease of office premise.
This was used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The
extension option held was exercisable only by the Group
and not by the lessor. The period arising from the extension
option was included in the calculation of lease liabilities at
commencement date of the lease. The extension option was
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased properties that are
held by the lessor. Leased properties may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

16.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

EHEEER)

ZMEFEAR > REEHEEE THASM
RoBEA - BIEEERBEIBE A -

MESHMEEBRRBIFEI10F -

SN - NEE G BIENR QKRS - AEH
REENFERkD(BEAEEEL ) NE
EHEAA - BEBZEYERED  A5H
BEEAXN—2HE - ZFEAVENH
Bt ERAEIENBERTTEE
B2 -

REBBHAGHHEEEEREER - it
TRAREERASEEEREFMERAE
EHAEAERESEERIN ANEERF
EMERBEEENHASEE(MIELE
AT - EREEREEN AR EER
ERBBEMAERREFNER - EEREE
EREZE2020F12 831 H I FEEITE -

BRHEARANEEYRERERN B
SHHE Y BN EMNRZE -  HEWERT
ARt TR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

17. Investment Properties

17. REWE

HK$’000
BT T
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2020 (Restated) 202041 A18 (KK E5)) 29,910
Exchange difference fEH =58 1,958
At 31 December 2020 (Restated) 2020512 431 B (& &=751) 31,868
Exchange difference fEH =58 967
At 31 December 2021 M2021412 8318 32,835
Accumulated depreciation: FiHinE
At 1 January 2020 (Restated) 202051 A18 (&£E7)) 8,238
Provided for the year (Restated) FREME(LET)) 1,469
Exchange difference fEH =58 584
At 31 December 2020 (Restated) M20205F 12 A31H (L& &%) 10,291
Provided for the year F NS 1,560
Exchange difference fEH =R 311
At 31 December 2021 MR2021412A318 12,162
Net carrying amount: BREFHE -
At 31 December 2021 7202112 H431H 20,673
At 31 December 2020 (Restated) M2020F 12 A31H (K& E5)) 21,577

The Group leases out commercial properties under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run
for an initial period of 1 to 3 years (2020: 1 to 3 years), with
unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial period held
by lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts contain market
review clauses in the event the lessee exercises the option to
extend. None of the leases includes variable lease payments.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited e Annual Report 2021
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17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Investment Properties (continued)

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/
or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over 20 years with 5% residual value.

The Group’s investment properties consist of two commercial
properties in Beijing and Cangzhou, the PRC. The Directors
have determined that the class of the investment properties
is commercial based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of each property. The Group’s investment properties
were valued on 31 December 2021 based on valuations
performed by an independent professionally qualified valuer,
at HK$25,780,000 (2020: HK$23,702,000 (Restated)) based
on direct comparison approach which is classified as level 3
of the fair value hierarchy. There is no change from valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of
the properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use. There were no transfers into or out of level 3
during both years.

As at 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with a total carrying value of HK$19,244,000
(2020: HK$20,705,000 (Restated)) were pledged to obtain a
banking facility from a bank amounting to HK$12,237,000 (31
December 2020: HK$11,876,000 (Restated)).

Further details of minimum lease payments receivable are
included in note 38.

17.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

REWX (&)

AEEYEmERAHEERHAEHNINE
R wIEMABEEESNEEERES
MEEREE - ZFHERNLT B
FIRBERERRHEBAREEHRE
BY)RHEEE -

R EMERRERENR0FAFE - F
ERME(ER5% °

REBHREYMEDFEFBILRERAMNE
MERmAME ZEBFEREBEREMENG
2 RBUERESMENRRBEEETAEH
Al e AEEMREMENR2021F12 A
STHBRBEEYEXESERGEMNERL
BUEFTEME - {18 /5% 25,780,0007T
(20204 : B#£23,702,0007T (KREF])) -
WHEBRAEBEERE=EL - AN
HERMTRBEFELEZE - RMED
ER/AEER  BENESRSREERSE
AgAEBR AR - ZMEFEARLESE
ASBEHE=ER -

R2021F 128318 » AEBEETREDE
(BRM 428 & E % 19,244,0007T (20204 :
7 #20,705,0007T) (&£ EF]) ) B HEA -
LA B RTS8 12,237,0007T (20204F12
A31H : #%11,876,0007T (L E5) ) ViR
TR -

B RREEEFTENE —FFBIRN
F5E38
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

18. Goodwill 18. BHE
HK$'000
BT
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2020 M20205F1 A1 BHRKA KRR SE
(Restated) (& E51) 20,647
Exchange difference (Restated) bE X ZRE (&) 292
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2020 7202012 H31 B 89 AN & AR EDFHE
(Restated) (seE5)) 20,939
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) U BE BB A B (BM3E36) 9,979
Eliminated on deregistration of a subsidiary ST —FEIFT /B 2 B R 8 (700)
Exchange difference EH =R 130
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2021 R2021F12 A31 BRI K BREFE 30,348

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following CGUs for impairment testing:

° Regional commodity inspection service-rendering
CGU;
° Regional commodity inspection service-rendering CGU

in Greater China;

° Regional commodity inspection service-rendering CGU
in Singapore;
o Regional environmental testing service-rendering CGU

in Greater China; and

° Regional commodity inspection service-rendering CGU
in other location.

250 / China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2021
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

Goodwill (continued) 18. HE(H&)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued) B ERE R (&)
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the DEEEReELEMNEEREENT

CGUs is as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(J&E5)
Regional commodity inspection service- TR R 1 P AR R AR TS
rendering = 679
Regional commodity inspection service- ROR A EE (@ $2 A = 1 P on
rendering in Greater China 5 AR 2,696 2,873
Regional commodity inspection service- RO NI FR A A b [ 14 7 oy
rendering in Singapore ISR 17,228 17,387
Regional environmental testing service- AR EER R H AR IR IR
rendering in Greater China B RE 2,070 -
Regional commodity inspection service- FO L th dh [ 42 (L ) [ M 7 o
rendering in other location W R 8,354 -
30,348 20,939
The subsidiary containing regional commodity inspection EEERMtEnRBREREREReEAS
service-rendering CGU was deregistered during the year, and NHNBARIRERNE Y - EtRIEE
the goodwill of which was derecognised accordingly. RERE -

FERRBIZERARAR ¢ 2021 FEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

BA RS IR AR MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

18.

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of the regional commodity inspection
service-rendering CGU in Greater China has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 18% (2020: 18%). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the regional
commodity inspection service-rendering unit beyond the five-
year period is 2% (2020: 2%). In the opinion of the Directors,
there is no impairment required as at the end of each reporting
period.

The recoverable amount of the regional commaodity inspection
service-rendering CGU in Singapore which was acquired
in year 2019 has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 22% (2020: 18%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the regional commodity
inspection service-rendering unit beyond the five-year period
is 2% (2020: 2%). In the opinion of the Directors, there is no
impairment required as at the end of each reporting period.

The recoverable amount of the regional environmental testing
service-rendering CGU in Greater China has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 18% (2020: N/A). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the regional
environmental testing service-rendering unit beyond the five-
year period is 2% (2020: N/A). In the opinion of the Directors,
there is no impairment required as at the end of the reporting
period.
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18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of the regional commodity inspection
service-rendering CGU in other location has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 22% (2020: N/A). The
growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the regional
commodity inspection service-rendering unit beyond the five-
year period is 2% (2020: N/A). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, there is no impairment required as at the end
of the reporting period.

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
CGUs as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The following
describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margin — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved during the year, increased
for expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of each CGU to exceed their respective recoverable
amount.

18.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

& ()
AL 1 ()

L A 3 [ &9 b [ M P AR AR SR R A R R IR
CELBENMNATKESENRERARS
REBAGEFEHEENETE  ZHER
ERAASREREERIERE R FHRE
MBI HEEAEE - ARBESRERAN
i AT BRI R B 22% (20204F + N@EA) o
EE [ 1 AR RIS IRt R R
FHEMNBESREMFEANERERB2%
(20204 : NEMA) - RRRESFRE R
HEERBARRE

FHE 2021 2020612 31 BMIR & &
AEMAFRABERRAETERE - UTA
ERERBEERSRERALEEEEITRE
BARMNSEEEZRR

BEEMNER-ARETREEMEEEN
HEEDNFRMERNFHENE - BE
SRR R IER ISR E MRS

BEIR S — FTER MBS TR BB AN -
R T AR A AR -

BEEME  EMUZFRINVEMNEEE

EEHIreEYZReELEUNREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

19. Intangible Assets 19. BILEE
Customer
relationships
and
inspection
Patents Software certifications Total
BEFBARK
-y e RBAIRE ast
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BT T BT BT BT

31 December 2021 2021%F12H31H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of 202151 A1 8H)
accumulated amortisation AN - OB 2T

(Restated) (&&&=751) 3 2,226 1,407 3,636
Addition NE - 75 - 75
Amortisation provided during  F R §5 B 5 (Fi7E10)

the year (note 10) 2) (315) (460) (777)
Exchange difference EHZER - 15 7 22

At 31 December 2021, net of 72021128318 -

accumulated amortisation FOBR R 5T 5 1 2,001 954 2,956
At 31 December 2021: 2021128318
Cost AN 15 3,158 2,638 5,811
Accumulated amortisation RETEGH (14) (1,157) (1,684) (2,855)
Net carrying amount ARMEFAE 1 2,001 954 2,956
31 December 2020 2020%F12H831H

Cost at 1 January 2020, net of 7202091 81 BH)
accumulated amortisation AN - HOBR AT 5

(Restated) (ge&E5) 5 2,437 1,810 4,252
Amortisation provided during R 5 8 (4L E51))

the year (Restated) (note 10)  (Fft3%10) ©) (303) (452) (757)
Exchange difference (Restated) FE 3 Z %8 (4 E71) - 92 49 141

At 31 December 2020, net of 720204128318 -
accumulated amortisation IR 2T (K ES)

(Restated) 3 2,226 1,407 3,636
At 31 December 2020: 2020F 124318
Cost (Restated) AR (8 E51)) 15 3,063 2,628 5,706
Accumulated amortisation R (K ET)

(Restated) (12) (837) (1,221) (2,070)
Net carrying amount (Restated) BRMEFE (K& E71) 3 2,226 1,407 3,636
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

BEEE (&)

ElEPEENRIERFHEAR - 2FHE

19. Intangible Assets (continued) 19.

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such

intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over

the following periods:

FEER THIHERESOX#H

Patents 10 years =5 104
Software 10 years EgLs 106
Customer relationships and inspection 6 years EPARKRRES 64
certifications

20. Financial Assets at Fair Value through 20. EAREBEFABENERE

Profit or Loss E
Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL: BHI AR AAEBEFABRITENEHE

=
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(gE5)

Listed securities held for trading: BIEEEM LMES -
— Perpetual equity securities — KA RARFE S 7,331 -
21. Trade Receivables 21. BEZREWFIE

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(#eE75)
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIA 138,323 133,175
Allowance for credit losses EEBARE (3,540) (4,237)
134,783 128,938
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

21.

Trade Receivables (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally ranged
from on demand and up to three months. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses presented based on the invoice
dates:

21.

B 5 BWRIR (&)

AEBEEREFPNRZBRERERNE
B EREPATRELENRKRI - EE
HBAENFRERREZ=EA - X&EE
SREBENREERKFIE - GRERE
ABEREZAMES - AEBEALRRE
Z WA S B ERERRIEME
FRIEA - B S RUGIATETE

REZEZAHEINE 5 RUGIANERE
ERKBEB) MREOMAOT

2021 2020

202145 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

(Restated)

(ge=5)

Within 3 months 3E A AR 113,794 105,370
Over 3 to 6 months 3E A LA EZ6(EA 12,712 13,494
Over 6 months to 1 year 68 A A EE1F 5,065 8,302
Over 1 to 2 years 1FELA FZE25F 3,212 1,772
134,783 128,938

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$23,877,000 (2020: HK$26,190,000 (Restated))
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, HK$10,993,000 (2020: HK$10,186,000
(Restated)) has been past due 90 days or more and is not
considered as in default due to the management’s historical
experience on the settlement pattern or record from these
debtors and the good business relationship with these
debtors.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are set
out in note 42.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other

22. FAMNFMIR - RERHMEYRR

Receivables b1 |

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T BT IT

(Restated)

(E5)

Prepayments TERIFIR 17,450 12,693
Deposits and other receivables e REAMERGRIA 20,400 25,175
37,850 37,868
Allowance for credit losses EEBKEE (76) 74
37,774 37,794
Portion classified as non-current assets DEAEIERBEENI D (1,189) (12,363)
36,585 25,431

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits, deposit paid for purchase of leasehold land and
property, plant and equipment, and deposits with suppliers.
Where applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date by considering the probability of default of
comparable companies with published credit ratings.

Details of impairment assessment on deposits and other
receivables are set out in note 42.

e LHEMBYGRAETEEHSES B
BEHELH YE - BEERRBZERENR
HEBRE - WER  KEBELREMR
AR BELRARNENRERER  RE

¥k B EITRED T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

23. Cash and Cash Equivalents and
Pledged Deposits

23.

BERASEEYUAREER
EZN

2021 2020

20214F 2020%F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T ST

(Restated)

(#&E7))

Cash and bank balances He RIRTT4EH 150,636 93,726
Time deposits TEERTFR 8,672 931
159,308 94,657

Less: Time deposits pledged for borrowings & © {E&E & E O {FE AR

and port access right TEHAITE SR (8,672) (931)

Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEYD 150,636 93,726

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and time deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$84,600,000 (2020: HK$63,287,000 (Restated)). RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE
24. Trade Payables 24, BEZENRIE
The following is an ageing analysis of the trade payables BIFZHZAHEINNE S ENFKIBHORR
presented based on the invoice dates: DI -
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(FEES)
Within 3 months 31E A LA 35,367 33,029
Over 3 to 6 months 31E A LA _EZ=61E A 1,117 5,813
Over 6 months to 1 year 618 A A FE14 2,919 2,921
Over 1 to 2 years 1FELA FZ=2F 110 110
39,513 41,873
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally B S REMNKIERTE  BEERBRTH
settled on 90-day terms. ROOBERLEH -
Contract Liabilities 25. SWRAME
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(#eE7)
Advances received from customers EREFBX
Rendering of services RS 2,794 4,733

When the Group receives advances from customers to render
services, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of a
contract, until the Group renders the related services.

i AN B2 [ A 4R 1 AR 75 1 e B B P R B K
BHEBERRANHREREL  BEEAR

B HAEREIRE S -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

25. Contract Liabilities (continued) 25. EREEE)
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRETEERBRAZHELEBEEHEE
recognised relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BEMNSEE -
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(5e&E5)
Revenue recognised that was included in FUETAGHABEEHBAN
the contract liability balance at the ERERIA
beginning of the year 4,733 3,774
26. Other Payables and Accruals 26. HttEFIERESTIEE
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
€=l
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits EstE e - TERER 37,510 45,365
Other taxes payable HAth FE AN TR 5K 1,364 1,546
Payable to vendors of property, plantand ~ FERH% - BE M REX T R0E
equipment 3,655 4,454
Consideration payable (note 36) FERRE(HI7E36) 1,872 -
Others Hit 10,089 12,501
54,490 63,866
All other payables are non-interest-bearing. Except for unpaid Fr 7 E M FE A SRIET AT B o B U iE — R
consideration for acquisition of a subsidiary to be settled BARKRNREGRUEE B BRI FREE
within 1 year after the acquisition date, the remaining other BN BT HEMENRBYEETEEY
payables have no fixed terms of settlement. R -

260 / China Leon Inspection Holding Limited  Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

27. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets

27.

IESERL IR
BB

Provision for
impairment of

trade
receivables
and other
receivables Total
BEEW
MIERHA
PEWFRIE
B &t
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 January 2020 (Restated) 202041 B1 8 (& &%) 329 329
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FTABRRIEERIE
(Restated) (note 9) (g&E=5)) (7E9) 258 258
Exchange difference EH =R 31 31
At 31 December 2020 (Restated) 72020912 4318 (L& &) 618 618
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss RIBEIIBRAIRIETIE
(note 9) (MI719) (46) (46)
Exchange difference ME 5 ZE R 18 18
At 31 December 2021 72021F12A31H 590 590
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

BA RS IR AR MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

27.

Deferred Tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets (continued)

The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in the PRC of
HK$50,453,000 (2020: HK$32,038,000 (Restated)) that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.

The Group also has accumulated tax losses arising in Hong
Kong and other countries/regions of HK$57,935,000 (2020:
HK$45,453,000 (Restated)) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised.

27. EEBIE(E)

ELERAEE (])

REBNRTPEEENRFHEEIBASE
50,453,000t (20204 : &% 32,038,0007T
(&) BR—Z2RAFAEHAEE R
SRIAEFRTFNE o

REETRESREMBER MWREER
=HER B A1 /8 %557,935,0007T (20204 «
#545,453,0007T (£ E51])) + LEFIE AR
BRI E S E £ BB 2 B R R R FERR R
FIE ©

ARZEEREREHEEBERE —BRERN
MEAE  AAEERATAAEGA AR
KPR AR SH A A BIEE 1R
B ARG ZEFEBBERDELCHAEE

Deferred tax liabilities EENEAE
Fair value
adjustment
on intangible
assets
arising from
Withholding acquisition of
tax  subsidiaries Others Total
U
o= N
EEM
B EEMN
BB AREERE Hitr =5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BETT BT BETT
At 1 January 2020 (Restated) 202091 A1 8 (F£E5) 5,208 409 136 5,753
Credited to profit or loss SPAEE
(Restated) (note 9) (e =5)) (M) (1,178) (47) - (1,225)
Exchange difference MEHZRE 40 25 7 72
At 31 December 2020 F2020F12 A31H
(Restated) (s &51) 4,070 387 143 4,600
Credited to profit or loss RPNt
(note 9) - (49) - (49)
Exchange difference fE N =5 124 11 139
At 31 December 2021 2021612 A31H 4,194 349 147 4,690

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited e Annual Report 2021



27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding tax on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the
PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the Company obtained
the Hong Kong tax resident qualification and subsequently
the Company is subject to 5% withholding tax on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in the PRC.

Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of certain
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$68,207,000 (2020: nil)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

27.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

IESER T (4)
JEAEBIE & 8 (4)

BB B EAERE) - EHRBIKZA
INEIREERINEIREES R EAR
MI0%BTEHTL - 52T B20084F1 H1H L
A AEAR2007F12A31HENR
Moo Bl AEBEAEABRTBKLIMNZSE
M AR IRA IR EEMTEINR o g
BlEINSH G E B REERE 2 HE] B
MEHE  ATRABENTENRBEE - &
Z2019F12A31HIEFE - ARRREE
BRBERER  HEAQRARNFTH
R RRZ S B A R T D IR AR BIE5% 5
RGINTENT

R P 7N 55 [ B 4 120 o6 B A 1 2 R ) 1B [B1 B
M BEREREEZERAERRARTK
AT E - A EARERE B mER AR F
BIR @A R Rt R EEE e TERME
£ 51%68,207,0007T (20204F : #&)FHEIE
FERTE AR o

ARBREBRZAOBREL EMEHAE
BiRR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

28. Borrowings

28. &

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(geE5)
Bank loans RITER 19,437 29,690
Other loans HEHR 3,463 10,487
22,900 40177
Secured BHEMA 19,437 29,690
Unsecured and unguaranteed R AR 3,463 10,487
22,900 40177
Bank loans Other loans
IRITER HttEX
2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 20204 20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT BET T BT
(Restated) (Restated)
€ ==xl)) (geE=5)
The carrying amounts of JEEER A LB
the above borrowings are RMEE :
repayable:
Within one year —FR 19,437 29,690 - -
Within a period of more than ~ —fF A HBR R
one year but not exceeding GES=EI
two years - - 3,463 -
Within a period of more MF A _ BT ERB
than two years but not AFHEA
exceeding five years = - = 10,487
19,437 29,690 3,463 10,487
Less: Amounts shown under & : RIREIEETE 7
current liabilities THSHE (19,437) (29,690) - -
Amounts shown under non-  RIERBNEEE T 7
current liabilities THSHE - - 3,463 10,487
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

28. Borrowings (continued)

Notes:

(@)

The secured guaranteed note (the “Note”) to an independent
third party (the “Purchaser”) by way of private placement in
2018, which was matured on 28 September 2019 and further
extend the maturity date to 28 September 2020 was matured
and the entire amount was repaid in 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s other loans with
principal amounts of HK$3,463,000 (2020: HK$10,487,000
(Restated)) were loans from LEI Xihu, the non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary which are repayable in year 2023.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group made
early repayment of the principal amount of HK$7,024,000
(2020: nil).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank loans amounting
to HK$12,237,000 were secured by certain of the Group’s
investment properties and time deposits. As at 31 December
2020, the Group’s bank loan amounting to HK$29,690,000
(Restated) was guaranteed by LI Xiangli and were secured by
certain of the Group’s investment properties.

The bank loans carry floating rates determined by reference
to the Loan Prime Rate of National Interbank Funding Centre,
the PRC, i.e. effective interest rate of 3.5% (2020: 4.59%) per
annum as at 31 December 2021.

28. f&F

GEX

(@)

Gty

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

X (#%)

R2018F AR ERE SN ABLE=F
(T877 )37 201949 A28 B 5| &
R — BB B AR E2020F9 A28
Emﬁ}&ﬁ}fﬂ%i%ﬁ(%%ﬁbaﬂ,
B2 HHBER20205EE -

R2021F12A31H » AEBEHMERA
&5 /7B 153,463,000 (20204 :
10,487,0007C (4&£&E5)) + TR EHIE R
IR R ERENER - BHERE
JBR2023F g - I E2021F 12 A31
BIEFE  AEEEREREEASHEEE
7,024,0007T (20204 : ) °

R2021FE12 A31H » KREEBE
12,237,000t K R TE AR EE S T
& &Y ¥ K E BT SREER o 502020
F12 A31H - K& E B ¥ 29,690,000
T ES) RITE KB TR FE L
R WAREEE TIRE MR -

MR2021F12A31H » RITEFIRKLE
2ERITERERETONERTIE R
BREMmELAZEFETE - BIER
FEFIR B3.5% (20204 : 4.59%) °

BEZARBR A R] o 2021 FEHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

29. Lease Liabilities

20, fHEAE

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(FEES)
Lease liabilities payable: ENEEEE:
Within one year —FR 11,796 15,846
Within a period of more than one year but ~ — & _HEREBIBRFHIREA
not more than two years 9,037 6,463
Within a period of more than two years but M4 A _H{EERB A F IR
not more than five years 13,451 7,406
Within a period of more than five years fiasp BN 11,094 1,772
45,378 31,487
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 B RRE B EE TR 121E A
months shown under current liabilities NEHEEN SR (11,796) (15,846)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  RIERBIAEE T7IIRM12ME A%
shown under non-current liabilities FEEER S 33,582 15,641

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has no lease
obligations that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to

lease liabilities range from 1.95% to 5.25% (2020: 4.36% to
7.96%) as at 31 December 2021.
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30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Convertible Bonds

The Company issued HK$50,000,000, 2% convertible bonds
at a par value of HK$1 each on 11 June 2021. The convertible
bonds are denominated in HK$. The convertible bonds
entitle the holders to convert them into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time from the date falling six months of the
date of issue of the convertible bonds to up to and including
the date which is 3 days prior to the maturity date on 11 June
2026 at a conversion price of HK$1.63 per conversion share.
The conversion price shall be adjusted as provided in the
convertible bonds instrument in specific cases. The holder
has the option to require the Company to redeem all or part
of the convertible bonds together with any then outstanding
unpaid interest on the dates, including third anniversary, the
day falling three years and six months, the fourth anniversary
and the day falling four years and six months of the issue
date of the convertible bond with redemption price at 118%,
121%, 124% and 127% of the outstanding principal amount
of the convertible bonds respectively. If the convertible bonds
have not been converted, they will be redeemed on 11 June
2026 at 130% of the then outstanding principal amount of
those convertible bonds or any part thereof together with
outstanding interest accrued thereon. The convertible bonds
are also redeemable by the holders immediately upon an
occurrence of some specified contingent event.

The convertible bonds contain two components, debt
component and derivative (including conversion and early
redemption options) component. The Group designated the
convertible bonds as a whole as financial liabilities at FVTPL
upon initial recognition.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

30. TERES

R2021F6H118 - AR FHIREEBEEH B
17037778 50,000,000 7T K9 2% A 42 A% (&
% o A REHLUBHEEE - AT RRES
TR E AR AT RRESEHTHRE
NMEAEBZE2026F6 411 B EHABE3AR
EH(BEZA)BEREERETRERRK
MAE1ITER AR AF LA - RNIF
EBEAT  BHRERRITRKRESTIAN
REETHE - BAEAERERATHRERE
FETBHME=AFER  =ZF - EHE
H FNBFEARNFAEAEREAR
HMERKARNTDRIEREETRRESK
THEEAI118% ~ 121% ~ 124% N 127% K B
5 fE 6] 2 B ok 3B o AT AR (& 55 58 R AE ]
ERREZERNTAE o WAl RRESFRE
i BiER2026F6 511 BIRERAEER
ABRRES S EFERE D N2 TEA130%
BOZErnRESERLREEETH
B BRBLEADETERAETHE  F8
ATNARE Bl AT AR (E 5 o

ABEEFEemERS - EHIHED &
TE T A (BEBREERIERE D) 2
oo ARERAERREENBRERES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

30. Convertible Bonds (continued) 30. AR ES(E)
The movement of the convertible bonds for the year is set out FRAIRRESEBHINNT
as below:
2021
20214
HK$’000
BT T
Upon issue BITIE 50,000
Changes in fair value charged to profit or loss RERTBRO A EBEZ S 7,953
Carrying amount at the end of the year FRREE 57,953
Monte Carlo model is used for valuation of the convertible AARIRBASHEREENS T RRESE
bonds. The key inputs used in the model are disclosed in note ThE - ZERAEANEZHASEN
42, MisE42iEE -
31. Share Capital 31. B&&
Number
of shares
BREOEE
‘000 HK$'000
Fhx BT TT
Ordinary shares of US$0.00005 each A% EI{E0.000053 T A 8 %
Authorised as at 1 January 2020 (Restated), 7202041 A1 8 (&K&E5) -
31 December 2020 (Restated) and 2021 20204F (4€ &%) &
202112 A31HAETE A 1,000,000 390
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares BRI T BR
Balance as at 1 January 2020 and 720201 A1 H &2020F12 H31H
31 December 2020 (Restated) MASER (&) 400,000 155
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options P i f% BEIEST{E M 21 TR 1D 3,201 1
Issue of bonus shares (note) BITAI AR (PH3E) 40,309 16
Balance as at 31 December 2021 2021F12 A31 HH & 443,510 172
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company Mzt : HE2021F12A31BILEE » XA F
issued 40,308,800 bonus shares to the existing shareholders, WR2021 57 B5H B &F6 TR HD
on the basis of one new share for every ten shares then BT AR B B E ) IR A AR R BT
currently held on 5 July 2021. 40,308,800% 4L f% °
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32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Group’s employees, directors and other participants in order
to retain and provide incentive to the employees of the Group
to achieve its business objectives. The Scheme became
effective on 5 May 2017 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date. The
refreshment of the Scheme mandate limit was approved on
29 September 2021.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by the
shareholders of the Company and as such limit is refreshed by
the shareholders from time to time. The maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
under the Scheme and any other option schemes (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
in issue. Where any further grant of options to an eligible
participant would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to such eligible
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the total number of shares in issue, such further grant must
be separately approved by the shareholders at the general
meeting.

32.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

RS

RAREEE — AR S ([ AR
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RLMEREASERE EERHE
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~
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

32.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors of the Company. For the share
options granted up to 31 December 2021, the vesting period
varies from nil to three years and the exercisable period is five
years commencing from each vesting date.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

In the event of any alteration in the capital structure of
the Company while any option remains exercisable, such
corresponding alterations (if any) shall be made in the number
or nominal amount of shares subject to the option so far as
unexercised, and/or the subscription price, provided that any
alteration shall be made on the basis that the proportion of
the issued share capital of the Company to which a grantee is
entitled after such alteration shall remain the same as that to
which he or she or it was entitled before such alteration and
that the aggregate subscription price payable by a grantee
on the full exercise of any option shall remain as nearly as
possible the same.

The number of shares and exercise price under the Scheme
disclosed below has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect
the bonus shares that became effective in July 2021 (note 31).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e SRR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

32. BEBRESTEI(E

32. Share Option Scheme (continued)

Particulars and movements of the target shares under the

BERETBR T ENRRNFHBE R E

Scheme:
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Lapsed at Granted  Exercised Lapsed at
1 January during during 31 December during during during  31December  Exercise
Grantee Date of offer Notes 2020 year year 2020 year year year 2021 price*  Exercise period
0208 H200E R
1A18 12R%1A 12R31A
ERAL B M AR ERRE ERKR AME FRRE O EARR ERRR ik kg GRS
HKS
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 00 pershere
T TR R i i i i ST
(Adjusted) (Adusted)  (Adjusted] (Adusted) ~ [Adjusted) (Adjusted)
(&) (E2g) () (g8 (mEg) (E82)
Directors
L
YANG Rongbing 23y 2018 o) 1,100 - - 1,100 - - - 1,100 1285 23July20181022 July 2023
BRE N185FTARA 1857 F2AZBEA2A
YANG Rongbing 23y 2018 o) 1,100 - - 1,100 - - - 1,100 1285 23July 20191022 July 2024
BRE N185E7ARA 19T ARAZNUETR2A
YANG Rongbing 23y 2018 o) 1,100 - - 1,100 - - - 1,100 1285 23July 20201022 July 2025
BRE 1857ARA A0E7 FO3AZA5ET AR
LI Xang 15y 2021 o - - - - 1,200 - - 1,200 214 15Juy 202210 14 July 2007
Al ARAETAA ARETRISAZNNETIRUA
LI Xang 16y 2021 o - - - - 1,200 - - 1,200 214 15y 202310 14 Juy 2028
il ANETAI5A ASETAISAZABETR 1A
LI Xang 15y 2021 o - - - - 1,600 - - 1600 214 15July 2024 1o 14 Juy 2029
il ANETAISA AETRISAZANETR1A
ZHANG Aying 15 July 2021 o - - - - 750 - - 750 214 150y 202210 14 Juy 2027
3 ANETAIGA ANETRISRZAET AR
ZHANG Aying 15 July 2021 o - - - - 750 - - 750 214 150y 202310 14 Juy 2028
S ANETR5A ABETR15RZABET A14R
ZHANG Aying 15 July 2021 ¥ - - - - 1,000 - - 1,000 214 15uly 2024 1o 14 Juy 2029
S ANETR5A AUETR1SRZAET A14R
LUYi 15 July 2021 o - - - - 90 - - 90 214 150uly 202210 14 July 207
] AAETR5A A0ETFSRZAET AR
LUYi 15 July 2021 o - - - - 90 - - 90 214 150uly 202310 14 July 2028
] MAETR5A ABETF15AZABET AR
LUYi 15 July 2021 o - - - - 1,200 - - 1,200 214 15July 2024 1o 14 July 2029
&5 AR1ETA15R AUETAISAENNETR 4
YANG Rongbing 15 July 2021 o - - - - 1,080 - - 1,050 214 150uly 202210 14 Jly 207
ARE AAETAIER NETR15AZ0ETA14R
YANG Rongbing 16 July 202 o) - - - - 1,00 - - 1,060 214 15.July 202310 14 July 2028
BRE AAETAIER A03ETR15AZ20BETA14R
YANG Rongbing 16 July 2021 o - - - - 1400 - - 1400 214 15.July 202410 14 July 2029
BRE AAETAEA Q04T RISAZNETA 4R

FERRBIZERARAR ¢ 2021 FEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31ALFE

32. Share Option Scheme (continued) 32. BRRESTEI(E
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Lapsed at Granted  Exercised Lapsed at
1 January during during 31 December during during during 31 December Exercise
Grantee Date of offer Notes 2020 year year 2020 year year year 2021 price*  Exercise period
iy vl A0
1A18 128318 128318
At EfRE M AME O OERRE  ERRY Mk EMRE ERER ERRN ik LG
HKS
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 per share
S S S A T T
(Adjusted) (Adusted) ~ (Adjusted) (Adusted) ~ (Adjusted) (Adjusted
(32 (mEe)  (E82) (fEE)  (E82) (58
Others
i
Otheremployee 4 uly 2017 g 2558 - 291) 2061 - (1,459) 99) 07 1164 4uly2018103July 2028
L4 L] N1TETR4A 01857 A4 EN3ETAIA
Otheremployes ~~ 4July 2017 @ 2162 - - 2162 - (1259 9) 810 1164 4July201910 3 July 204
L] N1TETR4A 1957 A4REN04ETA3A
Otheremployes ~~ 4July 2017 @ 3146 - (18 3014 - (803) (182 2019 1164 4y 2020103 July 205
L] A1TETR4R A000FT R4REN5ETA3A
Otheremployee ~~ 15.July 2021 o) - - - - 6930 - - 6930 214 15.July 2022t0 14 July 207
L] WNETA15A 2ETAISAZNTETR14R
Otheremployee ~~ 15.July 2021 o) - - - - 6,930 - - 6930 214 15.July 202310 14 July 2028
EhRE WNETA15A Q03T AR ZBETA14R
Otheremployes ~~ 15.July 2021 o) - - - - 9240 - - 9240 214 15.July 2024 0 14 July 209

ElgR 2A157A1R

Q4T R1GBEANETA14R

11,188 - Wy 0y B0 @S B 0%
Exercisable
i
-2t the end of the year 6920 10,737 6,8%
-RER
Weighted average 120 120 199
BXerCise price
METYARE
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to * B AR Y 1T (B A AR AR SAT AR B 1T 3%
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other ARG B A AU B (R FHEE -

similar changes in the Company’s share capital.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

32. Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 4 July 2017, the board of directors of the Company
approved the initial grant only to the Group’s employees. The
total number of the target shares under the initial grant was
8,000,000, representing 2% of the then issued share capital
of the Company.

There are three unlocking dates: being the expiry dates of the
first anniversary, second anniversary and third anniversary of
the grant date, subject to the vesting conditions and upon
expiry of which, 30%, 30% and 40% of the trust benefit units
granted to each participant shall be unlocked. The lock-
up period is from the grant date to each of the aforesaid
unlocking dates, during which the disposal of the trust benefit
units is prohibited.

On 23 July 2018, the board of directors of the Company
approved the grant to a director, YANG Rongbing. The total
number of the target shares under this grant was 3,000,000,
representing 0.75% of the then issued share capital of the
Company.

There are three unlocking dates: being the date of grant,
the expiry dates of first anniversary and second anniversary
of grant date, subject to the vesting conditions and upon
expiry of which one third of the trust benefit units granted to
participant shall be unlocked. The lock-up period is from the
grant date to each of the aforesaid unlocking dates, during
which the disposal of the trust benefit units is prohibited.

On 15 July 2021, the board of directors of the Company
approved the grant to 4 directors and the Group’s employees.
The total number of the target shares under this grant was
36,100,000, representing 8.14% of the then issued share
capital of the Company. Each grant of the share options to
LI Xiangli, ZHANG Aiying and LIU Yi was approved by the
independent non-executive directors on 15 July 2021 and
was approved by the shareholders on 29 September 2021.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

32. BEBRESTEI(E

GEX

(@)

R2017F7F48 - AREEESHLAEE
mMALERERE B XEL - EAREET
TZ RS {7 42 84 £8,000,0000% * {HZANA A]
RO BITIRE2% -

BREZEAMRZR  REBHENE—
B F_EME=@BEFERzH8 &
T 5B &M E R AT AL AR S B JE R
B BT E2EEZ0%  30%F40%H)
ERSRENATIRE -  ZEHR A
R BEE P ERBER - BEREIE
EEEZREN -

R201847A23H » ARREESHL M
HEEGRENET - ZBERHETER
BB 17 42 81 53,000,0000% * (5 ANATE
B E B TIRAR0.75% ©

REZ(EFRER - MREESH  KHER
HEMNE-—ENE_@BEFERZB -
BT R IR E LRI ZE A R
K RTP2EE=H2 —NETXXEE
AT AL - ZREMRAREAHE
BE@ER  BELIEEERERSR
Bz o

Ro021E7 158 - ARREES LM
HNEEERALEEENET - ZE
T TR 89 R 1) 48 84 36,100,000
B AR AR AT E R B EITRAS.14% ©
MZERF - RE R R 2R AR
ER2021F7 A15BE B FERITES
HEME R A2021F9 A29 AR SR it -

PR S RERIERERAT « 2021 FERE

273



274

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

32. Share Option Scheme (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(continued)

There are three unlocking dates: being the expiry dates of the
first anniversary, second anniversary and third anniversary of
the date of offer, subject to the vesting conditions and upon
expiry of which, 30%, 30% and 40% of the trust benefit units
granted to each participant shall be unlocked. The lock-
up period is from the grant date to each of the aforesaid
unlocking dates, during which the disposal of the trust benefit
units is prohibited.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, options were
granted on 15 July 2021. The estimated fair values of the
options granted on those dates are HK$13,692,000 and
HK$5,168,000 respectively. These fair values were calculated
using the Binomial model. The inputs into the model were as

32, BEBRESTEI(E)

iz (8)
© (#)

RE=Z(EARZA : NEHBEHENE—
B F_EMEFZEBFERzH &
TEBKREMERRATMFZAER
B BT EL2EEZ0% - 30%F40%H)
BB EMNBT NGRS - ZEHRA
B BEEE P SEEA - BRI
EEAT BN -

HE2021F12A31HILEFE - BRE
M2021F7 A15BIKRE - RZE AR
LR ERE 2 Bt AR BED B BB
13,692,0007T & 7 #5,168,0007T © 2%
AREBEDER -BEREAFE - ZER

follows: RS ABIELNT -
2021
20214
Weighted average share price IEFERRE 214
Expected volatility SELENA 39%
Expected life TEEAFHA 6-8 years
Risk-free rate B A = 0.64%-0.84%

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the

weighted average share price at the dates of exercise was
HK$1.97 (2020: N/A).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group

recognised equity-settled share option expense of
HK$5,228,000 (2020: HK$263,000 (Restated)).

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial

statements, the Company had 42,996,000 share options

outstanding under the Scheme, which represented

approximately 9.7% of the Company’s shares in issue as at
that date.
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Share Award Scheme

On 27 October 2020 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”)
to recognise the contributions by certain persons (“Eligible
Persons”), including employees and directors of companies
within the Group, entity in which the Group holds any equity
interests (“Invested Entity”), adviser, consultant or expert in
any area of business or business development of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity and other group or classes
of participants who have contributed or may contribute by
way of joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of the Group,
and to give incentives to them in order to retain them for the
continuing operation and development of the Group, and
to attract suitable personnel for further development of the
Group. Subject to any early termination as may be determined
by directors of the Company, the Share Award Scheme is
valid and effective for 10 years from the Adoption Date (the
“Award Period”).

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the directors of the
Company may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion,
select any Eligible Persons to participate in the Share Award
Scheme as selected participants and determine the shares
to be granted, vesting criteria and conditions, and period for
the shares to be vested, subject to the terms and conditions
set out in the Share Award Scheme. The directors of the
Company shall not grant further awards if they would result in
the number of the Award Shares (defined as below) under the
Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the Adoption Date.

The Company established a trust to purchase shares of the
Company for the benefit of employees and the directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries under the Share Award
Scheme (the “Award Shares”). Pursuant to the rules of the
Share Award Scheme, the Company has appointed a trustee,
The Core Trust Company Limited (“Trustee”), to administer the
Share Award Scheme and to purchase and hold the Award
Shares during the Award Period.

33.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

B 40 SR B =t &

R2020F 10827 A([HMBH]) - AAQ
IR — B AR D BB AT Bl ([ IR (5 22 Eh &t
) URAIBEFAL(TAEERALDA
EHMER - BEAEERRGINEE R
BEE AEERHEPRHEEMNREZEE
(W EER]) AEBEMKE AR
FHEIEE BRI NESSIEBEES
EZEMER - FAAXRBERREBEE
- PEBBENHMERLTHE TN
B AEB BB RIERELE
Rz EMHRI BRI 2 EE - W MK EIR
R B EERATEEREBELER
BRIEER  UAREBNE—PERR
SIEEAIAER o IR EENE &I B R A A
BAS - BREIA10F ([EEHRE ) - &
RNAREBALDRTEIRAIALE

RIBR ) RE)EHE > ARBESATER
BEBEHRETAAEBALERLTES
HEES RN RS - XEERRDH
Betn 5 BARLE AR DA N2 55 & B 0 /O BA
- MR SE R AT B BT B IR R R AR 1
BRI - AR AR 0 B2 R AT &1 4% th #0 B2 A
M (EER TX)BBBBREFMEHE
TR BHEN10% - IARRESTFE
B 2R o

AR FRBIRG L3 8 AR AR REH
BAANEERREFRYL —HERE - A
HARRRBRE ([ ZRRL ) - RIERL
SR BNRA - AL TDEEEEBRES
BRARAERAERAD - UE2R
15 S Y31 81 K50 S 8O B0 5 S
B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

33.

Share Award Scheme (continued)

Unless the board of Directors determines otherwise at its
absolute discretion, an award shall automatically lapse upon
(i) the voluntary resignation or dismissal, or by termination of
his employment or service in accordance with the termination
provisions of his contract of employment or service by
the Group otherwise than by reason of redundancy; or (ii)
termination of the selected participant’s employment or early
termination of the contractual engagement with the relevant
member of the Group by reasons of misconduct or otherwise
pursuant to law or employment or engagement contract.

If there occurs an offer by way of takeover, merger, scheme
of arrangement, share repurchase or otherwise, all the
outstanding Award Shares shall immediately vest on the date
when such offer becomes or is declared unconditional or in
the case of a scheme of arrangement on the record date for
determining entitlements under such scheme and such date
shall be deemed the vesting date.

If there is an event of change in control of the Company,
whether by way of offer, merger, scheme of arrangement or
otherwise, unless otherwise directed by the board of directors
of the Company at its absolute discretion, all the outstanding
Award Shares shall immediately vest on the date when such
change of control event becomes or is declared unconditional
and such date shall be deemed the vesting date.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Trustee
purchased an aggregate of 5,516,000 shares of the Company
from the market at a total consideration of approximately
HK$5,920,000 (including directly attributable incremental
costs) and the shares purchased at the weighted average
market price of HK$1.07 per share. No shares were granted
to the Eligible Persons pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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33.

34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Share Award Scheme (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Trustee
purchased an aggregate of 4,400,000 shares (including
3,480,000 shares purchased before the 2021 Bonus Issue)
of the Company from the market at a total consideration of
approximately HK$6,309,000 (including directly attributable
incremental costs) and the shares purchased at the weighted
average market price of HK$1.43 per share during the year.
A total of 3,533,750 shares (3,887,125 shares after the
2021 Bonus Issue) were granted to 10 eligible participants,
including 4 executive directors and employees on 29 January
2021 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, representing
approximately 0.88% of the then total number of issued
shares. The estimated fair value of each share granted was
HK$1.18. The Group recognised equity-settled share award
expense amounting to HK$4,170,000 (2020: nil) during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for all qualifying
employees of its Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributed 5% of the relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme but limited to the cap of HK$1,500.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement
schemes organised by the relevant local government
authorities in the PRC and other jurisdictions where the Group
operates. The Group is required to make contributions to
the schemes at a percentage that is specified by the local
government authorities.

33.

34.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
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B4 SR B Et & (&)

BE2021F12H31HIEFE - ZFEAUE
RAB 4978 #6,309,000 7T (62 15 & %% FE (k1%
ENA) {ETISHE B A& $£4,400,00008 4 2
AR (52021 AT AR B 7T RTFTEE B &Y
3,480,000 f% 1% ) + B 1D Ty LA pNAE F 39T
SEFSRBE1ASTRNFEARNEE - BRIER
iZENET S - 202181 A20A M 10% 4
BERSEE(BE4EHTESREE)RY
& 3,533,750 i 17 (2021 F AL IR B 1718
7#3,887,1250% ) - (W BB E BITRMNEE
#10.88% - BERZHBR DG AAEER
PEHE1.187T o NEEMNE Z=2021F12 A31
HIEFERERAESEENRG REFAX
A 7514,170,0007T (20204 © £E) °

RKERGE

AEBRESBGRFIM B EE
By - BEBSEAFMAZIMNBARNZEE
BiREERA —EHaAHEAER (8
Bertdl]))  c RESFEMEERASE
BEESHARFA  AXTANESERE
# o AEBMZRABAH K ANS%ABES
FTEMERR (BT BB L RBHE1,5007T) °

AEBEN2ERBE R AEE L ERERM
AEEBERNEEEMBRFHEAEENR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

34.

35.

Retirement Benefits Plans (continued)

The only obligation of the Group with respect to those
retirement benefit schemes is to make the specified
contributions. The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$26,152,000 (2020: HK$6,720,000 (Restated)) represents
contributions paid or payable to these schemes by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group had no forfeited contributions under those schemes
which may be used by the Group to reduce the existing level
of contributions. There were also no forfeited contributions
available at 31 December 2021 and 2020 under the schemes
which may be used by the Group to reduce the contribution
payable in future years.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the current and prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

Business Combinations

36. (At
BZE2021F12A31 B L EERE N ZE

Acquisition of businesses during the year ended

31 December 2021 %
Registered
capital
Acquisition date Company acquired acquired Consideration Nature of business
WEE A AR FrgaE & A RE XBMHE
22 March 2021 Tianjin Zhiheng 51% HK$8,184,000 Environmental monitoring
Environmental (equivalentto  and testing services
Technology Limited RMB6,869,000)
(“Tianjin Zhiheng”)
and Tianjin Huaneng
Environmental
Monitoring Service Co.,
Ltd (“Tianjin Huaneng”)
202143 H22H REZBREREARR 78#8,184,0007T IR BRI K AgORIBR 5
([ RFEZE]) RKXZ (HERARKE
ERRREARBER 6,869,0007T.)
RNEI(TREERE])
7 July 2021 Saybolt (M) SDN BHD 100% HK$9,317,000 Technical testing and analysis
(“Saybolt (M)”) (equivalentto  services for laboratory
US$1,200,000)  testing and inspection
2021F7A7H Saybolt (M) SDN BHD 78#9,317,0007T AEBRERA MRERIRH R

(['Saybolt (M)])

(HER
1,200,00037T)

g K 3 A7 B %

Tianjin Zhiheng and Tianjin Huaneng and Saybolt (M) were

Y i X% 2 1 Ko K= EE BE DA K2 Saybolt (M)

(BRE[2021 2 WB AR ) EEMEER
RATE2+XEREEZ

acquired (collectively referred to as “2021 Companies
Acquired”) with the objective of accelerate the achievement of
the Company’s 2+X strategic objectives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

36.

Business Combinations (continued)

Acquisition of businesses during the year ended

36. ¥XKS0t(E)

BZ2021F12A31 B L EEREHNE

31 December 2021 (continued) % (4&)
The amounts of fair value of the assets and liabilities at the REERE - EERBENAAEBEESSE
date of acquisition are as follows: mr
Tianjin
Zhiheng
and
Tianjin
Huaneng Saybolt (M)
KEZER
RIFHHE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E e L] 4,646 172
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables 5 K H A EWEIE 1,356 1,682
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEYD 6,168 673
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMERFRIE - 912)
Tax payable FERTL SR (75) (261)
Net assets acquired Fr g EEFE 12,095 1,354
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEENEE
Total consideration BRAE 8,184 9,317
Add: non-controlling interests N SRR RS 5,927 -
Less: fair value of identified net assets W RSB FTEE R R B T ER
acquired by the Group NREE (12,095) (1,354)
Goodwill arising on acquisition BB E A MmE 2,016 7,963
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WEBEL>RERHFE
Cash consideration paid BNRENRE 8,184 9,317
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired & : FTEEIRE MRS EEY (6,168) (6,73)
Less: unpaid amount included in other B EF AR AR IEEI’HEH
payables (note 26) (FF5E26) - (1,872)
2,016 6,772
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36.

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Business Combinations (continued)

Acquisition of businesses during the year ended
31 December 2021 (continued)

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2021
was HK$3,579,000 of profit attributable to the additional
businesses generated by 2021 Companies Acquired.
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 includes
HK$22,054,000 generated from 2021 Companies Acquired.

Had the acquisitions of 2021 Companies Acquired been
completed on 1 January 2021, the revenue of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would have been
HK$821,091,000, and the profit for the year would have been
HK$88,924,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisitions been completed on
1 January 2021, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

In determining the “pro-forma” revenue and profit of the
Group, had 2021 Companies Acquired been acquired on 1
January 2021, the Directors have calculated the depreciation
and amortisation of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets acquired on the basis of the fair values rather
than the carrying amounts recognised in the pre-acquisition
financial statements.

Pledge of Assets

Details the Group’s pledged assets are included in notes 17
and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

36.

37.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
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EBE0H(E)

BEZ2021F12A31 B L EERE N ZE
% (1)

2021 FE WM AR FTE £ REINEBEE
7B 13,579,000TEF A B E 2021412318
IFEENE - B E2021512A31 B ILFE
A B 152021 FE W A B FTE £ ME
#22,054,0007T °

7202141 A1 B ST g 2021 F 2 g
NE o REEEE2021F12A31HIEFE
B A 15 A8 B 821,091,0007T 1M 4 A F)
T A5 #88,024,0007T © #E B RHER
BAA - RN ER RIS EIR MM 2021 61 A1
AE TR AN EE S ER N ERBA REE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

38. Operating Leases Arrangements 38.

As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for a

term of one to three years.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

REHERH

EREHBA
ARBRBEEBERHBELRENE
(HEE17) - EihEkoRRSERA— 2=
F o

PHERKMRERSHT

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(#eE5)
Within one year —FLAR 44 1,599
44 1,599
39. Capital Commitments 39. EREIE

The Group had the following capital commitments:

REBREGATEAESE -

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
(Restated)
(1&&E7)
Contracted, but not provided for: DETAB R B
Property, plant and equipment M - BE R 2,169 931

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
other significant commitment.
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40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Capital Risk Management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by capital plus net debt. The Group’s policy is
to maintain the gearing ratio below 70%. Net debt includes
trade payables, other payables and accruals, interest-bearing
bank loans and other loans, and convertible bonds, less cash
and cash equivalents. Capital represents equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The gearing ratio at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

40.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

BEAREEEE

AEEEAEENERZBNEREAKE
FSERERERREEALLETMEEN - 1
MR EER R BRBREERAL

AEEAREEBREH RAEEEENR
SRMERTABRELRNGEE - ARFIH
BENGERE  AEETHERN TRED
BB MREREEARLBITHIR - HE
2021F K 2020F 12 A31HILFE - AEH
WENEEBEANER « BERSER

AEBRERLXREZRER  EREXSE
REEFEBRUNEAN LBEFENE
e AEENBRABFEANBBLEERE
R70% - BEFEBRESENHE &
MR M EREE  FERRITERK
HtpEFARATREEFRRE LRSS
EY - BXREARRHER ARERER - ®
WEHRERLEMT

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

(Restated)

(#E=:5)

Trade payables B S EMNRIA 39,513 41,873

Other payables and accruals HEm A FIE R ERTIE B 54,490 63,866

Bank loans and other loans IRITERREMER 22,900 40,177

Convertible bonds AR ES 57,953 -

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RERREEEY (150,636) (93,726)

Net debt BEFHE 24,220 52,190
Equity attributable to owners of RARIEB AEGER

the Company 347,638 297,567

Capital and net debt EXRBEFE 371,858 349,757

Gearing ratio (Note) B R (MRE) 6.51% 14.92%

Note: The gearing ratio of the Group is 16.68% (2020: 21.95%
(Restated)) if the debt includes the lease liabilities of
HK$45,378,000 (2020: HK$31,487,000 (Restated)) as at 31
December 2021.

BisE - WEBEEN2021FE12A31BHNHEE
B &8 145,378,000 7T (2020 4F : B
31,487,000 E75)) - AIAREEEE
12 %R 516.68% (20204 : 21.95% (4%
B51))) -

PR S RERIERERAT « 2021 FERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

41. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising 41. BETBEENAEEHER
from Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFMASEREIHEENAEE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non- B RS NFERSBLHHYBELAN - BE
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are EHELANBENRERED (IRHKRS
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, MEHRAEENGERERERANED
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows HEAMETDMERERENAE -

as cash flows from financing activities.

Bank loans
Dividend Lease and other  Convertible Interest
payable liabilities loans bonds payables Total
BITEX
ERRE HERE REMER TaRES ERRIE ait

HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  B%Tr  BETn BETr BT BT

At 1 January 2020 (Restated) 1200051 B 1B (FEH) - 35,257 70,968 - 3,744 109,969
Financing cash flows (Restated) BEREME(LES) (16,400) (12,696) (35,248) - (3,700) (68,044)
Dividend declared (Restated) BERRE (EE5) 16,400 - - - - 16,400
Interest expense (Restated) (note 8) |55 (&7 ) (fif5E8) - 1,710 - - 2,722 4432
Inception of new leases (Restated) ~ FIAHTAE (L&) - 8,430 - - - 8,430
Exchange difference (Restated) 5 ER(LES) - (1,214) 4,457 - (157) 3,086
At 31 December 2020 (Restated) 12020123318 (KE5) - 31,487 40,177 - 2,609 74,273
Financing cash flows BEBRERE (27,874) (22,470) (17,736) 50,000 4,300) (22,380)
Dividend declared BEERRE 27,874 - - - - 27,874
Interest expense (note 8) MEFZ(M3s) - 2,040 - - 1,705 3,745
Inception of new leases RipiaE - 33,430 - - - 33,430
Fair value change DMEEE - - - 7,953 - 7,953
Exchange difference EHEE - 891 459 - - 1,350
At 31 December 2021 R2021£12 4318 - 45,378 22,900 57,953 14 126,245

284 / China Leon Inspection Holding Limited ¢ Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial Instruments

(@) Categories of Financial Instruments

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

ETWMTH

(@ SRIESE

Financial assets THEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(fgE5))
Financial assets at amortised cost: RN AT ENSREE
Trade receivables B 5 IEWGRIA 134,783 128,938
Financial assets included in deposits A S RE AL ERGRIAR
and other receivables TREE 14,634 14,779
Pledged deposits [REEETIVER 8,672 931
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEEY 150,636 93,726
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEAABENERMEE :
profit or loss:
Listed securities held for trading BIEEE Z FTES 7,331 -
316,056 238,374
Financial liabilities TEEE
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(FeE5))
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REEN AT ENSRBE
Trade payables B S IR 39,513 41,873
Financial liabilities included in other T AE A RS A K fERT IR B
payables and accruals NeRaE 22,616 16,955
Borrowings N 22,900 40,177
Financial liabilities at fair value through R AR BET AEZEN LR
profit or loss: afE -
Convertible bonds AR ES 57,953 -
142,982 99,005

FERRBIZERARAR ¢ 2021 FEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank loans and other loans,
convertible bonds, lease liabilities, pledged deposits,
and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to support for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are market risk (interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to pledged deposits (note 23), fixed-rate other
loans (note 28), lease liabilities (note 29) and fixed-rate
convertible bonds (note 30). The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances (note 23) and variable-rate bank loans
(note 28). The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates
on bank balances and Loan Prime Rate of National
Interbank Funding Centre arising from the Group’s
RMB denominated bank loans. The Group manages
its interest rate exposures by assessing the potential
impact arising from any interest rate movements based
on interest rate level and outlook. The management
will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and
floating rates and ensure they are within reasonable
range.

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited e Annual Report 2021

42. TRTR(GE)

(b)

MR EREEREREE

AEENEIZESBT AR BIR
TERREMER - AJBEES
MERE CDEAFFIUALRER
ReFHEY TR TATEN
REFAEENZE - AEEESR
FRAMEREENREE LB
7 N E M EWGRIBLA N E 5 M E A
AR HERKARAREZ

RKEAKBESRIANTIERRA
s ER (IR R - SMNE R M A
wERER) - EERREABDES
Rl - EF@BERLRBEERA
RRREER - ZFBERBRIT -

FIE @R

AEEmERES KA FRME
23) ~ BEMEEMER(HE28) -
MERE (M E29) K EE 7 & a]#
P&z (FE30) B M AL EEF
KE\ g o AN B 7 H e B2 )7 B F) K
RITAEER (M EE23) MOF BRI KR IRTT
B (MiE28) BRMBR IR EN =X
Rk - AERENRESREF ERER

EETRAEBUAAREERN
RITEFRMELNRITESRLEH
RITEREFET ONERT ISR
ERNEHMERE) - REERIE
TR K BT SRR AT AR B N R S 8
PEANEERZE  AEEEMNE
Rk - BEEREHEE LT
KM ERLL B - URRREAESIEE
B -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including the
replacement of some interbank offered rates (“IBORs”)
with alternative nearly risk-free rates. The Group is
closely monitoring the market and managing the
transition to new benchmark interest rates, including
announcements made by the relevant IBOR regulators.

As at 31 December 2021, approximately 85% (2020:
74%) of the Group’s bank loans and other loans bore
interest at floating rates.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. 100 basis point (2020: 100 basis point)
increase or decrease in variable-rate bank loans are
used which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
Variable-rate bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis as the management considers that
the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk arising from
variable-rate bank balances is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 100 basis point (2020: 100
basis point) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would decrease/increase
by HK$165,000 (2020: HK$252,000 (Restated)). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank loans.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. TRTR(GE)

(b)

MHEREEBRERBUR ()

FEE bz (&)

BRTZHREAH T BN KA R
TRAENRE - BHEKE TRT
BIRESRERESESSGIRE S
MK ) B E A AT T 8 L 1O F
R ARGEEIETVEEDERE
HRREREEMNETNER - B
MERRTTHEIF IR EEERBIEL

RS e

A2021512 8318 » NEEAI85%
(2020%F : 74%)HIRITE R R H Aty
EFLOFBFEGTE ©

AT ERE DT AR IEIR S BAR A
MERBMETE - ZD I RERN
BEHANAEESRTANEME
FEMAEEMRE - FHTFEF
KIRITE FRI8 0 R A 100 B E 2h
(20204 : 1001EEZ) RRE®E
BHMEAEAEBTMH - A
REBEBRARZERITEBEL
MESHREFNERBRILTEKR - 4
RERE DT GZBRITESEE
BRIESD ©

i F = £ F /T B&1001E E 2 (2020
F - 100fEEZ) - MATE E M
HRTE - AREEEZE 20214612
A3TBLEFEMNBBABEERL
29078 #165,0007T (20204 : B
252,0007C (£ &%) - WY EEH
SR B k)% B FI R R 1T B R AT A
EEFERERE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has currency exposures from its cash and
cash equivalents and convertible bonds denominated
in HK$ and US dollars. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and convertible
bonds denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities were equivalent
to HK$41,445,000 (2020: HK$29,573,000 (Restated))
and HK$57,953,000 (2020: N/A), respectively.

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange
hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
exposure should the need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in the exchange rate
by 5%, with all other variables held constant, on the
Group’s profit after tax:

42. TRTR(GE)

(b)

MHEREEBRERBER ()

SRR

AEBRARERBECEEYRATR
B (& 2 LAB R T EHE M EER SN
B[S - 2021 12A31H » A%
B A EEE RIS AN
ERGTEMNRSRESEEYRA
B ES 5 Bl A7 41,445,000 70
(20204F : #129,573,0007T (KK &=
7)) K 8857 953,0007T (20204 :
TEA) °

ZRER B B A R HMNE BRERER o R
- AEEEREESERIER
B YR ARTERZERBEITEX
SN Bz ©

TRINRTHEABEEMEERT T
BERBERT - AREBRFEEE
K%M BB EE B HEREE D
#r

2021 20214
Increase (Decrease)
(decrease) increase
in foreign in profit
exchange rate after tax
SMEER BERE
i OR2) R4 ) 18 0
HK$’000
BT T
If RMB weakens against other currencies i A BB 3 H i S ¥ B (H 5% (1,136)
If RMB strengthens against other MAREH B EAE
currencies (5%) 1,136
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e SRR ML ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. Financial Instruments (continued) 42, €T E(E)
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) HEERREEREEERBEEGE)

Policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) I B (48
2020 20204
Increase (Decrease)
(decrease) increase
in foreign in profit
exchange rate after tax
NPE FE = i 1& 7
O A) OB &
HK$'000
BT T
(Restated)
(FeE5))
If RMB weakens against other M AREHEMEKEE
currencies 5% 1,257
If RMB strengthens against other MAREH B EAE
currencies (5%) (1,257)
Other price risk BB R
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through NEEFZBIZ AL BEG AES
its financial instruments measured at FVTPL. For the ENem T AEBRRAERERE
investments in perpetual equity securities measured HRE AR EBETAEBRTEA K
at FVTPL, the Group has appointed a special team to ABRERFEHFRE  KREBEREEHR
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk H/EEE R ERER - WERES
exposure should the need arise. ZRE R PRRE

FERRBIZERARAR ¢ 2021 FEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Other price risk (continued)

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date. Sensitivity analyses for the Group’s unquoted
convertible bonds with fair value measurement
categorised within Level 3 were disclosed in note 42c.
For sensitivity analysis of perpetual equity securities
with fair value measurement categorised within Level 1,
the sensitivity rate is increased to 5% in current year as
a result of the volatile financial market.

If the price of the respective equity instrument had
been 5% (2020: N/A) higher/lower, the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2021 would increase/
decrease by HK$306,000 (2020: N/A) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, pledged deposits and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets.
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FEREE% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy parties. Receivable balances are
monitored on an on-going basis and the Group’s
exposure to credit risk is not significant. The credit
quality of customers is assessed after taking into
account the customers’ financial position and past
experience with the customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC and
Singapore, which accounted for 56% and 26%
(2020: 34% and 46%) of the total trade receivables
respectively as at 31 December 2021. As at 31
December 2021, the Group had concentration of credit
risk, 12% (2020: 12%) of its total trade receivables
were due from its largest customer and 29% (2020:
30%) of its total trade receivables were due from its
top five customers respectively. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals.

Except for trade receivables with significant balances
which are assessed individually, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on trade
balances on a collective basis by using a provision
matrix. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects
the probability weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the end of reporting period about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. TRTR(GE)

(b)

MHEREEBRERBUR ()

1= B2 R 6t 15 a1 ()

EPERELREZENRF R

AEEERERAIMEERFNE
ETETR S - BRWARERE
KEHE - AEBEENEERRYL
K - EEBE P H R H5iR00 & 82
EPHBERLRR  HHEFPNE
BB REHFAE

REEZMEBEANEE S HEERR
FEEFRPBI R INE - 12021
F12A31BH ML E SR FIELE
EAH)56% M 26% (20204F : 34% &
46%) ° PR2021F12A31H + &
EvEERBEY  EEFEWK
THAAEEFR + 12%(2020%F : 12%) 2K
BEZAZF @ M29% (20204 :
30%)BIRBERERES - BKEE
ERAERE AEEERERE
T—EEFaEEEEERERE
Btz -

BRERNFEREEAGEHRZEHE
WA SN - R B B AR i
HARAEERE S EHREAREER
RIEETEITRERG - BEET
AERAARUBERRANZEETR
DEBAARI B A BEE - LAt E
RREARNMESER - ERRER
RBERRABHEEBESM
ERIOR R ARG EA R TN E
BRAISEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

42. TRTR(GE)

(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) HIEEREREBERBEKGE)
Policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B &R R E B 1L ()
(continued)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with EEANELRE ZENZIE(E)
customers (continued)
Debtors with significant balances with gross carrying B B 4 IR B % ¥ 35,393,000 7T
amounts of HK$35,393,000 (2020: HK$27,851,000 (20204 : B#27,851,000 T (4L &
(Restated)) were assessed individually. ) E R 2 EF AT AER T
fii o
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TR ANEEFE AR HEM RS
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables assessed EEETEHNE S EBGIENEE
on a collective basis using a provision matrix: R &K}
As at 31 December 2021 #2021F12831H
Past due
A
Less than
Current 9months  Over 9 months Total
B HiofE A HBiBofEA &t

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BRI BETT
Gross carrying amount BEmE 79,202 17,759 5,969 102,930
ECL HHEERE 569 131 2,757 3,457

BoEEx 0.14%-1.28% 0.16%-1.28%  3.51% - 56.2%

Average loss rate
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42. Financial Instruments (continued) 42,

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with

customers (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

R IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

ERTA(E)
(b) MHEREEREREEE)

1= B2 R 6t 15 a1 ()

EPEMELREZEWIIE (&

720206128311

Past due
Less than

Current 9 months Over 9 months Total
0 DROfE A fBiEofE A At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(s E5) (LBE7) (8E7) (BE7)
Gross carrying amount BIRHEE 79,263 22,588 3473 105,324
ECL BREEEX 1,772 695 1,703 4,170

Average loss rate THYEEE 0.2%-2.82%  0.52%-4.13% 27.43% - 56.32%

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided
HK$3,457,000 (2020: HK$4,170,000 (Restated)) loss
allowance for trade receivables, based on the provision
matrix, and loss allowance of HK$83,000 (2020:
HK$67,000 (Restated)) were made on debtors with

significant balances.

R2021F 12 A31H » AEER
BREEERE S ERKIERHE
7 5 3,457,000 7T (2020 5« & ¥
4,170,000 7T (#&£ E 51| ) ) &) & 1B &
5 - & 83,0007T (20204 : &
#67,0007T (K E5)) 2 EEBET
HEBEREHRNEBFAED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. Financial Instruments (continued) 42, €T E(E)
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) HEERREEREBEEREEGE)
Policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE R R R EE 1L ()
(continued)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with BEEAHIELRE ZENRTE(E)

customers (continued)

The following table shows the movement in ECL that TRHHNEE 5 ERFRERIEE
has been recognised for trade receivables under the {LEERNTEBEEIBREE) -

simplified approach.

2021 2020
202145 20204
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (not credit-
impaired) impaired)
2 HATEH 2 HATE A
BFERXK BFEBEX
(YE|EERME) (WEEERE)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(FeE5))
As at 1 January (Restated) M1A1R(EES) 4,237 2,744
Changes due to financial assets, MTATEEREMEEMES 2
recognised as at 1 January: e
— Reversal of impairment losses —RIBAFERR REEE
recognised in prior year #m (1,417) (2,816)
New financial assets during the current ~ AKRFEFEHIL 2 & g EE

year:

— Impairment losses recognised — BRI EEE 781 4,083
Exchange difference bE N R (61) 226
As at 31 December M12H31H 3,540 4,237
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on ETEBE X DIRIBES ARIERF
historical observed default rates over the expected BAHE BB QR ER AT -
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward WA ESHRTIEMEERELH
looking information that is available without undue B mEAN BTN EE K AL
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by 7o BEETERERNSME - AR
management to ensure relevant information about EBRSEEBANERER -

specific debtors is updated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Deposits and other receivables

For deposits and other receivables, the Directors
make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of deposits and other receivables based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and/or qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information. The Directors believe that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts
since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on 12m ECL. For the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, no allowance for credit
losses was recognised.

Pledged deposits and bank balances

As at 31 December 2021, 64.4% and 24.9% (2020:
54.8% and 37.0%) of pledged deposits and bank
balances of the Group are deposited in a bank in the
PRC and a bank in Singapore respectively. Credit risk
on pledged deposits and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are reputable banks with
high credit ratings. The Group assessed 12m ECL for
pledged deposits and bank balances by reference to
information relating to probability of default and loss
given default of the respective credit rating grades,
ranged from B3 to Aa1 (2020: B3 to Aal) published by
external credit rating agencies. Based on the average
loss rates, the 12m ECL on pledged deposits and
bank balances is considered to be insignificant.

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. TRTR(GE)

(b)

MHEREEBRERBUR ()

1= B2 R 6t 15 a1 ()

i REMER IR

ke REMBWHKIENS  EF
BIEBTENTE  BELERIUK
EREEBEABEBRYBOAIEEES
Rk/REMER - Hige REAE
AT R T R AT U B 2 1T E B4 B T
it o EERBBEVIAERARZS
HEMNEERRIEBEREN - K
EEEM 2@ A EHREEBLERE
BB ° B 220214 K% 2020512 A 31
HIEFE - SEEREERREE -

BB ARIRTTAEER

M2021F12A31H » AEE64.4%
24.9%(2020%F : 54.8% % 37.0%)
ERBERMRITESKE D RITFER
AR BIERTT R FT N ERTT - B EE
BRMBITHEBHEERRAER
HaxSFAEERIAEARE
BERMET  c AREB RS EH
INEBE BRI ER A BB SE
BT RBROBAOMEREBLIERX
EEERH (N TFBIEAal Z ) (2020
F : B3ZAal) - FHHEEEB TR K
RITHEBN12ERBHEEERK -
BEBEFHEAE  DEBREHRKRIR
THEHEN12EAFEREEBREE
ELRERX o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories.

42. TRMTR(HE)
(b) HMHEREEREREE ()

1= Bm 2 R 6l 15 a1 ()

4S5 B 7 7O 1 B LB 4R A4
AT HERIER -

Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables  Other financial assets
RIS ERTR by EE ) LE ] HttemEE
Normal The counterparty has a low risk of default and  Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts not credit-impaired
% HF 7N RERIE R R E A8 ERIE PHEHEREELX— 12AEHBEEEX
FEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
usually settle in full not credit-impaired
ERRE BEHRALERIMBZEN  BREEHER 2HEDEEHR.X- 12REHEERX
FEERIE
Doubtful There have been significant increase in Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
AlEE RABISNIFGERET - FERREYE 2HEHMEEELX- 2HEHEEREA-
RIEBEILM FEERE FEERIME
Credit-impaired There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
FERE ERBEREECEERE FHEHREERLA- 2HEDREERX-
FERE FERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. TRTR(GE)

(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) HIBEEREREBERBERGE)
Policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment = E R R R E B 1L ()
(continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging wEEERFAE R
The table below shows the credit quality by reference TRABTNR2021F12 A31 AR IE
to internal credit rating and the maximum exposure to AEEEEBCR(Z2ENBEREH
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which BR o BRIFEMEEEEFTNLB
is mainly based on past due information unless other LSBT R ES)MERES
information is available without undue cost or effort, H(EL2ENTEETR) KEaE
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December ERBARFEEERDTE - TE7)
2021. The amounts presented are gross carrying CHEACREENRAELRE -
amounts for financial assets.
12m ECL Lifetime ECL
1218 A 2 HEH
FEBRX FEBX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
ST EPIETS EX]ETS A%
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
2021 20214
Trade receivables B S EMIE - - - 138,323 138,323
Financial assets included in AR R EMERTUR
deposits and other receivables  HI& BEE
- Normal* —EE* 14,710 - - - 14,710
Pledged deposits EHEAER 8,672 - - = 8,672
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBAELEEY 150,627 - - = 150,627
174,009 - - 138,323 312,332
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31ALFE

42. Financial Instruments (continued) 42, €T E(E)
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) HEEKREEEZERBEGE)

Policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment =B &R R E B 1L ()
(continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) AR R FAEER (E)
12m ECL Lifetime ECL
128 A8 2HEE
EEBX EEEX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
E1EE B EReli-tEy St @D

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&3 (m&31) (s &31) (mE31) (g&3)

2020 20204
Trade receivables B S ENGA - - - 133,175 133,175

Financial assets included in RS REMEMNEIE
deposits and other receivables K14 B EE

- Normal* —-E® 14,853 - - - 14,853
Pledged deposits [EEETES A 931 - - - 931
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 93,726 - - - 93,726

109,510 - - 133,175 242,685

* Bt AR RAMRERTIEN S

The credit quality of the financial assets included in

deposits and other receivables is considered to be RhEEWEaE - BEERE
“normal” when they are not past due and there is AeREEBVIXERREER
no information indicating that the financial assets PRERERIGIN - EEEERERA
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial [EE]- BR - EREENEE
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the BRWARR AR -

financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. TRTR(GE)

Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) HEERESEEERBEGE)
Policies (continued)
Liquidity risk MEEZ/ERE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group RABECRAREREMS @ A%E
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash ERREFLESRRSEBYER
equivalents deemed adequate by the management ERERAGEIKE  UEER
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the SEEEERSE  UREBRERE
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management BEMEKN  FE - EEEERE
monitors the utilisation of borrowings and debts and HEABRARES @ WERD BT
ensures compliance with loan covenants. BEXE#
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRV AEBEEBIETESHE
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BERHEARZHTEOIEHBEF
liabilities and lease liabilities based on the agreed E(ZBEERBEID) - LRTIIR
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based BRAEBEAREHEERNTR &R
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities HEizemBEZRMBEREME
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be RE - BERNHEENERASRSE
required to pay. The table includes both interest and ME  WEEFEREME - KA
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows REBIENMERARIBITAER
are floating-rate, the undiscounted amount is derived Bk
from existing interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.
31 December 2021 2021%12831H
Repayable
Weighted  on demand In the third to Over Total
average or within Inthe fifth years, five undiscounted Carrying
interest rate oneyear  second year inclusive years cash flow amount
REXEE $-EERE AR
METHIRIE g-%h %28 (IFERAE) BBLE RenEsE HEE
% HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BRI
Tradle payables ERENIE - 39513 - - - 39513 39513
Financial iablties incluced n other & A fUFE 3V R fEzt - 2616 - - - 22,616 2616
payables and acoruals EENEREE
Borrowings & 35 19,701 3,463 - - 23,164 22,900
Lease liabilities HERR 1.95-5.25 12,188 9,465 14,420 13,735 49,808 45318
Convertible bonds TARES 2 50,500 - - - 50,500 57,953
144,518 12,928 14,420 13,735 185,601 188,360
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e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31ALFE

42. Financial Instruments (continued) 42, €T E(E)
(b) Financial Risk Management Objectives and (b) HKERREEREEERBEEGE)
Policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) mEE LA (&)
31 December 2020 2020F12H31H
Repayable
Weighted ~ on demand In the third to Over Total
average or within Inthe fifth years, five  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate oneyear  second year inclusive years cash flow amount
RERER F-RENE RER
ik SRS e £2F (REEEMF) HRLE RensHR R
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BETT EETT BRI BT BT BETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(55 (&5 (& E5) EE) (E7]) (8E5])
Tradle payables BARMTE - 41,873 - - - 41,873 41,873
Financial iabities included i~ sF A R REUE R fERT
other payables and accruals BRNSBAR - 16,955 - - - 16,955 16,955
Borrovings & 459 30,365 - 10467 - 40852 40177
Lease liblties HEak 43679 16,215 6,926 8903 2129 34,173 31,487
105,408 6,926 19,390 2129 133,853 130,492
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. TRTR(GE)

Fair Value Measurements of Financial (c) EMIEMNAAREBERE
Instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets LEEMEER N EEER
and financial liabilities that are measured at FEFHEERTHMEBEZ L
fair value on a recurring basis AEHE
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial REBELLEHMEERSBMEBER
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each SR EBRIEAAEERE o
reporting period.
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFAEBGNERMEE
Perpetual equity securities KA B FH 7,331 -
Financial liabilities cRAas
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RAREENAEBENEREE
Convertible bonds AR ES 57,953 -

The Group’s finance department headed by the chief
financial officer is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs
under Level 3, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The Chief Financial Officer reports findings to
the directors of the Company every year to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value.

AEBHERVHEETENTEH
BEEESRIARABENEDN
BERNEF - REWEAH - 5K
MoTERTANEBEZSHWETE
HERHAEANEIZHAE-

AEB(ER A ERN TS BEY
BREFTARERE - HRNERF=E
REATABEHABENTAM
FOASBZREBE=7AERM
BERVETTHE - AEBEA BRI
MAEMEZAIE - AELRETE
EMRETEARBARE - BFEM
BEBFRAARBESTRENTE
R UBEBRABERPNERERA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

42. TRTR(GE)

(c) Fair Value Measurements of Financial () EMIEMNAAREBEE(E)
Instruments (continued)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets LR MEEZ A BEITTEN
and financial liabilities that are measured at FEFLHEERTHEREZ L
fair value on a recurring basis (continued) ABEEE)
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2021 R20214F 1231 HEJ A /1B E/ER
Fair value hierarchy
AREEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—ER FEBR E=ER a5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BT BETT
Financial assets at FVTPL BOABEFABEN
SREE
Perpetual equity securities KABRAES 7,331 - - 7,331
Financial liabilities at FVTPL &2 A EEABEN
SHEE
Convertible bonds (note) AR ESR () - - 57,953 57,953
Note: The Group involves an external valuer to determine sk : AEBZREINMEERMRASE

the fair value of convertible bonds using Monte
Carlo model. The fair value was estimated based on
expected volatility of 36.99%, dividend yield of 4%
and discount rate of 16.38%. A slight increase in
the expected volatility/dividend yield/discount rate
used in isolation would result in a decrease in the fair
value measurement of the convertible bonds, and
vice versa. A 5% increase in the expected volatility
or dividend yield or discount rate holding all other
variables constant would decrease the carrying
amount of the convertible bonds by approximately
HK$4,000, HK$4,000 and HK$15,000, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial Instruments (continued)

(c)

Fair Value Measurements of Financial
Instruments (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosures are required)

Management has assessed that the fair values of
financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

43. Related Party Transactions

(a)

(b)

R IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

42. TRTR(GE)

(c)

TRTANAAEETE(E)

WHUEEMEEZ L A B ET
BHETHEERTHMERBZ AL
EE (ERFFELLEE)

EEERHHERL  REHERA
IR EREERAENREE
HHERREEMES - I ERHRZ
ETAMZIHHRERE -

43. BEERERS

Guarantees provided by related parties: (@) FAEFREMER
The Group’s bank loans amounting to HK$29,690,000 R2020%F12 8318 » "EERIR
(Restated) as at 31 December 2020 were guaranteed 1TE R &% 29,690,000 7T (#& &
by LI Xiangli. F) - BEAFELEER
The charge and guarantee on the Group’s Note was BAASREZRNERRERFE
detailed in Note 28. On 21 July 2020, the Company M FE28 o 2020F7 A218 -
fully settled the outstanding amounts of the Note. The KRB BBENEBENREES
charge and guarantee was released in 2020. B o IR MERE PA2020F Bk o
Compensation of key management (b) TEEBFEEBEAENMSE
personnel of the Group:
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(i=&%))
Short-term employee benefits HHEREREF 6,926 7,690
Pension scheme contributions RIREFT B 489 457
Equity-settled share compensation NHESEENROHBERS
expense 4,595 116
12,010 8,263

E B ERRER AR AR o 2021 FEHRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

44. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of

44.

the Company

Details of the principal subsidiaries directly and indirectly held

by the Company at the end of the reporting period are set out

i

RRBEEMBARFE

TR ARBEERLRERFENE
ZMBRRAFEWT

below:
Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/
and business registered capital Percentage of equity interest
Name E1 AT EELES ¢ attributable to the Company Principal activities
L BRREE Y BAERES AAREGEERDL FTERK
2021 2020
20215 2020
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B I Bk filtz
China Leon Inspection British Virgin Islands US$1.00 100 - 100 - Investment holding
Holding (BVI) Limited
ERERRES 1.00%7T REER
Huaxia Leon Inspection Hong Kong HK$100 = 100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
EENRBBRERAR AR BHE1007T REER
Lihong Inspection The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 - 100  Inspection and testing
Group Limited
HERBREEERLE  HE AEH#50,000,0007 iR R
Leon Overseas Singapore SGD1,000,000 - 51 - 51 Inspection and testing
HR 1,000,000%T I3 7T TeSa KA Bl
Saybolt (Singapore) Singapore SGD341,714 - 51 - 51 Inspection and testing
Pte. Ltd.
ANk 341, 71437 IR T RER R
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44.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

the Company (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

44, ARTEEMMBATFE(E)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/
and business registered capital Percentage of equity interest
Name Ei A EELES ¢ attributable to the Company Principal activities
B BRRE % BA/EMER AAREGEERDL TERK
2021 2020
20214 2020
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B I % filtz
Leon Inspection & Testing  India INR500,000 - 4 - 41 Inspection and testing
India Private Limited (note i) (note )
HE 500,000 L (Br&Ei) (Fsh) R
Pt. Leon Testing and Indonesia IDR10,005,000,000 = 51 - 51 Inspection and testing
Consultancy
e 10,005,000,000E0/2 /& TRER R
Leon Inspection and Australia AUD1.00 = 51 - 51 Inspection and testing
Testing Australia Pty Ltd.
M 1.0027T Tk KA Bl
Leon Inspection Testing Malaysia MYR1,000,000 = 51 - 51 Inspection and testing
Services Sdn. Bhd
BRAE 1,000,000 % Tk RA Bl
Leon Inspection & Testing  Pakistan PRK40,000,000 - 4 - 41 Inspection and testing
Private Limited (note i) (note )
BRI 40,000,000 Z£i8 () (W) sk Rl
Bt
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e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

44. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 44. EARETEMBARFE(E
the Company (continued)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/
and business registered capital Percentage of equity interest
Name E1 A EELES ¢ attributable to the Company Principal activities
8 BRRE £ BA/EMER ARAREGEEEDL FTERK
2021 2020
2021 2020
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B 3 % filtz
Saybolt Tianjin The PRC US$1,150,000 - 4 - 41 Inspection and testing
(note i) (note i)
RtE HE 1,150,000% 7T (BraEi) (Bsh) R
Leon HK Hong Kong HK$1.00 - 4 - 41 Inspection and testing
(note i) (note )
EE BH#1.007T (BriEi) (Fsh) Rl
Leon-Saybolt Inspection &  Brunei B$1,000 = 51 - 51 Standard technical and
Testing Sdn Bhd (note i) (note ) quality control technical
services
DES 1,0003057T (Briti) (Ffsh) e R E 24
B AR
Qinhuangdao Lihong Coal  The PRC RMB1,000,000 = = - 100  Inspection and testing
Testing Co., Ltd. (note ii) and relevant service
RESBEIRA HE AR#1,000,0007T (Behi) 8 - B RIRERTS
BRAAF
Tangshan Huaxia Lihong ~ The PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100 - 100 Inspection, testing,
Commodity Inspection appraisal and
Co., Ltd. inspection technology
development
FLEERERESR  HE AR#1,000,0007T fesk - B AL iR
BRAT Uik
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44.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

the Company (continued)

AN
%va:l

BAFRS IR AR BT ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

44, ARTEEMMBATFE(E)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/
and business registered capital Percentage of equity interest
Name Ei A EELES ¢ attributable to the Company Principal activities
L BRREXLE BA/ERES AAREGEERDL TERK
2021 2020
20215 2020
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
Hi I Bk filtz
Tianjin Huaxia Lihong The PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100 - 100  Inspection and testing
Coal Testing Co., Ltd.
REEFENBERRE B AR1,000,0007T TS KA Bl
BRAAF
Nanjing Lihong Coal The PRC RMB3,000,000 = = - 100  Inspection and testing
Testing Co., Ltd. (note ii)
AR NBERIRA i ARH#3,000,0007C (Bisti)  msR R
BRAAF
Guangzhou Lihong Coal  The PRC RMB1,440,000 = = - 100  Professional technical
Testing Co., Ltd. (note ii) service
BEM B R HE AR1,440,0007T (BisEi)  EERMMRS
BRAAF
Hebei Lihong Minerals The PRC RMB3,000,000 = 100 - 100 Inspection technical
Inspection Co., Ltd. advisory service
I N ETRE B HE AR3,000,0007T IR T AR
BRAAF
Hunan Lihong Coal The PRC RMB3,000,000 = = - 100 Inspection and testing
Testing Co., Ltd. (note ii)
RN BB R il ARH#3,000,0007C (Bski)  msR Rl
BRAAF
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e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

44. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 44. ERAREEMBATRFE(E)
the Company (continued)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/
and business registered capital Percentage of equity interest
Name E1 A EELES ¢ attributable to the Company Principal activities
8 BRRE £ BA/EMER ARAREGEEEDL FTERK
2021 2020
2021 2020
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B 3 % filtz
Zhuhai Lidaohongtu Coal  The PRC RMB1,000,000 = 100 - 100  Inspection and testing
Testing Technology and advisory services
Services Co., Ltd.
ke NEBEERK HE AR#1,000,0007T T8k AR KA SRS
RERMRBERAR
Tianjin Shengde Tiangong  The PRC RMB10,000,000 = 100 - 100  Scientific research,
Sampling Technology technique service and
Co., Ltd. business service
KEEERIFEERN  HE AR#10,000,0007T BHf - iR k£ R
BRAAF %
Shaanxi Huaxia Lihong The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 55 - 55 Quality inspection service
Commodity Inspection
Co., Ltd.
REEENEERRE  PE AR #50,000,0007T EERBR%
BRAAF
Leon Sanitary Inspection  The PRC RMB1,000,000 = = - 100  Vector biologica control
Technical Service (Tianjin) (note ii) technology, technical
Co., Ltd. development and
consulting
HBERBERB(RE)  +E AR#1,000,0007T (Bitskii) BN EIRIRG - Bl
BRAT HEREA
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Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

44, ARTEEMMBATFE(E)

the Company (continued)

Place of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration share capital/
and business registered capital Percentage of equity interest
Name Ei A EELES ¢ attributable to the Company Principal activities
A BRREXLE BAERES EARELEERDL TERK
2021 2020
20215 2020
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
Hi i Bk filtz
Xinjiang Huaxia Lihong The PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100 - 100 Inspection service
Commodity Inspection
Co., Ltd.
HEEENRAMRR T AR #5,000,0007C BRBRS
BRAAF
Guangzhou Lihong Energy  The PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100 - 100  Inspection and testing
EMNBeER il ARH#5,000,0007T TRER R
LEON (Shenzhen) The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 70 - - Environmental Testing
Environmental testing (note iii)
Co., Ltd
N (R EF R HE AR #10,000,0007C (B i) BERA
BRAAF
Yulin Lihong Energy The PRC RMB10,000,000 = 51 - - Inspection and testing
Testing Co. (note iii)
mA R HE AR #10,000,0007C (B i) TS KAz Bl
BRAAF
Tianjin Huaneng The PRC RMB12,244,900 = 51 - - Environmental testing
(note 36)
REER il AR¥12,244,9007T (F=E36) B
Tianjin Zhiheng The PRC RMB6,122,400 = 51 - - Environmental testing
(note 36)
REziE HE AR 6,122,4007C (GEZD) BHERA
Saybolt (M) Malaysia RM3,300,000 - 51 - - Inspection and testing
(note i and
note 36)
HRAE 3,300,0005% (B EIR T RABl
Ht=E36)
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e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

44. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of
the Company (continued)

Notes:

The English names of the companies registered in the PRC,
represent the best efforts of the management of the Company
in directly translating the Chinese names of the companies as
no English names have been registered.

(i) These companies are subsidiaries of Leon Overseas. The
interests disclosed here represented the Group’s effective
equity interests in these subsidiaries. The directors of the
Company are in the opinion that the Group has control over
these subsidiaries through its control over Leon Overseas, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

(ii) These companies were deregistered during the year ended
31 December 2021.

(iii) These companies were established during the year ended 31
December 2021.

All these companies were incorporated with limited liability.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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44.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 44. XRBEEME D AFE (&)
the Company (continued)
The table below shows details of non-wholly subsidiaries of TR ANEEEA ERIFHIEREZRSAIE
the Group that have material non-controlling interests: 2 EMBATRFS
Proportion of
ownership
Place of interests and voting
incorporation rights held by
and place non-controlling interests Profit
Name of of business FERERSE allocated to Accumulated
subsidiary Rl NHBRRRER non-controlling interests ~ non-controlling interests
HWEADER BEREELY WESL SREFERESHAE RitEERER
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 20204 20215 2020F 20215 2020F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(mE5) (EE5)
Leon Overseas and Singapore
its subsidiaries (| 49% 49% 25,295 18,245 42,815 12,048
Leon Overseas %k £ M8 2 5/ Eipbe
Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests 36,146 14,303
B EROEREER
WEAF
78,961 26,351
(i) During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the 0] H 220214 22020F 12 A1 B ILFE -

non-controlling interests pledged their equity interest to the
Group for the shareholder’s loans provided by the Company
to Leon Overseas.

RS M A EE KR T LR A
25+ DUEEUARR A A)Leon Overseaste
HIERER »

PR S RERIERERAT « 2021 FERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

44. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 44. RXAEFEMBARFE(E)
the Company (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s BEEAERESHOAEBNE QRN
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out BB EEIMT - X KER
below. The summarised financial information below represents REDEVEBNEE 2RISR -

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Leon Overseas and its subsidiaries Leon Overseask i B2 7
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T ST T
(Restated)
(geE5)
Current assets mENEE 150,047 129,587
Non-current assets IEmENEE 64,991 73,967
Current liabilities mEaE (67,236) (81,429
Non-current liabilities EREBE (54,678) (97,166)

Equity attributable to owners of RARIREB AEGER

the Company 50,309 12,911
Non-controlling interests of Leon Overseas  Leon Overseas)FEZA% 25 48,336 12,405

Non-controlling interests of Leon Overseas’  Leon Overseashfi/& A 747
subsidiaries FEIE AR R (5,521) (357)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

44. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of 44. EARETEMBATRFE(E)

the Company (continued)

Leon Overseas and its subsidiaries (continued)

Leon Overseask EMf B AT (&)

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(FEES)
Revenue WA 397,531 351,080
Expenses 53 (340,403) (314,788)
Profit for the year FRFE 57,128 36,292
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 7R &% B A FE(L 31,833 18,047
Profit attributable to the non-controlling Leon OverseasHFE1%E IR i 25
interests of Leon Overseas FEEFIE 30,584 17,267
Profit attributable to the non-controlling Leon Overseasffl &~ AR FEE A i 2
interests of Leon Overseas’ subsidiaries JFEAE T (5,289) 978
Profit for the year FRFE 57,128 36,292
Other comprehensive expense attributable ~ ZANA BB AJEMG E 2 E R 2
to owners of the Company (1,002) (1,597)
Other comprehensive expense attributable  Leon Overseast) JEE RS %5 FE 15 E 4th
to the non-controlling interests of Leon 2HEMAX
Overseas (964) (1,533)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FEARAEMEEMY (1,966) (3,130)
Total comprehensive income attributable RAREE ANEEEEREERE
to owners of the Company 30,831 16,450
Total comprehensive income attributable Leon OverseasH) FE1Z AR 25 fE (L
to the non-controlling interests of Leon FHEW =B
Overseas 29,620 15,734
Total comprehensive income attributable Leon Overseasff] @ A B1F FEIEAX
to the non-controlling interests of Leon EmEE AN SERE
Overseas’ subsidiaries (5,289) 978
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2ERZLE 55,162 33,162

FERRBIZERARAR ¢ 2021 FEHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

45. Statement of Financial Position of the 45. ZARQ T EIEMRIR R
Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the RIFERRBEEARRBH B ARHER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: s
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BEET T BRI
(Restated)
(E5)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Equipment B 1 1
Investment in a subsidiary K"ENB A 67,282 62,111
Amount due from subsidiaries S NGIE O] 96,036 93,204
Right-of-use assets EREEE 120 163
Total non-current assets IEmENEERE 163,439 155,479
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Other receivables Efb el A 4,088 7,503
Amount due from subsidiaries FEUSB B~ B FR0E 57,519 32,529
Cash and cash equivalents HeNESEEBY 10,247 6,799
Total current assets MBEELE 71,854 46,831
CURRENT LIABILITIES REARE
Other payables EAb B FRIA 12,728 10,316
Convertible bonds AR ES 57,953 -
Lease liabilities MHEBE 102 148
Total current liabilities mEBERRE 70,783 10,464
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 1,071 36,367
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEABERRBER
LIABILITIES 164,510 191,846
Net assets BEFE 164,510 191,846
EQUITY =
Share capital &N 172 155
Reserves i 164,338 191,691
Total equity HEm4EEa 164,510 191,846
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

45. Statement of Financial Position of the 45. ZARD TR R ()
Company (continued)

A summary of the Company’s reserve is as follows: RARIRERZNT
Shares

Share-based heldfor ~ Exchange

Capital compensation share award  fluctuation Retained

reserve reserve scheme reserve profits Total
DRBAEE REEETE ELRE

E5RE  NRRRE iR e RERE ait

(Note (a)) (Note (b))

(Fiste) (WD)
HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$O000  HK$000
ARTT  E®TR ERTR A%t B%Tn B%TR

At1 January 2020 (Restated) 200041 B 1R (4B E5]) 140,302 3,464 - (3289 18928 159411
Loss [profit) and total comprehensive & MR (FIE) k2 A (F%)

(expense) income for the year YREBE(EET)

(Restated) - - - (2,740) 57,077 54,337
2019 final dividend declared BER019F RIS

(Restated) (#&31) - - - - (16,400 (16,400)
Shares purchased for share award BRI EEEIBE 217

scheme (Restated) (E&5)) - - (5,920) - - (5,920)
Equity-settled shares compensation  MIEZ & &R EERS

expense (Restated) (171 - 263 - - - 263
At 31 December 2020 Restated)  R2020%12A31 A (E51) 140,302 3,727 (5920 6029 50605 191,691
Profit ioss) and total comprehensive A8 (5518 ) 2 E Kz

income (expense) for the year (Bx)e® - - - 793 (7,441) (6,648)
2020 final dividend declared BER020F KRS - - - - (18,030) (18,030)
2021 interim dvidend declared BER2021 5 HR S - - - - (9,844) (9,844)
Equity-settled shares compensation  MIEZ & & R BEFX

expense - 9,398 - - - 9,398
Shares purchased for share award BRI EEEIBE 2 ()

scheme - - (6,309) - - (6,309)
Award shares vested ERBNERRN - (4,170) 3,757 - 43 -
Bonus issue of shares TR 86,243 - - - (86,259) (16)
Issue of shares upon exercise o~ REERRER(TEM TR

share options 5,151 (1,055) - - - 4,096
At 31 December 2021 720215124318 231,696 7,900 (8,472) (5,230) (61,556) 164,338
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e ISR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12AG1HIEFE

45, Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

() The amounts represent for (i) the share premium of the
issued share capital of the Company; and (i) the difference
between the nominal values of the ordinary shares issued by
the Company and the share capital of subsidiaries acquired
through an exchange of shares pursuant to the reorganisation
of the Company in prior years.

(b) The amount represents the share option and share award
expenses as disclosed in notes 32 and 33, respectively.

46. Major Non-Cash Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into new lease agreements
for the use of leased properties for 2 to 5 years. On the lease
commencement, the Group recognised right-of-use assets of
HK$33,430,000 (2020: HK$8,430,000 (Restated)) and lease
liabilities of HK$33,430,000 (2020: HK$8,430,000 (Restated)).
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46.

R BB FIR TR (]R)
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EXRFRERSH

FR - AEEHRFEAREWET L A2
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F

inancial Summary

PEHE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12B3181LEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT BT T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&ES) (&S (&E7)
Revenue PN 232,385 273,055 497,733 649,904 818,828
Profit before income tax Frig BRI A 49,892 16,602 52,911 99,748 112,761
Income tax expense FT{SHiF = (9,755) (10,877) (20,463) (19,752) (28,087)
Profit for the year FRFE 40,137 5,725 32,448 79,996 89,674
Profit attributable to: DT IEEEFE
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIEZE DN 41,169 16,379 27,273 52,455 49,836
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR R (1,032) (10,654) 5175 27 541 39,838
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 20194 20204 20214
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT BT BT T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(FE5)) (F=E=51) (ge=E=51) (g =31))
Total assets EEHE 304,364 374,815 462,587 522,241 666,131
Total liabilities BfEHERE 67,092 150,292 216,105 198,323 239,532
Equity attributable to IN/NIEZ SN
owners of the Company FE(G R 233,572 230,099 248,681 297,567 347,424
Notes: PR -
1. In 2018, the Group has applied IFRS 15, IFRS 9 and other 1. 20185 - ANEEE FE BRI H R SR DE

amendments to IFRSs. Accordingly, certain comparative information
for the year ended 31 December 2017 may not be comparable to
the year ended 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 as such
comparative information was prepared under IAS 18 and IAS 39.

2. In 2019, the Group has applied IFRS 16. Accordingly, certain
comparative information for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2018 may not be comparable to the years ended 31 December 2019,
2020 and 2021 as such comparative information was prepared under

IAS 17.

1555 « CBIBR B 7% 3RS 2RI ) E 955k M BIFR B 15 3R
EHREANDFEAMSET - B - 220175127431
BIEFEMNE TLRER A LEBZE20184F -
20194F ~ 20204 ;2021412 A31 A L FE A
L8 AAZSHERER IR B(EE 58]
E185% RCBIBR 5T £ )FEI0RFTR A -

R2019F « AEEE fEFACBR B RS £ 8)E
1657 » EIt - HE2017F &2018F 124318 1
FEHE TR E R AT a2 8 220194 ~ 2020
FR2021F12A BIEFETAILR - AAZ
ZLBERRB(ER S A E175RATR R
E’U °
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Definitions

e

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following expressions shall have the following meanings.

“2021 Bonus Issue”

[ 2021 FF 4T I 2517 |

“AGM(s)"

[ERBFAE ]

“Articles”
[Ei24A81 ]

“Audit Committee”

[BZEE8E]

“Board”

=

“CEO”
[1TER A |

“CG Code”

KiexERTAD]

“China” or “PRC” or “Mainland China”

[FRE ok A B At |
“Company”, “
“Group”, “
“China Leon”,
[RAR] S [REE] -
[ B 7708 sk Fff

our Group”,

TS

“Controlling Shareholders”

[FRRR AR

our Company”,

we” or “us”

RAFREREA -
BATEE -

BRXERBFTIEIN - THIFR

The bonus issue made on the basis of one (1) bonus share for every ten (10)

existing shares in issue held on the record date, i.e. 5 July 2021, by the qualifying

shareholders

EIRA ERIRR N E A B (B12021F7 ASH ) B E T(10)RR B 2 BTN T
— (NI AL R B T TR AT AR B8 1T

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

BEARAHBERBFERE

the articles of association of the Company adopted on 18 June 2016
AN F201656 A 18 B ERANA AR 44 = T2 408

the audit committee of the Company

EARRIMEZEZES

the board of Directors of the Company

BARBNEEZS

chief executive officer of the Company

FEARAIMTTI AR

the “Corporate Governance Code” set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (version
up to 31 December 2021) in force during the year ended 31 December 2021

EREZE2021F12 A31 B ILFE BB R BDM 814 & e 2B a<PRID
(B Z=2021F12A31 HhwA)

the People’s Republic of China
e EE AR HAE

China Leon Inspection Holding Limited (7 Bl 1752532 B BR A 7)), an exempted
company incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands with limited liability on
29 July 2015 and except Where the context indicated otherwise its subsidiaries
EPEERBIERAERAR - —KNR2015F7 A20ARIEF SR & = E MK
HWEREAEREER 7&(5@%%%%5%&%%%

Mr. LI Xiangli, Ms. ZHANG Aiying, Mr. LIU Yi, Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited, Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited and Hawk Flying Investment
Holding Limited

BEEALEE REHRLZL - 24 - Leon Cornerstone Investment Holding
Limited * Swan Stone Investment Holding Limited &z Hawk Flying Investment Holding
Limited
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“Director(s)”

==

“HKS$”
[V |

“Listing Rules”
[(Em#HRAD]
“Model Code”
[(RZEsT R

“New CG Code”

[(hieEEa<TAD]

“Nomination Committee”

[fRREEE]

“Prospectus”

[ ER

4

“Remuneration Committee’
[FEZE= ]

“RMB”
AR ]

“SFO”
[(FEH K EE &G
“Share(s)”

(A7 |

Definitions

B

the director(s) of the Company
BARRES

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEEATER A%

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (as amended
from time to time)

S P PO AR (AR5 2T)

the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EC ETRADMEE10PFE 2 E BT AE B ETE SR HHIRESTED

the new Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules which came into effect on 1 January 2022 and shall apply to the Company’s
corporate governance report for the financial year commencing on 1 January 2022
& E AR BT S+ P FTEk 2 7A20224F 1 A1 HAEBMICGHT 2B /AR - HTHRIR
TEEARANTR2022F1 A1 BREMMBFEENSEE RS

the nomination committee of the Company
EARRRINREEELZES

the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June 2016
EANAR HE/R20165F6 A29 A HHERETR

the remuneration committee of the Company
EARARRNTMWEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

EPBEEAEER - ARE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEBENESE(BLRIEED) - L TRHEET - fFsk AR T Sk

ordinary share(s) of par value US$0.00005 each in the issued share capital of our
Company
HEARRIE BT+ & AR E (E0.000053 T #) & AR

FEEHRBRIERARAR ¢ 2021 £EHKE |\ 319
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Definitions

“Shareholder(s)”

[ 5 ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 P

“y car’

[RFE ]

gy
(%]

holder(s) of the Shares
EROFEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EBEBERXHMARAT]

from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021
EH2021F1A1HZE2021412A31H

per cent.
AL
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